
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 

Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
 
Date: 19 July 2021 

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 27 July 2021 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple and P Pennington 

 
Non elected Members:  

 
 

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 

 

2.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 11) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 30 March 2021. 

 



 
 

 

3.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

6.   Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 12 - 30) 

 To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors. 
 

7.   Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 31 - 36) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

8.   Annual Internal Audit Report (Pages 37 - 51) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager. 
 

9.   Draft Annual Governance Statement (Pages 52 - 71) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.  

 

10.   Waivers and Non-compliance with Procedure Rules (Pages 72 - 82) 

 To receive the report from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

11.   Presentation of the Draft Financial Statement. (Pages 83 - 201) 

 To receive the report from the Section 151 Officer.  
 

12.   Draft Audit Findings  

 To receive a verbal update from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors. 
 

13.   External Audit Fees (Pages 202 - 207) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.  
 

14.   Forward Plan (Page 208) 

 

15.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 

 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 

of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

16.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  



 
 

 

17.   Corporate Risk  

 Verbal update on emerging risk  

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
Tuesday, 30 March 2021 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
 Councillor C Hodson (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillors R Craigie, K Hepple and D Jones 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) 

 D Heyes 
J Walter 
R Hutchins 
P Middlemass 
J Masci 

- Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 
- Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager 
- Devon Audit Partnership Manager 
- Devon Audit Partnership Manager 
- Engagament Lead, Grant Thornton LLP, 

External Auditors  
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 K Brown - Democratic Services Officer 

 
61.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rossi. 
 

62.    MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 26th January 2021 were presented.  
 
The presentation slide on the YouTube video stated the minutes of 22nd September 
2020 which was incorrect and the vote was for the minutes of the Audit & 
Governance meeting held on 26th January 2021. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record. 
 
A recorded vote was taken 
 

Councillor For Against Abstain 
 

Cllr Craigie 
 

X   

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

Cllr Hackett – Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Hepple 
 

X   

Cllr Hodson – Vice 
Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Jones  
 

  X 

Cllr Rossi 
 

   

 

(Vote – 4 For, 1 Abstention) 
 

63.    ACTION LIST  
 
Minute 121 – Councillor Hodson had spoken with the Head of Legal & Governance 
(Monitoring Officer) receiving assurance that there is a process in place for 
exchanging information with no blockages regarding safeguarding issues. The 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) also added that a Safeguarding 
Audit had recently taken place and a draft form has been constructed. Action 
complete. 
 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) had contacted Councillor Craigie regarding 
the next pension scheme virtual meeting. Action complete.  
 

64.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

65.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the agenda as circulated be agreed. 
 
A recorded vote was taken 
 

Councillor For Against Abstain 
 

Cllr Craigie 
 

X   

Cllr Hackett – Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Hepple 
 

X   

Cllr Hodson – Vice 
Chair 

X   

Page 5



3 
 

 
 

 

Cllr Jones  
 

X   

Cllr Rossi 
 

   

 

(Vote – Unanimous) 
 

66.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 
There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

67.    TORRIDGE PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The new Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors Julie Masci, 
introduced herself giving reasons for the change of Engagement Lead for the 
2020/21 Audit and her employment history. 
 
The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors presented the 
report the purpose of which was to update Committee Members on Torridge’s 
Progress Report.  
 
The 2019/20 accounts have now been completed with the Housing Benefit audit 
being finalised and submitted to the Department for Work & Pensions. Work has 
now started and progressing well on the 2020/21 Audit.    
 
The National Audit Office have issued an updated code of practice introducing a 
new framework for Value for Money. Details of changes were explained to the 
Committee by the Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors 
which now include three main pillars 1) financial sustainability 2) governance and 3) 
ensuring economy, efficiency and effectiveness with a new more detailed reporting 
process. 
 
Following a query from the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) the Engagement Lead 
for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors advised she could send through the 
guidance from the National Audit Office which sets out the new changes. 
Assurance was also given that TDC would be treated accordingly through the new 
process and Grant Thornton are looking to come to TDC possibly towards the end 
of June.  
 
The Chair welcomed Julie Masci to the Audit Committee and asked that pre 
meetings with Grant Thornton take place with him before future Audit & 
Governance meetings. Concern was raised as to whether the new processes would 
be as robust to which the Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External 
Auditors advised the intention is for them to add more value for money to the 
authority with more involvement from senior members of staff. 
 
The Chair asked that the Audit & Governance Committee, the Finance Manager 
(S151 Officer) and his team be notified of any changes to the predicted timeline.   

Page 6



4 
 

 
 

 
Following a query from Councillor Craigie, the Engagement Lead for Grant 
Thornton LLP, External Auditors, confirmed the green agenda is important and this 
is another reason why discussions are required at senior management team level 
to gain an understanding. 
 
The report was noted. 
 

68.    INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 2020/21  
 
The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors presented the 
report giving a brief overview of the introduction and content of the Risk 
Assessment, advising that the Audit Standards set out guidance to be followed and 
the expectations from TDC.  
 
The document has been streamlined with Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors 
having already had an initial response from the Finance Manager (S151 Officer). 
The document has now been presented to the Audit & Governance Committee for 
any further comments before Grant Thornton finalise their risk plan.  
 
Following a query from Councillor Jones the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) and 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirmed external solicitors have 
been used and a spreadsheet detailing payments made had been sent to Grant 
Thornton. 
 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) gave clarification to Councillor Craigie that 
TDC’s Treasury Management Policy only allows it to make short term treasury 
deposits for up to 12 months and no longer.  
 
The report was noted.  
 

69.    TORRIDGE DISTRICT AUDIT PLAN  
 
The Engagement Lead of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors presented the 
report highlighting the following: 
 

 Draft plan is complete with key areas of focus. 

 There are no significant changes in big accounting standards or Local 
Government Code of Practice. 

 Changes to Audit Standards regarding estimates resulting in further work 
required in response to the change in standards. 

 Value for money code is detailed in the report.  

 Significant risks surrounding fraud is rebuttable, within the Audit Standards, 
as TDC can prove controls are in place to manage risk.  

 Specific work will be conducted on TDC’s new payroll system. 

 Potential weakness has been identified around financial sustainability and 
planning which is common across all Local Authorities. Specific work will be 
done on this aspect as well. 

 Audit to be finalised by the end of September.  

Page 7



5 
 

 
 

 Fees for current year will be reassessed due to changes in the Value for 
Money and the requirement for additional work. Once the figure has been 
agreed with the PSAA it will be presented to the Audit & Governance 
Committee. 

 
The Chair thanked Julie Masci for attending and the report was noted.  
 

70.    AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED  
 
Rob Hutchins, Manager of Devon Audit Partnership presented the report, the 
purpose of which was to provide a summary to the Audit & Governance Committee 
of the audit reports issued to date to enable Members to discuss any matters they 
wish to raise. 
 
Paul Middlemass also from Devon Audit Partnership, joined the meeting as  he will 
be taking over from Rob Hutchins, in the future and working with TDC. 
 
Following a query from Councillor Craigie the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) 
confirmed that Eco Flex Grants are awarded to properties which have been 
identified for an upgrade to their energy efficiency. Further to the query the Devon 
Audit Partnership Manager confirmed the recommendations on Housing Renewal 
included items such as the strategy for empty homes needs updating, the Housing 
database used to record information was slightly inaccurate, budget overspend on 
Eco Flex Scheme, validation checks on grants awarded however management 
have recognised the issues and changes have been put in place to remedy the 
issues.   
 
Thanks was given to the Devon Audit Partnership Manager and the report was 
noted.  
 

71.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) asked the Engagement Lead at Grant 
Thornton LLP, External Auditors if the Audit Findings report could be brought 
forward to a September meeting from October to which she agreed this would be 
achievable.  
 
The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors also advised that 
due to the new approach the Annual Audit Letter will now be redundant and the 
Annual Audit Report will be presented at the September meeting alongside the 
Findings Report.  
 
Councillor Hodson referred to the Effectiveness of the Audit & Governance 
Committee and pending any changes following the Annual General Meeting will 
there be any training or measures put in place to demonstrate the effectiveness of 
the Audit & Governance Committee? The Chair advised the comment would be 
taken on board.   
 
 

Page 8



6 
 

 
 

72.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hodson and – 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 
10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 
 

Councillor For Against Abstain 
 

Cllr Craigie 
 

X   

Cllr Hackett – Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Hepple 
 

X   

Cllr Hodson – Vice 
Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Jones  
 

X   

Cllr Rossi 
 

   

 

(Vote – Unanimous) 
 
 

73.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

74.    COVID-19 LESSONS  
 
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) presented the report, the purpose of which 
was to inform Members of the Audit & Governance Committee of issues pertaining 
to the administration of Business Support Grants. 
 
A slide presentation was delivered to supplement the report.  
 
The Chair gave thanks to the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) and his team on all 
the work carried out.  
 
Following a query from Councillor Jones the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) 
confirmed that a revised process of validating the eligibility for grants will be 
adhered to this time.  
 

Page 9



7 
 

 
 

Resources for the administration of the grants is limited to the Finance and 
Business Rate teams however TDC’s Human Resources department have recently 
enquired if staff would be interested in additional hours to assist the teams.  
 
Councillor Craigie also expressed her appreciation and asked to pass thanks to the 
teams.  
 

75.    CYBER SECURITY UPDATE  
 
The Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager delivered a presentation regarding 
Cyber Security.  
 
An overview of a recent incident was presented to the Committee along with a 
timeline of actions taken by TDC’s IT department to overcome the incident along 
with actions and continuing work to reduce any risk moving forward.  
 
Confirmation was given to the Chair that the strength of passwords is important, 
best practice is to change passwords every couple of months and this can be done 
remotely. 
 
The report was noted.   
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Craigie and – 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the press and public be re-admitted 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

Councillor For Against Abstain 
 

Cllr Craigie 
 

X   

Cllr Hackett – Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Hepple 
 

X   

Cllr Hodson – Vice 
Chair 
 

X   

Cllr Jones  
 

X   

Cllr Rossi 
 

   

 

(Vote – Unanimous) 

Page 10



8 
 

 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.38 pm 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 11



P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 14

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 18

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/lessons-from-recent-public-interest-reports/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 22

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-government-finance-in-the-pandemic/


Commercial in confidence

Additional expenditure due to COVID-19 by class and service area (£ millions) (2020-21)

Shire 

District

Shire 

County

Unitary 

Authority

Metropolitan 

District

London 

Borough
Total

Adult Social Care – total 0.473 1,254.880 848.656 663.404 413.842 3,181.254

Children's social care - total (excluding 

SEND)
0.000 94.933 131.127 89.799 62.987 378.846

Housing - total (including homelessness 

services) excluding HRA
63.129 5.254 74.949 42.281 112.971 298.584

Environmental and regulatory services - total 33.564 68.097 67.512 66.704 63.556 299.433

Finance & corporate services - total 48.222 53.445 83.984 76.923 78.284 340.858

All other service areas not listed in rows 

above
184.550 634.578 584.924 564.737 395.137 2,363.926

Total 329.937 2,111.187 1,791.153 1,503.848 1,126.777 6,862.902

Income losses due to COVID-19 by class and source of income (£ millions) (2020-21)

Shire District Shire County Unitary Authority
Metropolitan 

District

London 

Borough
Total

Business rates 276.498 0.000 194.192 207.351 537.667 1,215.708

Council tax 399.037 0.000 217.633 191.219 232.727 1,040.616

Sales fees and 

charges
516.426 194.923 553.907 396.745 475.728 2,137.728

Commercial 

income
82.448 24.159 120.629 204.211 52.154 483.600

Other 33.494 39.947 27.163 53.664 45.166 199.435

Total 1,307.903 259.029 1,113.524 1,053.190 1,343.441 5,077.087

P
age 23

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-covid-19-financial-impact-monitoring-information


Commercial in confidence

P
age 24

https://www.cipfa.org/services/financial-resilience-index-2021?crdm=0


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-in-annual-reports-february-2021/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 26

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 27

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 29

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


P
age 30



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: July 2021   

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the audit reports issued since the last 

audit committee to enable members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of audit reports issued. 
This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the audit report upon release, they are encouraged to raise 
any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report gives 
an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final audit reports issued to date that have not been previously reported 
to the Committee.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are five audit reports to note: 
 

 Safeguarding 

 Housing Benefits and Council Tax Support 

 

 Equality and Diversity 
 Risk Management 

 

 Car Parking  

 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Equality/Diversity 
Members to note the Audit Report on Equality and Diversity. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

 
 
 
Risk Management 
The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include „opportunity‟ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Where this is an opportunity to add value by suggesting  
 
Progress with implementing actions is reported to the Chief Executive Officer or Senior 
Management Team, and to the Audit & Governance Committee, on a quarterly basis. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 
Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

Safeguarding 
Housing Benefits and Council 
Tax Support 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Equality and Diversity 
Risk Management 
Car Parking 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

NA 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 

Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the internal audits in this report. 

 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 33



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued but not Previously Reported to Committee 

 
 
Safeguarding (2020-21) 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 4 (3 Medium, 1 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 4 
 
Summary 

Our review of Safeguarding found that current arrangements are effective and provide an overall 
substantial assurance that TDC is meeting its statutory obligations. The safeguarding obligations are 
managed through strategies, partnerships and policies. Safeguarding risks are identified and 
controlled through policies and procedures. Key business documents demonstrate an embedded 
culture of safeguarding throughout the organisation. Operational business objectives are aligned to the 
strategic goals to ensure safeguarding is considered within all day-to-day activities. 
 
The three recommendations related to the statutory duty to undertake a Section 11 Audit, the need to 
ensure there is a regular review the Safeguarding policy, and update of that policy to include key 
documents which specifically mitigate risks related to Safeguarding.  
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 3 (all Medium) 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 3 
 
Summary 

The current Equality & Diversity (E&D) arrangements are found to be effective and provide an overall 
Reasonable Assurance that TDC is meeting its statutory obligations. The Council's procedures are 
robust and support it's approach to E&D as being proactive and fair to all. TDC publishes it‟s Equality 
Objectives at least every four years in accordance with the Equality Act of 2010. The current Equality 
Scheme 2020 – 2024, sets out the council‟s ambitions and commits to achieving equality of 
opportunity both as an employer and as a provider of services. The Scheme reflects TDCs core values 
by promoting fairness and ensuring its customers have equal access the Council's services. However, 
the council faces difficulties in recruiting a truly diverse workforce, something shared by councils in the 
area. TDC continues to consider different strategies for attracting a wider, more diverse pool of 
applicants for jobs. 

The weaknesses (and recommendations) relate to the following: 

 The council is an Equal Opportunities employer and recognises the positive value of diversity, 
promoting equality and challenging unfair discrimination. There is a statutory requirement to 
publish data within an Annual E&D Report to demonstrate that E&D and Recruitment policies 
are effective. Although various reports contain E&D information, there is no single document 
that clearly outlines how TDC has complied with the requirements. The Council has not fulfilled 
it‟s duty to publish an Annual E&D Report for several years. The Head of Legal & Governance 

Page 34



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

& Monitoring Officer recognises the importance of public confidence in TDC‟s approach to E&D 
and will address the reporting requirement. 

 Only E&D recruitment data from July 2020 is available due to the introduction of the new HR 
system (iTrent). As system is available online to all staff via personal email addresses, HR is 
introducing a plan for staff to update their own records. This will provide the data required for 
full Equality & Diversity analysis and reporting. Once completed, the Council can review 
whether further work is needed to make its workforce more diverse and representative of the 
local population. 

 Not all members and officers have completed the mandatory E&D training (at time of the audit, 
only 63% had completed it) 

 
 
Housing Benefits and Council Tax Support 2020/21 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 1 (Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed - 1 
 
Summary 

The audit review considered four risks and testing found a strong control framework in place to 
mitigate against the risks identified. Sample testing was undertaken which confirmed the effective 
operation of the controls in place, despite the additional demands placed on the team due to the 
Covid-19 emergency. This has slightly increased time taken to process claims, although we are 
content that quality assurance checks have been maintained. Overall, we are content that effective 
controls are in place and operating effectively to provide a Substantial Assurance. 

The Torridge DC website Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support 'Overpayments' page details the 
process if an overpayment of Housing Benefit occurs; also shown is a link to the Torridge DC 'Fair 
Collection and Debt Recovery Policy (V3 Dec 2020). The in-year Overpayments Report obtained 
shows the low figure of only 26% of total debt raised as currently outstanding. The Torridge DC 
2019/20 'Housing Benefit debt recovery statistics' shown on the government website highlights the 
result of robust action in the pursuit of repayment of Housing Benefit overpayments. 
 
Risk Management 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 8 Medium, 1 Low 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 9 
 
Summary 

We identified a risk management framework was in place to identify, manage and mitigate risks in line 
with the cautious risk appetite level set by the council. Risk is discussed through the year by senior 
managers and reported to Council including discussion of the Corporate Risk Register by the Audit 
and Governance Committee.  

There was an overall Regional Risk Management Group to oversee the process, although we note it 
has only met twice in the last two years. We made a Medium recommendation for management to 
review the role of this group as we consider it important that there is sufficient focus on effectiveness 
of the framework. Management has noted that they consider this should be a Low priority 
recommendation.     

Page 35



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

On the Corporate Risk Register, risks were assigned risk owners on actions. In our opinion, the 
strategic risks listed appear reasonable for TDC. However, we identified some risks where mitigating 
actions were either absent or not likely to be effective.  

Operational risks are identified within service areas Integrated Business Plans. However, these are 
updated only once a year, and do not there contain the current “live risks”. In 2020-21, none of the 
IBPs were finalised due to the C-19 emergency, although we understand these are being approved for 
2021-22. We also identified that a risk register was not held for a significant project (Northam Burrows 
Visitors Centre project). Management has now agreed to ensure that risk logs / assessments are held 
for all major projects going forward.   

We reviewed staff awareness of basic risk management and made recommendations related to 
improving that awareness through training and communication of the requirement.    

Finally, we noted that it is good practice to have an independent member on audit committees. This 
work is continuing, with support from DAP.  
 
Car Parking 

 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – 9 (5 Medium, 4 Low) 
 
No of recommendations agreed  
 
Summary 

We provided a Reasonable Assurance as we were generally content with the processes to collect, 
bank and account for cash and electronic receipts related to car parking. The amount of income 
collected in 2020/21 is much reduced from previous years, but that is in line with travel restrictions 
relating to the C-19 emergency. That said, the team relies heavily on third party providers for hardware 
and software provision and there was not always appropriate service level agreements or contracts to 
support monitoring and management of their performance. We also identified that parking services is 
not currently covered by a business plan and recommend that the area complete their integrated 
business plan to ensure appropriate direction and alignment with council objectives.    

We confirmed that there was a process to issue and manage Penalty Charge Notices. This includes 
appropriate consideration and action to cancel PCNs if reasonable justification was received in an 
appeal. However, we note that management information does not currently include PCN collection 
rates or a summary of those outstanding for each year. This is important to allow monitoring of the 
effectiveness of recovery processes and provide a focus on aged debt that may need to be written off 

While the council considers Health and Safety risk (including the risk to parking service staff from 
disgruntled members of the public) to be low in this area, we have recommended that they complete 
their Health and Safety risk assessment which is a policy requirement.  

Page 36



Internal Audit 
 
Annual Internal Audit Report 
2020/21 
 
Torridge District Council 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
April 2021 

 
 
 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 8



Contents 

 

 

INTRODUCTION __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

BASIS FOR OPINION ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE AND RESULTS _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 6 

FRAUD PREVENTION AND DETECTION _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 

SERVICE DELIVERY - DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP - PROFESSIONALISM AND QUALITY________________________________________________________________ 9 

CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) _______________________________________________________________________ 9 

CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

AUDIT AUTHORITY ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 10 

THE CONSEQUENCES OF CHANGE AND RISK _____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

APPENDIX 1 - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK ASSURANCE___________________________________________________________________________________ 12 

APPENDIX 2 - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 13 

APPENDIX 3 - COMPARISON OF AUDIT OPINIONS __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 14 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

APPENDIX 4 - CUSTOMER FEEDBACK RESULTS 2020/21 ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 15 

 

 
 
 
  
 

Devon Audit Partnership Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of 
Torridge, Plymouth, Torbay, Mid Devon, South Hams, West Devon & Devon County councils.  We aim 

to be recognised as a high-quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We work with our partners 
by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting their challenges, 
managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to comply with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice & professional standards. 

The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you 
have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership 

would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk . 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National 
Protective Marking Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well 

need to be discussed with other officers within the Council, the report 
itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of 
the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies.  

This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no 
responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it.  

P
age 38

mailto:robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk


 

3 

 

Introduction 
The Audit and Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in Torridge District Council’s Constitution is required to consider Internal 
Audit’s annual report and opinion; a summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements. 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that all Authorities carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their internal audit system and 
incorporate the results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement of Accounts. The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards also requires the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report providing an opinion that can be used by the organisation to 
inform its governance statement.  

The following report and appendices set out the background to audit service provision; summarises our work undertaken in 2020/21 and provides an opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 

Context for 2020/21.  The Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2020/21 was due to be presented and approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in 

March 2020, however due to the Covid-19 pandemic this meeting was cancelled. The plan and strategy are shown on the Torridge website, and so have been 
available for comment and consideration by members. Delivery against the plan has further been affected by the pandemic; during 2020/21 officer time has 
quite rightly been focused on front line service delivery and supporting the wider community in dealing with Covid-19. As a consequence, some audits have 
been deferred to a future year. We have still been able to complete most of our audits and have also drawn from our work in previous years to enable an 
annual audit opinion to be provided.  The audit work that has been completed in 2020/21 has mainly been achieved via remote working, and we are most 
appreciative of the support provided by Torridge officers in enabling us to complete this work effectively and efficiently. 
 
Expectations of the Audit and Governance Committee from this annual report 

Audit & Governance Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report; 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan; 

 the scope and ability of audit to complete the audit work; 

 audit coverage and findings provided; 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

In review of the above the Audit and Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided alongside that of Senior Management, 
Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework (see appendix 1) and satisfy 
themselves from this assurance for signing the Annual Governance Statement.   

Robert Hutchins    Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

  

P
age 39



 

4 

 

Overall, based on work performed during 2020/21 and our experience 
from previous years audit, Internal Audit is able to provide 
“Reasonable assurance” (see below) on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control framework. 

However, the Covid19 crisis has placed considerable pressures on all local 
authorities, and this is true of Torridge. Many emergency actions taken by 
the Council during 2020/21 have had to be made quickly. As a 
consequence, system and control design of such decisions may not have 
been subject to the normal level of control. In our work we have sought to 

confirm that key controls continue to operate effectively to mitigate this risk.  

ASSURANCE STATEMENT 
 

       This statement of opinion is underpinned by: 

This assurance statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 

Annual Governance Statement see appendix 1. 
 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily. An opinion on the adequacy of controls is provided to management 
as part of the audit report.   

Senior Management have been provided with details of Internal Audit’s opinion 
(set out in this report) on each audit review carried out in 2020/21 to assist them 
with compilation of their individual annual governance assurance statements.  If 
significant weaknesses have been identified in specific areas, these have been 
considered by the Authority in preparing its Annual Governance Statement which 
will be accompanying its published Statement of Accounts for 2020/21.   
 

Substantial Assurance. A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, w ith 
internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable Assurance. There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 

and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Assurance. Signif icant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identif ied. Improvement 
is required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks 

to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance. Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, w eaknesses or non-
compliance identif ied. The system of governance, risk management and control are inadequate to 

effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 

Internal Control Framework   
The control environment comprises the Council’s policies, procedures 
and operational systems and processes in place to: 

 Establish and monitor the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives; 

 Facilitate policy and decision making; 

 Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources; 

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws 
and regulations; 

 Safeguard the Council’s assets and interests from losses of all 
kinds, including those arising from fraud, irregularity or 
corruption.  

During 2020/21, core financial and administrative systems were 
reviewed by Internal Audit through specific reviews. We also reviewed 
practices related to the Covid-19 response (e.g. Grant payments) and 
have concluded that the Council’s overall internal control framework 
operated effectively during 2020/21.  

Risk Management 

The Risk Management (RM) 
Strategy defines the process 

by which risks are identified, 
assessed, managed and 
controlled.  

The Council uses this to 
recognise and plan to deal 
with the possibility of failing to 

achieve its corporate and 
service objectives. It 
identifies &, evaluates the 

impact and likelihood of event 
and identified action to 
control the risks effectively. 

Governance 
Arrangements 
 

We provided support to 
the Authority as it 
responded to the Covid 

pandemic, in particular 
providing assurance 
over the arrangements 

to prevent and detect 
fraudulent Covid 
support payments.  

 

Economy Efficiency 
& Effectiveness 
 

We aimed to provide 
support as the 
Council moved to the 

new payroll system 
(iTrent) drawing on 
our knowledge of 

similar 
implementations at 
other local authorities. 

 
 

P
age 40



 

5 

 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide the Council with an 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting records and 
its system of internal control. In giving our opinion, this assurance can 
never be absolute. The assurance level provided is based on our 
assessment of the control environment at the point of review, supported by 
a limited amount of sample testing. 
 
This report: - 

 compares the work carried out with the work that was planned through 
risk assessment:  

 presents a summary of the audit work undertaken; 

 includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control environment; and  

 summarises the performance of the Internal Audit function against its 
performance measures and other criteria.  

CIPFA, the body that advises on professional internal audit standards, 
recognises that the impact of Covid-19 and the capacity of the organisation to 
respond will have varied as a result of a number of factors (please see link).  
CIPFA recognises that, alongside direct internal audit work, the HIA (Head of 
Internal Audit) can also place reliance on other assurance providers. Factors that 
we are required to consider when providing our opinion include: 

• the changing risks and impacts on the organisation itself 

• whether key governance, risk management and internal control 
arrangements have deteriorated or been maintained 

• changes to the resource base of internal audit  

• demands on internal audit for any advisory or non-audit support 

• operational disruptions that impact on the access of internal auditors to 
key staff, information or systems resulting in greater inefficiency and 
reduced outputs. 

audits completed during 2020/21 and 
previous years, 

any follow up action taken in respect of audits 
from previous periods; 

any significant recommendations not 
accepted by management and the 

consequent risks; 

the quality of internal audit’s performance; 

the proportion of the Council’s audit need that 
has been covered to date; 

the extent to which resource constraints may 
limit this ability to meet the full audit needs of 

the Council; 

any limitations that may have been placed on 
the scope of internal audit. 

In assessing the level of assurance to be given the following have 
been considered: 
 
 

P
age 41

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/guidance-for-head-of-internal-audit-annual-opinions-202021


 

6 

 

 

Internal audit coverage and results 
 

In our opinion, and based upon our audit work completed during the 2020/21 financial year and in previous years, we consider that adequate controls are in 
place to control operations at the council and provide “Reasonable Assurance” on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

framework. All of our audit reports this year have provided a Substantial or Reasonable Assurance. Given the impact of the Covid-19 emergency, this is a 
good outcome for the Council.  

Where weaknesses or areas for improvement have been identified management have generally agreed these findings and have either agreed the 
recommendations or accepted the associated risks.  Where management actions have been agreed and as appropriate, we shall undertake follow up work to 
ensure that the identified risks have been mitigated.  

We provide an assurance opinion for each piece of work. This assurance opinion is graded as follows (please also refer to appendix 3). (please see key on 
following page). 

 

Opinion Audit  

Substantial Assurance Council Tax, Councillor Community Grants, Creditors, Ethics and 
Values, Housing Benefits, Income, Main Accounting System, 
Safeguarding, VAT 

Reasonable Assurance Covid-19 Grant Payments, Equality and Diversity (draft), National Non-
Domestic Rates (NNDR), Procurement, Risk Management, 
Environmental Protection 

Limited Assurance None 

No Assurance None 

 

Work in progress as at April 2021 – ICT – Remote Working Arrangements 

 

Deferral of Work.  Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the need for front line staff to concentrate on service delivery, the following audits were deferred with 

management agreement to a later period, mainly 2021/22:-  Payroll, CCTV / Community Safety, Licensing (inc Taxi Licences and local licences) Development 
Management, Recruitment and Selection and Retention, Project Delivery. 

 

 

P
age 42



 

7 

 

 

 

 

Definitions of Audit Assurance Opinion Levels 
 

 
 

Assurance Definition 

Substantial Assurance 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied 

to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 

improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

Limited Assurance 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and 

control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

No Assurance Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk 
management and control are inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

 
 

Other Sources of assurance 
 
During the year other sources of assurance will be gained. During 2020/21 these sources have included the following: - 
 
1. Grant Thornton (production of annual accounts letter etc.) 
2. Local Government Ombudsman (annual letter) 
3. North Devon Council (Crematorium arrangements) 
4. ICT Security (external penetration testing) 
5. Internal review of the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee 
6. Lendology CIC (formerly Wessex Housing) Accounts are audited annually by Francis Clarke. As the scheme is managed in 

partnership with other councils in the Devon area, Lendology is regularly audited by the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) (in 
order to share audit costs with other council areas. An audit was undertaken in 2020/21 and the audit report issued in November 2020 
provided an assurance rating of Substantial. 

 
 

  

P
age 43



 

8 

 

 

Fraud Prevention and Detection  
 

Fraud Prevention and Detection and the National Fraud Initiative  

Counter-fraud arrangements are a high priority for the Council and assist in the protection of public funds and accountability, regular reminders about anti-
fraud and whistleblowing arrangements are provided to staff in the regular staff newsletter.  The Audit Commission runs a national data matching exercise 
(National Fraud Initiative - NFI) every two years.  In reviewing and investigating the most recent data matching cases, Council staff have been able to 
generate estimated savings in the region of £35,000.  

 
Every case of alleged fraud or irregularity is thoroughly investigated, and action will be taken to address any concerns identified. The council will issue 
sanctions against those who commit fraud, although it should be noted that since the transfer of benefit payments to DWP, the need for Torridge to issue 
cautions has reduced. In the 2020/21 financial year Torridge did not issue any administrative penalties. 
 
The Council also assist with request for data from the police, other local authorities and public sectors bodies who asked for information to assist in their own 
prevention and detection of fraud. Such requests relate to the release of data concerning the general public and are referred to as “section 29” requests.  
 
 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption - Self Assessment  

 
During 2015 CIPFA’s Counter Fraud Centre issued a code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption. The guidance emphasised the need for 
public service organisations to take responsibility to embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This supports good 
governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong public management.  
 
Internal Audit undertook a self-assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council against the code of practice. It was reported to the Audit and 
Governance committee that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards were in place. In some instances, these have since benefited from a refresh, 
although the good principles to prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and corruption were in place.   
 
Internal Audit will continue to ensure that standards and practices are embedded and remain effective at deterring and preventing fraud. 

 

  

P
age 44



 

9 

 

 

Service Delivery - Devon Audit Partnership - Professionalism and Quality 

The audit plan for 2020/21 has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership. The Partnership is expected to meet high standards of professionalism and 
quality, and in particular meet the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit standards. The following paragraphs are provided by Devon Audit 
Partnership. 

 

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

Conformance - Devon Audit Partnership conforms to the requirements of the PSIAS for its internal audit activity. The purpose, authority and responsibility of 

the internal audit activity is defined in our internal audit charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. Our 
internal audit charter was approved by senior management and the Audit Committee in March 2020. This is supported through DAP self-assessment of 
conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards & Local Government Application note. 

Quality Assessment - the Head of Devon Audit Partnership maintains a quality assessment process which includes review by audit managers of all audit 
work. The quality assessment process and improvement is supported by a development programme.  External Assessment provides assurance that against 
the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Quality Assessment & Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for 
Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager, have completed an external validation of the Partnership.  

Terry and Chris concluded that; 

“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms * to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of 

Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. 

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards 

Improvement Programme – DAP maintains a rolling development plan of improvements to the service and customers. All recommendations of the external 

assessment of PSIAS and quality assurance were included in this development plan and have been completed. This will be further embedded with revision of 
our internal quality process through peer review. Our development plan is regularly updated, and a status report was reported to the DAP Management Board 
in October 2020. 

Customer Service Excellence 
 

DAP was successful in re-accreditation by G4S Assessment Services of the CSE standard during June 2019. 
 
During the Covid-19 period we scaled back our requests for customer feedback but expect to fully resurrect our feedback process in 2021/22. However, we 
have issued client survey forms for some of our reports, and the results of the surveys returned were very good and again very positive. The overall result is 
very pleasing, with near 94% being "satisfied” or better across our services.  It is very pleasing to report that our clients continue to rate the overall usefulness 
of the audit and the helpfulness of our auditors highly. 
 
 

P
age 45



 

10 

 

 

Audit Authority 
 

Service Provision 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Regulatory Role 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Professional Guidelines 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audit StrategyThe  

The Internal Audit (IA) for Torridge Council has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). This is a shared service arrangement 
between Torridge, Devon, Torbay, Plymouth and Mid Devon councils constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 2000. The 
Partnership undertakes an objective programme of audits to ensure that there are sound and adequate internal controls in place across the whole 
of the Council. It also ensures that the Council’s assets and interests are accounted for and safeguarded from error, fraud, waste, poor value for 
money or other losses. 

An annual plan, setting out expected audit priorities is risk assessed and agreed with senior management annually. 

There are two principal pieces of legislation that impact upon internal audit in local authorities: 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which state at section 5(1) “A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards (PSIAS) or guidance”. 

 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every local authority to make arrangements for the proper administration of 

its financial affairs. 

 

Devon Audit Partnership works to professional guidelines which govern the scope, standards and conduct of Internal Audit as set down in the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Partnership was independently assessed in by Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire 
Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager; the Partnership was assessed as “conforming” to the standards. 

The Partnership has an internal Audit Manual that provides the method of work and works to and with the policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations established by the Authority. These include standing orders, schemes of delegation, financial regulations, conditions of service, anti-

fraud and corruption strategies, fraud prevention procedures and codes of conduct, amongst others 

Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service will be provided, and the Internal Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal 
responsibilities of the audit function. 

 

P
age 46



  

11 

 

The consequences of change and risk 
 

Times are changing; the expectation of the public for services provided by the 
public sector has never been greater; yet the money that is available for these 
services is limited. The impact of Brexit is not yet fully known, and the finally 
agreed exit agreement will bring with it both opportunities and challenges that 
will need to be addressed.  
 
There is a greater focus on information systems; the need to secure such 
systems from failure or outside influence has never been greater. The Data 
Protection Act 2018, also known as GDPR, has required organisations to 
review data management arrangements and make changes to manage the risk 
of data loss or breach. 
 
The Internal Audit function has a key role in helping management fully 
understand their risks and in designing effective and efficient controls that 
mitigate these risks to an acceptance level; a consistent application of a quality 
internal audit opinion assists the organisation to develop alternative and new 
delivery solutions that will deliver the service required. 
 
Our work during the year was been tailored to meet the changing requirements 
of the Authority throughout the year. All of the changes and risks within this 
graphic have been observed.  
 
 
 
 

  

Change Risk 

P
age 47



  

12 

 

Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Framework Assurance 
 
The conclusions of this report provide the internal audit 
assurance on the internal control framework necessary for the 
Committee to consider when reviewing the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) provides assurance that  
o the Authority’s policies have been complied with in practice; 
o high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 
o ethical standards are met; 
o laws and regulations are complied with; 
o processes are adhered to; 
o performance statements are accurate. 

The statement relates to the governance system as it is applied 
during the year for the accounts that it accompanies. It should: - 

 be prepared by senior management and signed by the Head of 
Paid Service and Leader of the Council; 

 highlight significant events or developments in the year; 

 acknowledge the responsibility on management to ensure good 
governance; 

 indicate the level of assurance that systems and processes can 
provide; 

 provide a narrative on the process that has been followed to 
ensure that the governance arrangements remain effective. This 
will include comment upon: - 
o The Authority; 
o Audit and Governance Committee; 
o Risk Management; 
o Internal Audit; 
o Other reviews / assurance 

 Provide confirmation that the Authority complies with 
CIPFA / SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. If not, a statement is 
required stating how other arrangements provide the same 
level of assurance. 

Corporate Risk Management 
framework and Reporting 

Internal Audit Assurance on 
the internal control 

framework 

Executive and Service 
Director Review and 

Assurance 

External Audit and Other 
Assurance Reports 

Annual 
Governance 
Framework 

The AGS needs to be presented to, and approved by, the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and then signed by the Chair. 

The Committee should satisfy themselves, from the assurances provided by Risk 
Management arrangements, senior management and Internal Audit that the 
statement meets statutory requirements and that the management team endorse 
the content. 

 

P
age 48



  

13 

 

Appendix 2 - Performance Indicators 
 
There are no national Performance Indicators in existence for Internal Audit, but the following Local Performance Indicators LPI’s may be of interest. 
 

Local Performance Indicator (LPI) 

 

2020/21 

 

2020/21 

 

2019/20 

 

2018/19 
 

 

2017/18 
 

2016/17 2015/16 

 Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Percentage of Key System Audits completed 100% 88% 100% 87.5% 100% 100% 100% 

Percentage of Other System Audits completed 70% 54% 83% 91.6%  92% 93% 80% 

Actual Audit Days as percentage of planned 90% 67% 90.9% 93.2  100% 97% 95% 

Productive Audit Time 65% 64% 65% 68.3% 71.5% 83% 84% 

Customer Satisfaction – percentage satisfied/very satisfied 90% 94%  * 90.9% 92.3% 91% 9 9.5 

Average number of days to produce draft internal audit reports  43 days 32 25 days 26 days 25 days 22 days 35 days 

Average number of days to produce final internal audit reports 70 days 47 65 days 43 days 48 days 38 days 56 days 

Out-turn within budget Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
 
*  The figure of 94% shown represents customer feedback from the wider DAP partnership, rather than specifically relating to work completed at Torridge 
District Council. 

  

P
age 49



  

14 

 

Appendix 3 - Comparison of Audit Opinions by Audit   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 50



  

15 

 

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback Results 2020/21 
 

For each audit we issue a customer feedback form.  The results we receive help us shape our service; it helps to identify possible training needs for staff and helps us 

understand the areas of our process that are more challenging for the auditee.  
 
Due to the additional demands placed on staff during the Covid pandemic we decided not to issue detailed client feedback forms for 2020/21; however we show below the 

results from wider customer feedback across Devon Audit Partnership. Whilst this does not allow detailed analysis across Torridge work, it does provide an indication of the 
areas where the team have performed well, and those areas where we can still improve.  We trust that we will be able to obtain a greater level of feedback in 2021/22. 

 

P
age 51



 
  

  

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Draft Annual Governance Statement 

Date: 27 July 2021 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
To provide an opportunity for Members to comment on the draft 2020/21 Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

  
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2016) requires the Council to conduct a 
review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to publish this in 
the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 
approved by the Audit & Governance Committee on 19 January 2021. 
 
The Annual Governance Statement provides a holistic assessment of the checks and balance 
arrangements that are in place to ensure that public money is properly spent and compliant with 
the principles for the conduct of individuals in public life. 
 
Members are asked to review and comment on the draft 2020/21 Annual Governance 
Statement set out at Appendix A. The Annual Governance Statement will then be updated and 
presented for approval to the Audit & Governance Committee on 21 September 2021. 
 
 

2. REPORT 

 
The Council’s aim is to produce an Annual Governance Statement which complies with 
published guidelines, is easy to read and is as succinct as possible. Ideally, we would like our 
Annual Governance Statement to be ‘best practise’. 
 
In February 2021 CIPFA published new guidance for the application of the good governance 
framework for local government (CIPFA Bulletin 06). This guidance principally concerns both 
the continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on local government bodies, and the 
introduction of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 during 2020/21. 
 
To comply with the new guidance, for 2020/21 we have undertaken a full review of our existing 
approach to the preparation and presentation of our Annual Government Statement. The 
resulting document (see Appendix A) aims to incorporate the best parts of our previous 
template into the layout recommended by CIPFA, including statements relating to both the 
impact of COVID-19 and compliance with the Financial Code, and provides a fuller/more 
detailed evaluation of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements.    
 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Legal Implications 
There is a legal requirement to publish an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts. 
 

Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications. 

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



 
  

 

Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
N/A 

 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 

Risk Management 
Evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement has been and will continue to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. This will include reviews of the Council’s governance and risk 
management arrangements. Any significant areas for improvement will be set out in the 
action plan. 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
Reviewing the effectiveness of the control environment and reporting on the findings of the 
review is a key aspect of demonstrating that Torridge District Council has a formal and 
established response to the Corporate Governance requirements. 
 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Chair of Audit & Governance, Councillor Philip Hackett said ‘The purpose of the AGS is to 
confirm that the Council’s business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively. This year’s AGS improves on our previous 
governance statements by providing an easier to read and fuller assessment of the robust 
approach pursued at Torridge to ensure we have satisfactory outcomes and comply with 
legislation.’   
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 
The Draft Annual Governance Statement is provided for consideration by Members and will 
be presented for approval at the meeting in September 2021 for sign-off alongside the 
Financial Statement.  
 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Members consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and bring forward 
suggestions for discussion. 
 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations: Chief Executive Officer 

Statutory Finance Officer 
Monitoring Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett 
DAP Partnership Manager 
 

 Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer 

 Background Papers: Code of Governance 2021 
CIPFA Bulletin 06 

 

Page 53



Torridge District

Annual Governance 
2020/2021

Statement

Council

DRAFT 2

June 2021Page 54

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiW6cyM4LvYAhVFBcAKHTC6DgYQjRwIBw&url=http://greatrissington.org/lorem-ipsum-dolor-sit-amet-consectetuer-adipiscing-elit-aenean-commodo-ligula-eget-dolor-aenean-massa-4/&psig=AOvVaw0O20Ko90gsdnk_TxvXBA_d&ust=1515067411301227


2

Table of Contents

Key Area Page

Executive Summary 3

Approval of the AGS 4

Identification of Key Governance Arrangements 5

Impact of COVID-19 on Governance Arrangements 8

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Governance

- Role of Strategic Management Team 10

- Role of Members – Scrutiny 14

- Role of Members – Audit & Governance 15

- Role of Internal Audit 16

- Role of External Audit 17

Accountability and Action Plans 18

Page 55



Executive Summary

As part of our annual governance review, key officers have also been consulted for their views 

on the standards of governance within the Council – specifically:

❑ The Statutory Finance Officer, 

❑ The Monitoring Officer,

❑ The Chief Executive Officer, and 

❑ The DAP Partnership Manager. 

In delivering its services the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements 

for the governance of its affairs. We remain committed to the principles of good governance 

as identified in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016’.

The Council has in place a comprehensive governance framework (see summary on page 7) 

and this framework provides a range of processes to continually review and challenge the 

effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements.

The information in this document confirms that in 2020/21 an adequate framework existed 

within Torridge District Council to ensure that effective internal controls were maintained. 

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in changes to the governance 

arrangements of the Council (see pages 8 & 9 for details). This included: the 

implementation of new technology to enable decision making bodies to operate; the loss of 

income streams impacting on the Council’s long term viability; an unavoidable breach of the 

Treasury Management strategy; the closure of key leisure facilities and the impact on 

contractual arrangements; pressure from the government to pay business support grants 

without the normal due diligence processes in place; preparing for elections in May 2021; 

and the general impact on service delivery to meet social distancing requirements.   

Throughout 2020/21 the Strategic Management Team ensured that wherever possible the 

Council’s governance framework operated effectively. This report sets out in detail the roles 

of Senior Management, Members, and Internal and External Auditors, in delivering effective 

governance arrangements in 2020/21.

The Statutory Finance Officer has taken account of the requirements of the CIPFA 

Financial Management Code 2020 and reached the overall conclusion that Torridge District 

Council is compliant with the principles of the Code. 

Three key issues have been identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous 

improvement in our Governance Framework. These are set in the action plan on page 18. 

3

Page 56



4

Our overall assessment is that this Annual Governance Statement is a balanced reflection of  

our governance environment and that an adequate framework existed within Torridge District 

Council to ensure effective internal controls were maintained in 2020/21. 

Through the actions referred to on page 18, we propose over the coming year to address the 

issues that have been identified, with a view to further enhancing our governance 

arrangements. These steps will identify improvements that are needed and we will monitor 

their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed: ……………………………………. Date:  ………………….

Councillor Hackett

Chair of Audit & Governance Committee

Signed: …………………………………... Date: ………………….

David Heyes

Statutory Finance Officer 

Signed: ……………………………………. Date:  ………………….

Steve Hearse

Chief Executive Officer

Signed: …………………………………... Date: ………………….

Councillor James

Leader of the Council

Approval of the Annual Governance Statement

Page 57



The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 

Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and 

Society of Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) 

Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 

Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This statement 

explains how Torridge has complied with the code and also how 

we meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2016, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an 
Annual Governance Statement.

A copy of the Council’s code 

is available on our website at 

www.torridge.gov.uk/governance

or can be obtained from: 

Head of Legal & Governance

Riverbank House

Bideford

Devon

EX39 2QG

The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good  

governance and describes the arrangements the Council 

has  put in place to meet each of these principles:

Torridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is 

safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The 

Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 

secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard 

to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 

including arrangements for the management of risk.

5

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement

C. Defining 

outcomes in terms 

of sustainable 

economic, social, 

and environmental 

benefits

E. Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 

including the 

capability of its 

leadership and the 

individuals within it

D. Determining 

the interventions 

necessary to 

optimise the 

achievement of 

the intended 

outcomes

G. Implementing 

good practices in 

transparency, reporting, and 

audit, to deliver effective 

accountability

F.  Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management

Identification of Key Governance Arrangements

Page 58

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12759/Corporate-Governance-at-Torridge


The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by 

which the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and 

accounts to the community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of 

its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 

appropriate, cost-effective services and outcomes. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to an acceptable level in accordance with our ‘risk appetite’ threshold. It cannot 

eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to 

provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control is based on an on-going process designed to identify, prioritise and manage the 

risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.

The governance framework has been in place at Torridge District Council for the 

year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of 

accounts. 

The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and 

managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The 

Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focussed upon its corporate priorities 

and seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Strategic 

Plan. The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, 

such as standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the 

barriers to achieving the Council’s objectives.

The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually through the Audit and 

Governance Committee. This last happened on 26 January 2021. Members and senior 

officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the 

Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  This task is managed 

by the Strategic Management Team (SMT) which is comprised of the Chief Executive 

Officer, the Section 151 Officer, the Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, and the Head of 

Communities and Place.

To achieve its vision/objectives the Council has designed systems and processes to 

regulate, monitor and control its activities. The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the 

controls in full.

Purpose of the Governance Framework

6

Code of Corporate Governance

Page 59



Code of Corporate Governance
(The Council’s commitment to good governance based on the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework)

Monitoring Officer
(Legal & Ethical Assurance)

Internal Audit
(Annual Audit Opinion)

S151Officer
(Promote & Deliver Good Financial 

Management)

Annual Governance Statement
(Confirms that the Council Meets Account & Audit Regulations and is published with the Annual Accounts)

Constitution

Code of Conduct

Scheme of 

Delegation

Complaints 

Process

Equality & 

Diversity

Financial 

Management 

Framework

Budget Monitoring 

Process

Compliance with 

CIPFA Guidelines

HR Policies

Pay Policy

Risk Management 

Complaints

Summary

Reports

Corporate Risk 

Register

Annual Audit 

Letters (External)

Local Government 

Ombudsman 

Report

Statement of 

Accounts

Standards 

Committee

Strategic Plan

Policies & 

Procedures

Business Planning

Business Continuity

Performance 

Results

Partnership 

Protocol

Audit & Governance 

Committee
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence. 

Approve the AGS)

Chief Executive

& Strategic Management Team
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence)

Key Components of Our Governance Framework

Financial & 

Contract 

Procedure Rules

Medium Term 

Financial Strategy

Treasury & 

Investment 

Strategy

Whistleblowing 

Policy

Personal 

Appraisals

Public

Consultations

Annual Audit 

Opinion (Int)

Quarterly Business 

Report

Scrutiny Committee

(Internal)

Manager’s

Assurance 

Statements

Scrutiny Committee

(External)

Committee Reports

Service

Risk Registers

Bribery, Anti-Fraud 

& Corruption Policy

7

Page 60



8

Impact of COVID-19 on Governance Arrangements

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on the Council’s day to day operations 

throughout 2020/21. Torridge’s Strategic Management Team worked with Lead Members to 

ensure that the majority of the Council’s services could still be delivered to its residents, whilst 

also facilitating the effective implementation of the the additional measures imposed by the 

government to minimise the impact of the pandemic on the local economy and keeping 

vulnerable members of our communities safe. This required changes to existing working 

processes and the rapid implementation of some new processes and this had a consequent 

impact on the Council’s governance arrangements. 

The Council’s main decision making bodies operate as public sessions. Such meetings were 

cancelled by the government in March 2020 and legislation was then amended to allow the 

meetings to take place remotely. Aware of the major impact on the Council’s decision making 

arrangements, Senior Officers and Lead Members held virtual meetings to agree and prioritise 

the necessary process changes. Some meetings were cancelled, including the 2020 AGM 

(Members agreed to continue the existing arrangements regarding the allocation of key 

Member roles) and Zoom technology (with appropriate training) was rolled out to all Members 

to enable decision making bodies to re-start from June 2020 onwards.

The Council was able to re-establish its full committee arrangements for the majority of 

2020/21 with a high level of public participation, and through a combination of scheduled and 

extraordinary meetings the Council's decision making arrangements remained effective. This 

is evidenced by the major staff restructure that took place during the year and the timely 

appointment of the three statutory officer posts by Full Council.   

The loss/reduction in some of the Council’s income streams, added to the additional costs 

associated with keeping communities safe and local businesses solvent, resulted in a major 

financial burden for the Council.

During 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer continually assessed the impact of COVID-19 on 

the Council’s long-term financial viability and provided regular updates to Members. 

Due to the large sums of money paid out to local businesses (funded by the Government) the 

Council’s Treasury Management Strategy counterparty thresholds (the maximum investment 

amount and the maximum holding with any single institution) were breached during the year. 

This was unavoidable as the Government paid the money directly to Torridge where it was held 

on account pending payment.

In line with the Treasury Management strategy these breaches were reported to Full Council.

Although no elections were held in Torridge in 2020, elections did take place on 6th May 2021. 

A great deal of work was undertaken by the Council to meet COVID-19 guidelines (e.g. 

regarding the safety of staff and voters) whilst ensuring that on polling day the elections were 

carried out in accordance with the democratic principles enshrined in UK legislation.
Page 61



9

The Leisure Contract between Torridge District Council and 1610 expires in March 2022 and 

under normal circumstances the Council would utilise the timeframe and opportunities for 

implementing the post 2022 arrangements for the district’s Leisure Services. These activities 

have been severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The issues have been exacerbated by the closure of the district’s main leisure facilities 

throughout 2020/21 and the dramatic impact this has had on the market place. 

Senior Officers have kept Full Council fully informed of the situation and Members resolved (in 

November 2020) that the Council would not enter into contractual dispute and to allow officers 

to work with 1610 to the end of the contract. An external contracted employee has been 

engaged to support the process. Senior Officers reported to Full Council in April 2021 about 

1610’s plans for reopening Torridge’s leisure centres in line with the government’s roadmap.

Minsters and Government Departments placed enormous pressure on Local Authorities to pay, 

on an agency basis, grants to local businesses to financially support them during the COVID-

19 pandemic. The grants had to be paid out in the absence of finalised government guidance 

(which was also often changing) and without the level of due diligence that officers would 

conduct in ordinary circumstances before making payments. 

It has already been identified that some grants probably would not have been paid had the 

Council had more time to manage the process in a normal controlled manner. Recovery action 

has commenced to recover sums overpaid and the Council is in contact with BEIS/MHCLG to 

establish the level of recovery action envisaged.

The social distancing requirements imposed by the Government meant that it was no longer 

possible for the Council’s officers to work in their normal environment. In March 2020 

Torridge’s IT team implemented arrangements to allow approximately 150 staff to work from 

home and gain secure access to the Council’s data and systems. This allowed many of the 

Council’s services to continue to operate as close to normal as possible.

Ten staff were furloughed between March and May 2020 and some officers were redeployed 

to keep services running and to maximise efficiency: Planning Support to assist with 

Business Rates; Democratic Services and Customer Services to assist with Waste and 

Recycling Calls and HR; Finance to assist with Parking; Parking to assist with HR; 

Environmental Health, Parking and Legal to assist with Waste and Recycling calls.

The Leisure services facilities have remained closed in 2020/21. Other services closed on a 

temporary basis or operated reduced services: Northam Burrows, Public Conveniences, 

Grounds Maintenance, DFG related works, construction projects, food inspections, and the 

Customer Service Centre.

9

Page 62



The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 

of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 

effectiveness is informed by:

✓ The work of the Strategic Management Team who have responsibility for the development 

and maintenance of the governance environment; 

✓ The Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by the Devon Audit Partnership; 

✓ Comments made by the External Auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates;

✓ The Audit & Governance Committee which reviews that the elements of the governance 

framework are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the governance 

principles. They also reviewed the system of internal audit and concluded it was effective 

and remained a key source of assurance for the Council in 2020/21. 

The Council’s Senior Managers have completed governance assurance statements for 

each operational service within their control. Each statements verifies for 2020/21:

✓ My service is aware of and is fulfilling its statutory duties;

✓ I have accurately maintained all service performance information; 

✓ Decisions taken are with due regard for the Council’s business objectives; value for money 

and service improvement; legality; financial implications; community safety implications; 

property implications; and business risk;

✓ All officers in my service have a copy of or access to the Council’s organisational rules; 

✓ I understand my duties and obligations with regard to maintaining the health, safety and 

welfare of my staff, suppliers, partners, third parties, and have implemented and maintained 

procedures to minimise the risk of death, injury or accident;

✓ All agreed actions arising from any formal review of the service have been, or are in the 

process of being implemented;

✓ I have evaluated the effect of any significant changes that have been made to this service 

and/or its systems and assessed and addressed any new risks that have emerged;

✓ I am aware of the risks associated with the delivery of my service objectives and I have put 

mitigating actions in place to counter risks and kept these under review;

✓ I am not aware of any fraud or irregularity (proven or suspected) that I have not already 

raised with either Internal Audit or the Chief Executive;

✓ I have regularly monitored my budgets and maintained oversight of those delegated to 

members of my team. Areas of concern have been highlighted at the earliest opportunity; 

✓ All resources at my disposal are deployed in the achievement of the Council’s business 

objectives. Use of resources is kept under review, seeking continuous improvement;  

✓ For any aspects of my service delivered in partnership, roles and responsibilities are clearly 

understood. Governance and performance reporting arrangements are clearly set out and 

monitored;

✓ Strategies and policies within my service area have been reviewed as necessary.

✓ I have reviewed the ICT Security Policy and all Officers & Members have signed up to it
10

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Governance

Role of Strategic Management Team

Page 63



Torridge’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of 

the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2015) as 

set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.

In 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer:

✓Ensured that the Council had in place regular reporting arrangements on its financial 

affairs. The budget for 2020/21 was agreed by Full Council in February 2020 and 

financial performance was reported on a quarterly basis to Members.

✓Updated the Contract Procedure Rules and the Financial Procedure Rules. These were 

approved by the Audit and Governance Committee and adopted by Full Council in 

February 2021 and incorporated in to the Constitution.

✓Managed the Council’s Risk Management arrangements. This included: chairing the 

Risk Management Group, maintaining the Corporate Risk Register, and reporting on 

risk management arrangements to the Audit & Governance Committee. Internal Audit 

carried out an audit of the Council’s Risk Management arrangements for 2020/21 and 

provided ‘Reasonable Assurance’ concluding that there was generally sound system of 

governance, risk management and control in place. 

✓Managed the payment of around 9,000 grants to local business support grants with an 

overall value of approximately £42M. The money was provided by the government with 

the stipulation that the monies received by the Council should be paid out to local 

businesses as quickly as possible. A combination of the government’s timescale 

requirements and changes to official guidelines meant that payments processes had to 

be implemented without the usual governance arrangements. A range of post-payment 

audit processes have subsequently been implemented and recovery actions initiated 

where appropriate. 

✓Ensured timely submission of data files to support the National Fraud Initiative as part 

of the Council’s ongoing commitment to preventing fraud and corruption.

Statutory Finance Officer

In 2020/21 the Statutory Finance Officer has taken account of the requirements of the 

CIPFA Financial Management Code 2020 and he has acknowledged the new approaches to 

Value for Money and the Council’s financial resilience. A significant amount of the Code is part 

of his team’s current activities and he has reached the overall conclusion that Torridge District 

Council is compliant with the principles of the Code. 

The Statutory Finance Officer has identified the Council’s long-term financial viability as the 

key risk area regarding future compliance with the Code and this is being assessed through a 

combination of: the budget setting process; the Medium Term Financial Strategy; regular 

reviews of the Council’s capital programme; and the provision of clear and regular financial 

updates to Members. 11

Page 64



12

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to look into matters of 

potential unlawfulness within the Council. In 2020/21 the Monitoring Officer:

✓Set up a Constitution Working Group. The Working Group reported to Full Council and 

the recommended changes to the Constitution were adopted in November 2020.

✓Reported to Full Council on the Remote Meetings Procedure Rules which were 

adopted for 2020/21.

✓Worked with the IPCO on an inspection of the Council’s RIPA arrangements 

(Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000). The inspection found there to be 

suitably strong governance processes in place within the Council to ensure compliance 

with the legislation and codes of practice.

✓Ensured that effective data protection processes remain in place across the Council: 

that officers/Members are updated on any new requirements (e.g. the Data Sharing 

Code of Practice), maintaining a breach register, and reported any information 

breaches to the Information Commissioner’s Officer (ICO).

✓Drafted a new Torridge Safeguarding Policy. This reflects the Government’s ‘Working 

Together, 2018’ document and the LGA’s ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ framework 

(2018)'. It strengthens the current safeguarding arrangements.  

✓Arranged two meetings of the Standards Committee (the Standards Committee 

monitored standards of conduct of Members in 2020/21 and advise the Council on 

probity issues). A specific review in 2020/21 centred around the Local Government 

Ethical Standards Report and their List of Best Practice Recommendations, resulting 

in updates to the Member’s Code of Conduct.

✓Reviewed entries made in the Register of Members’ Interest.

The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for reporting on the Council’s Governance 

arrangements and reporting any governance risks to Members. In 2020/21:

✓The Code of Governance was updated to provide assurance that standards would be met 

in key areas. The 2021 Code was approved by the A&G Committee in January 2021.

✓A supporting evidence database was maintained to provide current examples of how 

Torridge meets the governance requirements set out in the Code of Governance. The A&G 

Committee regularly review and challenge sections of the supporting evidence database. 

✓This Annual Governance Statement has been prepared to confirm the effectiveness of the 

Council’s governance arrangements. It will be challenged by the External Auditor and the 

A&G Committee and will then be signed off alongside the 2020/21 Financial Statement. 

✓The Code of Governance and AGS were published on the Council’s website.

Monitoring Officer

Page 65



In 2020/21 the Chief Executive ensured:

✓The implementation of any necessary changes to the Council’s governance 

arrangements in response to the national pandemic, to ensure that key services 

could continue to operate, vulnerable groups kept safe, and government grants to 

local business community were effectively administered (see pages 8 & 9 for details).

✓The adoption of the Council’s Strategic Plan for 2020-23. Following a series of 

Member/ Officer workshops, the draft Strategic Plan was subjected to a public 

consultation exercise. Feedback from the public consultation was reviewed and 

incorporated as appropriate. The Strategic Plan was formally adopted in Oct. 2020. 

✓That the Council’s Performance Management Framework operated effectively during 

the year. Monitoring information on key areas of performance was collated, reviewed 

and actioned. Performance management outputs were reviewed by the Strategic 

Management Team and the Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee.

✓That the Council’s Performance Management Framework be reviewed so that from 

2021/22 onwards it directly reports on progress towards the achievement of the 

actions identified and agreed in the Strategic Plan. 

✓The effective management of formal complaints received by the Council. In 2020/21 

the Council received 41 stage 1 and 16 stage 2 formal customer complaints. The 

service standard is 28 days and the Council responded to 88% of complaints within 

this timeframe. In 87% of cases it was determined that the Council was not at fault –

any learning outcomes from the complaints received were fed back and incorporated 

into changes in service provision. The LGO found no fault/maladministration in any of 

the cases they resolved concerning Torridge District Council in 2020/21. 

✓That the Council’s Equality Scheme was reviewed and updated to demonstrate to 

our employees, customers, visitors, contractors and partner organisations the 

Council’s drive to continue embedding equality into everything we do, as well as 

clearly stating how we are meeting our legal obligation of the Equality Act and the 

Public Sector Equality Duty.

✓That the Strategic Management Team regularly reviewed and mitigated the major 

risks facing the Council and identified/mitigated any emerging risks.

Chief Executive Officer

In the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement two significant issues were identified and 

included in the action plan: the impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s governance 

arrangements, and the lack of an up-to-date Asset Management Plan (AMP).

SMT have managed the impact of the pandemic on a daily basis and the impact on the 

Council’s governance arrangements in 2020/21 has been fully considered in this document. 

Due to the lack of appropriate resources, the AMP has not been updated. This action has been 

carried forward into this year’s action plan and the Chief Executive has reviewed the Council’s 

management structure and increased resources in the Property and Projects team. A new 

senior manager with responsibility for the Council’s asset portfolio is due to start in June 2021 

and one of the post’s first tasks will be to review and update the AMP. 13

Page 66



The Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee exercises its functions in respect of the

Council’s policies, decisions, performance framework and actions with an “inward

facing” emphasis.  The External Overview & Scrutiny Committee exercises its

functions in respect of the performance of partners and external public sector bodies

and Council services with an “outward facing” emphasis on the district.

Although Committee meetings were cancelled in the first quarter (as a result of the 

pandemic) the Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided 

challenge and has monitored the Council’s policies and performance in 2020/21. Lead 

Members have also kept issues under review during meetings with managers. There 

have been contributions, and input, from a range of stakeholders, including public and 

voluntary sector organisations, the public, officers and Members of the Council. 

Highlights have included: 

14

Role of Members – Scrutiny

Monitoring Reports from Key Partnerships and other External Bodies including:

✓ Citizens Advice P Community Safety Partnership

✓ COVID-19 - Economic & Social Impact P Devon Home Choice

✓ Encompass P Engagement with Local MP 

✓ Homelessness P 1610 (Leisure Contractor) 

✓ Petroc College/Providing Youth Employment P Play Area Open Space Strategy

✓ TTVS P Westward Housing

Officer reports on the following were reviewed and challenged during 2020/21, with 

recommendations made to C&R where required :

✓ Capital Programme P COVID-19 Homeworking & remote meetings

✓ Estuary Strategy P Ethical Investment

✓ Grounds Maintenance Contract P Income Generation T&F Group 

✓ MTFS P Quarterly Business Reports

✓ QBR T&F Group P Treasury Investment Options

Internal Overview & Scrutiny also ‘called in’ and reviewed a number of decisions 

taken by the Community & Resources Committee:

✓ The Burton - Sources and Funding Agreement

✓ The Covenant Renewal at the Hotel Site, Westward Ho!

✓ Outdoor Jet Ski Launching at Appledore

✓ Play Area Strategy – Maintenance Budget

✓ Temporary Free Car Parking Initiative

Page 67



15

The purpose of an Audit & Governance Committee is to provide assurance of the

adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control

environment, scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance to

the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control

environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

Highlights of the work role the Audit & Governance Committee in 2020/21 include:

Role of Members – Audit & Governance

Monitoring Governance Arrangements

✓Considered the Internal Audit Manager’s annual report and opinion, a summary of

Internal Audit activity, and the level of assurance it provided over the Council’s

corporate governance arrangements

✓Challenged, approved, and adopted the Code of Governance for 2021 and the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2019/20. They also reviewed and challenged 

the information held within the evidence database to support the Annual Governance 

Statement. 

✓Reviewed and approved updates to the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial

Procedure Rules. They also received a report on any agreed waivers to the rules 

during the previous financial year.

Approving the Council’s Annual Accounts

✓Reviewed and approved the annual statement of accounts. They also considered the

External Auditor’s report on issues arising from their audit of the accounts.

✓Considered the External Auditor’s annual letter and other specific reports.

Ensuring Effective Risk Management

✓Received regular updates from the Finance Manager on the Council’s Corporate Risk 

Register, and challenged the information held where appropriate. Reviewed and 

challenged a report from the Internal Audit Manager on the effectiveness of the Council’s 

anti-fraud and corruption arrangements.

✓Received and challenged reports of the works undertaken by Internal Audit and on 

progress on the completion of audit recommendations to mitigate any identified control 

weaknesses.

Page 68



Based on the assurance work undertaken by DAP in 2020/21, the Audit Manager has provided 

an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control framework which 

concluded that this was Reasonable.

The COVID-1919 crisis has placed considerable pressures on all local authorities, and this is 

true of Torridge. Many emergency actions taken by the Council during 2020/21 have had to be 

made quickly. As a consequence, system and control design of such decisions may not have 

been subject to the normal level of control. In their work DAP have sought to confirm that key 

controls continue to operate effectively to mitigate this risk. 

Due to the national pandemic the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) were unable to fully 

deliver the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. During the year officer time has 

quite rightly been focused on front line service delivery and supporting the wider 

community in dealing with COVID-19. As a consequence some audits have been 

deferred to a future year. 

DAP were still able to complete the majority of their audits which was mainly achieved 

via remote working. DAP also provided some additional audit work to provide 

assurance on the COVID-19 business support grants provided by the government and 

administered by the Council. In 2021 DAP published 16 internal audit reports to 

Members of the A&G Committee:

Where weaknesses or areas for improvement have been identified management have 

generally agreed these findings and have either agreed the recommendations or 

accepted the associated risks.  Agreed management actions are monitored and DAP 

undertake follow up work to ensure identified risks are mitigated. 

Role of Internal Audit

Substantial assurance Reasonable Assurance

✓Community Grants ✓Environmental Protection

✓Ethics & Values ✓Procurement

✓VAT ✓COVID-19 Business Grants

✓Council Tax ✓NNDR

✓ Income Processing ✓Risk Management

✓Creditors

✓Main Accounting Limited Assurance

✓Safeguarding ✓Housing Renewals

✓Benefits

✓Equality & Diversity

16

Page 69



The Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton) are required to report on the Council’s 

financial statements and provide an opinion that they:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and the Council’s 

income and expenditure for the year; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of

practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance with the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

Grant Thornton recognized that the  outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had a 

significant impact on the normal operations of the Council – the Council was 

faced with the administration of grants to businesses, closure of car parks with

the additional challenges of reopening services under new government

guidelines and facilitating testing. 

Restrictions for non-essential travel meant that both the Council and audit team

had to embrace new working practices, including use of video conferencing,

remote  access to systems to independently verify data extracts, and the need for

an increased level of flexibility.

In November 2020 Grant Thornton reported:

✓An unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual Audit and 

Inspection letter. 

✓That they were satisfied that in all significant respects the Council had put in place 

proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ending 31 March 2020.

✓That they were satisfied with management's assessment of use of going concern

basis of accounting.

Grant Thornton also provided:

✓Update reports to each A&G meeting, providing a summary of emerging national 

issues and development that may be relevant to the Council.

✓Housing Benefit Certification.

The Council’s 2019/20 financial statements were for a period which was mainly 

prior to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. Grant Thornton have 

highlighted to the Council the challenges and financial risks associated with 

2020/21 and 2021/22 and have recommended that the Council continues to 

refresh its Medium-Term Financial Plan to reflect the impact of COVID-19 and 

to ensure the financial challenges are fully known.

Role of External Audit

17

Page 70



18

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In concluding 

this overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, three issues have been identified that 

need to be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The 

aim is to address these weaknesses during the 2021/22 financial year, by way of an action 

plan for improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be 

subject to regular monitoring by the Committee.

Issue 

No.

Significant Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed

1 The existing Asset Management Plan 

expired in 2017. Work is underway to 

develop a new Plan; however this 

remains in its early stages. Without a 

clear approved Plan to provide 

strategic direction, the Authority may 

not make best use of its assets, which 

in turn may hamper the achievement 

of strategic goals and outcomes.

This action is carried forward from the 2019/20 

AGS action plan.

A new Asset Management Plan will be drawn 

up, approved and published. The new Plan will 

be aligned closely with the Authority's Strategic 

Plan to ensure it will support and help deliver 

strategic priorities over the short to medium 

term.

Estates Manager, 

due by 31 March 2022

2 Leisure Contract (1610) 

The pandemic has severely delayed 

the timeframe and opportunities for 

implementing the post March 2022 

service (when the existing contract 

ends). Members resolved not to enter 

into contractual dispute but to work 

with 1610 until the end of the existing 

contractual period.

Engage external contracted employee to 

support the process and report to Full Council 

with options or to engage

Action Complete

New arrangements to be agreed with Members 

and implemented to ensure service delivery 

post March 2022. 

Chief Executive Officer

due by 31 March 2022

3 Government pressure to pay grants to 

local businesses to provide support 

during the pandemic. The grants were 

paid without the level of due diligence 

that officers would normally conduct 

and some grants may have been paid 

which shouldn't have been.

Recovery action has commenced.

Finance Manager

due by 30 June 2021

Accountability and Action Plans 

Page 71



Agenda Item 15 

REPORT OF Section 151 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Non Compliance with Procedure Rules and Waivers 

Date: 27th July 2021 Reference:  

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:   To provide an update on any matters of non-compliance with the 

Contract and Financial Procedure Rules and on the Waivers approved by the Chief 
Executive and Section 151 Officer. 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the overall financial arrangements of the 
Council. Under the Financial Procedure Rules (FPR) and Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPR) he and the Chief Executive are able to authorise waivers when, as may 
happen from time to time, it is not possible or practical to follow the FPR or CPR. 
Those waivers approved since June 2020 are reported on. 
 

2. REPORT 

The process for waiving the Contract and Financial Procedure Rules was introduced 
in February 2011. It enables any of the rules to be waived provided the reason 
meets one of the four clear principles. The process was adopted in line with several 
other Councils. 
 
The FPR (and similarly the CPR) state: “Where officers consider that the Financial 
Procedure Rules cannot be followed then reasoned, considered and sensible 
solutions to everyday problems that may arise shall be applied. 

 
If the answer to one or more of the following questions is „Yes‟, the waiving of the 
Financial Procedure Rules may be considered: If the Financial Procedure Rules 
were to be followed to the letter………… 
 Life or Death – Is there a significant chance that the life or health of officers, 

members or the public will be put at real risk? 
 Increased Costs/Loss of Income - Will the Council incur significant avoidable 

costs or lose significant income (significant shall be taken to mean material in 
the sense that it is either material to the project, the service or the Council)? 

 Limited Markets – Would the Council be wasting its time obtaining quotations 
as supply of the product or service is demonstrably restricted to one or few 
businesses (or a select list is recommended by Central Government)? 

 Embarrassment – Would the Council be criticised for failing to act promptly?” 

 
There is a comprehensive procedure for obtaining a waiver which includes a 
standardised application form, the support of the relevant Senior Manager, challenge 
and verification by the Governance Team and final approval by either the Section 
151 Officer or Chief Executive. See Appendix A for an overview of the waiver 
process. 
 
The waivers approved up to June 2020 (up to waiver number 139) were reported to 
this Committee in July 2020. Those approved since then are set out in 
Appendix B (2020-21 Waivers, numbered 140 – 145).     

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 10



We analysed the waiver data for the past 8 years to determine whether there were 
any trends/areas for concern. 
 
The following graph shows that for the first 3 years there was a typical annual 
pattern, but this changed in 2015/16, with an overall increase of 10 waivers in 
2015/16 over the previous year, but 8 of these waivers related directly to the 
Transforming Torridge Programme. The subsequent reduction of the number of 
waivers confirms that waiver activity in 2015/16 was distorted by the Transforming 
Torridge Programme. 
 
The lower numbers of waivers approved in the past 3 years indicates that instances 
of non compliance with the procedure rules are being minimised and the waiver 
process is being utilised only when necessary.    
 

 
 
Focusing on 2020/21, the 6 waivers were raised for the following reasons: 
 

Reason for Waiver Number 

Rough Sleepers Initiative 1 
Re-opening the High Street 1 

Street Wardens – Summer Safe Scheme 1 

Summer Bedding Plants 1 
Accommodation Review 1 

Support for Leisure Options 1 
Total 6 

 
 

Waiver requests are reviewed independently and challenged before being passed for 
approval. In addition to this process, we also review waivers to the FPR/CPR on a 
quarterly basis and report on any areas of concern to the Chief Executive and 
Section 151 Officer.  

 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None 

Page 73



 
Financial Implications 
As set out above and in appendix B 
 
Human Resources Implications 
none 
Sustainability Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
Adequate controls are in place to ensure efficient application of the Financial and 
Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the FPR and CPR as set out in the Constitution.   
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance Committee, commented 
“Waivers are independently scrutinised and also come under scrutiny from respective 
Lead Members to ensure they were raised for legitimate business reasons, as set out 
in the Financial Procedure Rules. I am satisfied that in all instances the Council has 
tried to achieve a best value approach.”  
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

The Council‟s arrangements allow for efficient approval of waivers for all of the 
Procedure Rules provided they meet at least one of the four stipulated criteria. The 
Governance Team maintains a record of waiver requests together with any 
transactions which are required to be noted and any matters of non-compliance with 
the Procedure Rules.   
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Committee are asked to note that since June 2019 there were: 

 6 waivers approved by the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 Officer 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse 
David Heyes 
Cllr Philip Hackett 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

Chris Dobbs 

 Background Papers: 
 

Waiver records 

 
 
 
 

Page 74



  

Page 75



- 5 - 

APPENDIX A - WAIVERS OF FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES - 2020/21 
A précis of the details of each waiver request received are listed below together with dates of approval. 
 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r 

C
P

R
?
 

Applicant Reason 

W
h
ic

h
 R

u
le

?
 

R
e
p
o
rt to

 

C
o
m

m
itte

e
 

Date approved or note if rejected 

S
e
n
io

r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

ance
 

T
e
a
m

 

H
O

P
S

 o
r 

S
e
c
tio

n
 1

5
1
 

O
ffic

e
r 

140 

Rough Sleeper Initiative Funding 

Torridge successfully bid for £78,011 of RSI funding for 2020/21. This funding enables the Council to provide specialist support to those 
who are rough sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping and, with support from DCC, had included £28,688 for a 0.5 FTE Social Worker to 

work with rough sleepers across northern Devon. However, as part of its response to Covid-19 DCC has had to reallocate resource 

within adult social care and can no longer deliver these hours this financial year. 

 
In consultation with our Homelessness  Advisor from MHCLG, we recently submitted an initial plan to MHCLG outlining the next steps for those 
we accommodated in response to Covid-19 and for our wider rough sleeper service. We had the opportunity to set out how we could repurpose 
RSI funding for services that could no longer be delivered. MHCLG notified us on 3 July that they agreed to our plan for repurposing £28,688 for: 

• 0.4 FTE 'in-reach' accommodation support- £11,760 

• 0.4 FTE Housing First case worker- £10,920 

• A further £6,008 for temporary accommodation, bringing the total RSI funded budget for temporary accommodation to £15,508 (this 

funding is specifically for those not owed a statutory accommodation duty) 

 
Encompass Southwest have the skills and expertise to deliver the support hours detailed above, and subject to Torridge acting 

promptly, are able to start delivering with relatively little delay. A waiver is being sought on the basis that the Council needs to act 

promptly to repurpose funds because delivery is time critical both in respect of  there being an immediate need for the support, and 

there being a requirement to spend funds before the end of March 2021. A competitive process would delay delivery and limit the 

impact of this funding. Additionally, there is a limited market. Encompass Southwest are the only agency delivering the Housing First 

model across northern Devon and are the only agency currently delivering outreach to those who are rough sleeping or at risk of rough 

sleeping within Torridge. There is just one other supported housing provider operating in Torridge who could, potentially, develop 

outreach to this cohort but they would need to revise their business model. 

 
It should be noted that Encompass Southwest are already receiving £32,323 of RSI funding to deliver rough sleeper outreach this 

year. Also, a waiver was agreed in January 2020 for Encompass Southwest to deliver Streetwise for the next two years, which is 

the Council's homelessness prevention service for 16 and 17 year olds and care leavers. Streetwise is jointly funded by DCC and 

Torridge and the contract value is £32k per annum. 
 

F Helen Page Increased Cost/Limited Markets/Embarrassment 5.1.7 N/A 
SD 

06/7/20 
n/a 

CD 
06/07/20 

DH 
06/07/20 

P
age 76



- 6 - 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r 

C
P

R
?
 

Applicant Reason 

W
h
ic

h
 R

u
le

?
 

R
e
p
o
rt to

 

C
o
m

m
itte

e
 

Date approved or note if rejected 

S
e
n
io

r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

ance
 

T
e
a
m

 

H
O

P
S

 o
r 

S
e
c
tio

n
 1

5
1
 

O
ffic

e
r 

141 

Re-Opening High Street Safety Fund Town Action Plan 
 
Ben Stephenson's   (BAS Consultancy Ltd) proposal is focussed on two key elements; 

 

• Liaison with T.D.C. on the recovery plan currently being developed to develop context for Town Action Plans and understand 

overarching  strategy for Torridge. This is useful as a precursor to developing  the action plans for individual towns because these 

action plans will relate to each other under this broader context as well as playing to their individual and unique strengths. This 
element would draw upon: T.D.C. Recovery Plan; The IPM recovery framework and related guidance;  IPM Vital and viable reports; 

Other economic and social data supplied by the council; Discussion with key Councillors and officers 

 
• Engagement with the business and resident communities on the T.D.C. recovery plan and production of Action Plan for each town 

focusing on both immediate recovery and longer-term transformation. The work will include (for each place): 

a.   Interactive online workshop for up to 500 participants via Zoom 
b.  A smaller online focus group with invited stakeholders (or in-person where social distancing arrangements can be made by T.D.C.) 

c.   An in-situ analysis of recovery and potential for transformation 

This work will pick up where the Vital and Viable work left off and develop a set of deliverable recommendations  and actions. It will not cover 
any old ground and will be focused on the future of your towns. It is recognised  that proposals need to focus on low cost intervention and 

developing  local buy-in rather than local infrastructure. 
 

Ben's association with the Institute for Place Management, including as a High Streets Task Force Expert, means he has been developing 

guidance for local authorities and would enable us to tap in to wider recovery  planning. This also allows any work he does in our towns to 
have opportunities to be flagged up nationally as an area looking to support 

positive change and create great publicity for our areas. Having co-delivered  the Vital and Viable workshops in Torrington, Bideford and 
Holsworthy and spent time in the towns and speaking to businesses,  Ben has a clear understanding of the challenges facing each of the towns. 

 
We have already made significant steps out of lock down with the re-opening of the high streets and we are about to see significant changes 
in the coming weeks. The speed at which these significant milestones in our recovery are taking place highlights the importance of getting 

this expert action-planning  process underway to ensure we can maximise the benefits of the funding and opportunities this creates for our 

area. We have approached Bideford, Holsworthy,  Great Torrington  and Northam Town councils with the initial offer of this consultancy work 

and the response  to this opportunity has been positive from all bar Northam, whose town centres would probably be too small for this work to 

be effective. 

 
 
 

F Chris Fuller Embarrassment 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SK 
16/7/20 n/a 

CD  
20/7/20 

DH 
20/7/20 

P
age 77



- 7 - 

142 

OPCC Safer Summer Scheme 

The Safer Summer Scheme was developed peninsula wide by the Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Devon & 

Cornwall (OPCC). At the time, general lockdown was easing and as a consequence there had been high profile issues in coastal 
resorts such as Brighton where mass influxes of tourists had caused severe community issues such as antisocial behaviour, traffic 

congestion, fly tipping, littering and concerns regarding social distancing and covid transmission. The OPCC responded to thi s by 
quickly making available a funding scheme, which, as a Community Safety Partnership we felt would allay concerns in our „high 
risk‟ areas which for TDC was Westward Ho and Bideford.  

 
The turnaround between the fund being made available, its closing date and the expected operation of the scheme was extremely 

tight.  Notification of the scheme – 30th June with a request for expressions of interest to be submitted by the 2nd July; Deadline for 
bids 7th July; Approval of bid w/c 13th July (formally confirmed 20th July); Scheme start 20th July. Due to the short timescales and 
pressure to deliver the project, a single company – Red Elephant, were approached to provide costings for the bid and gauge 

availability for staffing over the summer. Red Elephant is an established local company providing a range of accredited staff for 
festivals, events and premises. They work a number of local events such as Ocean Fest and Bideford NYE, and provide SIA 

accredited staff to local premises such as Morrisons, and Pig on the Beach. As part of this they regularly work with the local 
authority and police. 
 

The Marshalls were given the summer scheme contract, to engage and educate the public regarding the Government‟s COVID -19 
guidance and restrictions and were also in place to reduce, prevent and detect anti-social behaviour within our community. The 

total amount provided by the OPCC covering Croyde, Woolacombe, WWH! and Bideford amounted to £53,342. The scheme ran 
until the end of September and has been positively received by the communities and agencies involved. The costs from Red 
Elephant in the end will be in the region of £40,000.00. Due to the time pressures during the formulation of the bid we were unable 

to follow normal financial procedure rules – there was an expectation from the OPCC and the police that we would apply for funding 
and if successful, that the marshalls would be in place in short order, and there would have been wider community impacts in 
failure to take timely advantage of the scheme which would have lead to the council being criticised for failing to act promptly. 

 
A waiver was not sought sooner as some confusion arose over whether TDC or ND would administer the funds and payment to 

Red Elephant. It has only been recently agreed that we‟ll be receiving the funding from the OPCC and arranging payments. 
Transfer of funds from the OPCC is currently being arranged. Apologies for any confusion or breach of process.  
 

F Janet Williams Embarrassment 5.1.7 
N/
A 

JWi 
1/10/20 

n/a 
CD 

2/10/20 
DH 

2/10/20 
  

P
age 78



- 8 - 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
?
 

Applicant Reason 

W
h
ic

h
 R

u
le

?
 

R
e
p
o
rt to

 

C
o
m

m
itte

e
 

Date approved or note if rejected 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it  

H
O

P
S

 
S

e
c
tio

n
 1

5
1
 

O
ffic

e
r 

143 

 
Summer Bedding for 2021 
 

Due to issues with the current Contract and Covid we need to ensure that the plugs for the Summer Bedding are ordered asap as they will 
not be ready in time for next Summer. The summer bedding for our parks is vital for the health & wellbeing of the local community.  The 
value of this order will be £7926.62 + VAT with free delivery and has been heavily discounted 

 

F Helen Bond Embarrassment 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SK 

19/11/20 
Yes 

CD 

19/11/20 
DH 

19/11/20 

 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
?
 

Applicant Reason 

W
h
ic

h
 R

u
le

?
 

R
e
p
o
rt to

 

C
o
m

m
itte

e
 

Date approved or note if rejected 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it  

H
O

P
S

 
S

e
c
tio

n
 1

5
1
 

O
ffic

e
r 

144 

 
Riverbank House Accommodation Review 
 
Background. 

As part of the post-Covid assessment and the Accommodation Review of the premises, (and taking account the feedback from the staff survey) 
works have been identified that will involve some remodelling of the parts of Riverbank House that were previously completed in the 2018 
Refurbishment. Much of the work involved will require input from the specialist contractors and consultants involved in the original 
refurbishment scheme. It will be advantageous to utilise the companies with the knowledge from the previous design and installation work. Fee 
proposals have therefore been obtained from the two main consultants involved – Highway Field Associates and W T Hills. The designs and 
schedules will then be used to negotiate prices with the specialist installers involved and obtain competitive tenders for the general works. 

Economic & Environmental Considerations. 

There is a need to press on with these works to enable the schedules of work to be progressed and prices obtained. The fee proposal from the 
architect is very competitive because of the tacit knowledge and electronic files that they will utilise for the design development. The costs 
associated with an alternative design company would be considerably greater. The fees from the cost consultant are competitive, but 
significantly higher than the architect, but represent the extent of work involved. The brief for the cost consultant included for the preparation of 

P
age 79



- 9 - 

a full cost plan for all works identified so that this can then be utilised as a menu to select the actual works required within the budget available. 
Should the scope of works be reduced W T Hills have confirmed that their fee will be reduced accordingly. 

The project team are unable to deliver the full scope of services in-house due to other post-Covid pressures. 
 
 

F Adrian Redwood Limited Markets 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SH 
16/1/20 

Yes 
CD 

16/1/20 
JW 

16/1/20 

 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
?
 

Applicant Reason 

W
h
ic

h
 R

u
le

?
 

R
e
p
o
rt to

 

C
o
m

m
itte

e
 

Date approved or note if rejected 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it  

H
O

P
S

 
S

e
c
tio

n
 1

5
1
 

O
ffic

e
r 

145 

 
Appointment of specialist support for undertaking management options appraisal for provision of leisure 
 

Members have instructed Officers to provide an options report for the future delivery of Leisure Services. To support the Council, a leisure 
management specialist named Gary Farnham had been contracted but he has recently informed the Council that he is no longer available to 
provide the required support. 
 
Following discussions with other Councils that have commissioned similar expertise, a company named Sport, Leisure and Culture 
Consultancy (SLC) has been approached to assist TDC 
 
The initial brief discussed with SLC focuses on the development of two core options: 
 
1: Management through a Local Authority Trading company (LATC) 
2: In-House Management. 

 
The TDC Requirement 
 
The Council needs consultancy support to assist the Council in fulfilling the following: 
 
1: To understand the financial implications of the two management models. This includes identifying whole life costs using the information from 
recently commissioned asset condition surveys 
 
2: To highlight the potential financial impact of Covid recovery for each management model. 
 
3: To identify non-financial implications of the different management models 
 

P
age 80



- 10 - 

4:  Provide an independent report to the Council to enable elected Members to understand the implications of the two management models and 
subsequently decide on the preferred management option from April 2022. 
 
It is recognised that the Council needs this project completing by middle of July 2021, thus there is no time for a formal procurement process. 
 
In designing their approach, SLC have considered the need to spend focused time on the study. The total fixed fee (excluding VAT) is £11,640 
including expenses based on 15.75 days of consultant time. 
 
Given the immediate requirement to progress the development of options to report to Members in July or August 2021, it is requested that 
authority is given to contract with SLC to provide support described above at the quoted price 
 
 

F Sean Kearney Increased costs/embarrassment 5.1.7 
Int 
O&
S 

SK 
15/06/21 

n/a 
CD 

15/6/21 
DH 

30/06/21 

  

P
age 81



- 11 - 

 
 

P
age 82



DRAFT 

STATEMENT

OF

ACCOUNTS

(unaudited)

2020/21

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



 

Narrative report   
 

     

Contents – Overview  
            

            Page 
    
1: Narrative Report        2-18 
 
2:  Annual Governance Statement     19-36 
 
3: Statement of Responsibilities         37 
 
Core Statements 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   38 

 Movement in Reserves Statement      39   

 Balance Sheet         40 

 Cash Flow Statement        41 
 
4: Statement of Accounting Policies     42-56  
 
5: Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted     57 
 
6: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies     58 
 
7: Assumptions about future and major sources of estimation  59-60 
 
8: Events after the accounting period       60 
 
9: Financial Statements 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements index      61 
 

Notes to the Core Statements     62-100 
 

Collection Fund Statement               101-103 
 
9: Auditor Opinion                104-107 
 
10: Glossary of Terms                108-118 
  

1

Page 84



 

Narrative report   
 

An Introduction to the 2020/21 Annual Accounts 

The purpose of this report is to provide the reader with an explanation of the most significant 

financial matters reported in the accounts. It sets out the overall financial position and details 

the Council’s financial transactions for the year ending 31st March 2021. 

1.1  Preface & Impact of Covid-19 

Torridge District Council is located within the northwest of Devon.  The district is divided into 16 

Wards and is predominantly rural.  The main towns are Bideford, Holsworthy and Torrington, 

with almost half of the population living in or close to Bideford/Northam and the remainder of the 

area is fairly sparsely populated. The district is officially classified as ‘Rural 80’, with at least 80 

per cent of the population living in rural settlements and larger market towns. The district 

comprises 984 sq. km (380 sq. miles) and has a high quality natural and built environment.  

The majority of land in Torridge is classified as green space, covering 95% (935 sq. km) of the 

district’s total area. The coastline, historic towns, nature reserves and Areas of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty are valuable assets. As quality of life and environment becomes an ever more 

important factor in choosing where to live, it is likely that population growth in Torridge will 

continue.  Reflecting its peripheral location and rural nature, Torridge is relatively poorly 

connected to major urban economies. There are no rail services within Torridge itself, with the 

nearest railway station being located in Barnstaple (about 20 minutes away by car) whilst 

Exeter and Plymouth are located over an hour away.  

Some major services such as further education and hospitals lie outside of the district. 

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) provided a population estimate for Torridge in mid-2019 

of 68,267. Torridge’s population is older than the national average, over 27% of the local 

population is aged 65 or over (National figure being 18.3%).  Between 2016 and 2041 

Torridge’s population was set to grow by 15.3% from an estimated 67,000 in 2016 to an 

estimated 77,300 by 2041. The age profile of the population is expected to shift dramatically 

with a real and proportionate increase in the oldest age groups over the 25-year period. 

Unemployment rates have been falling nationally over recent years but have been impacted by 

the Covid-19 pandemic. The level of unemployment in 2020 in Torridge was 4.4% ( up from 

2.4% in 2019) and is now higher than the South West figure (3.8%) and close to the national 

figure (4.6%) 

In 2020 there were 3,610 business enterprises in Torridge, with 91% of those enterprises being 

micro sized (0 to 9 employees).  

Amongst the services provided by Torridge District Council are the following:  

 Refuse Collection and Street Cleansing 

 Maintenance of Parks and Open Spaces 

 Processing Planning Applications 

2

Page 85



 

Narrative report   
 

 Environmental Health and Licensing 

 Collection of Council Tax and Business Rates 

 Housing and Homelessness Services 

 Processing Housing Benefit Claims 

 Provision of Industrial and Commercial Premises for rent 

 Processing Land Charge searches 

Impact of Covid-19 

 
The financial volatility with respect to the 2020/21 has been unprecedented as a result of the 

Covid-19 pandemic.  The Council has seen its income fall in areas such as: 

 Car Parking 

 Reduced income from short term treasury deposits arising from the reduction to the 

Bank of England base rate 

 Reduced capacity at the Council’s homeless hostels 

 Income from the rental of commercial premises (primarily office accommodation) 

The pandemic also created significant cost pressures for the Council. 

 Additional ICT spend to facilitate home working 

 Additional PPE and cleaning of the Council’s hostel, office accommodation and public 

conveniences 

 Additional support to leisure 

The financial year 2020-21 also saw unprecedented demand (and income) for the Council’s 

planning and land charges services. 

Central Government provided financial support throughout 2020-21 to Councils recognising the 
impact Covid-19 had upon their finances.  The financial support fell into three broad categories:
  
 

 General Covid-19 support grants £1.19m 

 Compensation for lost fees and charges (for Torridge this related primarily to Car 

Parking income); with Councils bearing the first 5% of any lost fees and charges income 

with subsequent compensation at 75p in the £1. £ 0.394m 

 New Burdens funding in recognition that Councils were undertaking additional burdens 

on behalf of central government, namely in the administration of business support 

grants, track and trace self-isolation payments and hardship grants. £0.395m  

The surplus reported for 2020/21 has arisen for a variety of reasons but the most significant 

contributory factor for Torridge is that the financial support provided by Central Government has 

exceeded the reduced income/increased expenditure arising directly from the Covid-19 

pandemvic. 

One of the key tasks Central Government has charged local authorities like Torridge with has 

been the administration of Business Support grants.  There have been various different Central 

Government grant schemes all with their own set of rules and guidance.  The majority of  

3

Page 86



 

Narrative report   
 

business grants paid out by Torridge Council on behalf of Government  (£41.7m) were in 

accordance with rules determined by Central Government.   

The income and costs associated with these grants are therefore not included within the CEIS 

or Note 3 – Expenditure and Income by Nature note, as the Council is deemed to have acted as 

an agent on behalf of Government in the administration and payment of these grants. The grant 

income from Central Government and the grant payments to Businesses are however included 

within the Cashflow statement and notes. The transactions pertaining to grants processed on 

behalf of Government in an agency capacity net off to zero, as business support grants 

processed are matched by funding received.  

In total Torridge Council paid our £45.6m in businesses support grants, the balance of the 

grants (£3.9m) being discretionary in nature where the Council could determine the rules  

pertaining to the grant amount and eligibility for payment.  These discretionary grants costs and 

the funding are included within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. 

1.2  Core Statements 

The core statements are comprised of 

 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

 Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) 

 Balance Sheet 

 Cash Flow Statement  

The purpose of each of the components is set out below. 

1.3.1 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The CIES provides a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the Council during 
the year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).   
Accompanying the CIES are two notes, which are not core statements but are given due 
prominence in accordance with the Code of Practice: 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis – Demonstrates to stakeholders how the funding 
available to the authority (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the 
year have been used in providing services, in comparison with those resources consumed or 
earned by authorities in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices. 
Additionally, it also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes 
between the Council’s various responsibilities areas.  
 
This analysis provides the link between quarterly reporting and is a reconciliation of the 
management accounting (budget monitoring) outturn per responsibility area to the Cost of 
Services in the CIES. 
 
 
 

 

4

Page 87



 

Narrative report   
 

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature - shows the surplus or deficit on the provision 
of the services included in the CIES, analysed by nature. 
 

For information the main functions contained within the responsibility areas shown on both the 
Expenditure Funding Analysis and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are 
detailed below: 
 
Chief Executive 

 ICT   Strategy, Performance & ICT 

 Human Resources, Communications and Customer Services 
Communities and Place 

 Development Control 

 Planning   

 Planning Policy 

 Economic Development 

 Building Control 

 Property Services 

 Major projects 

 Parking 

 Leisure 

 Waste Collection & Recycling 

 Street Cleansing 
Head of Legal and Governance 

 Elections and Corporate Governance 

 Legal & Land Charges 

 Revenues and Benefits 

 Democratic Services 

 Housing 

 Environmental Health & Licensing 
Finance (Section 151 Officer) 

 Finance 

 Internal Audit 

 Risk Management 
 
The Council changed its reporting responsibilities during 2020/21: 
 

 Removal of the reporting segment Strategic Manager (Resources) 

 New reporting segment Chief Executive 

 Property services previously included within Strategic Manager (Resources) moved to 
Communities and Place. 

 ICT, HR, Communications and Customer Services previously included within Strategic 
Manager (Resources) now included within Chief Executive. 

 Revenues and Benefits, Council Tax, Environmental Health and Democratic Services 
previously included within Strategic Manager (Resources) now included within Head of 
Legal and Governance 

 New Reporting Segment Finance (Section 151 Officer) previously reported within the 
Strategic Manager (Resources).   
 
 

5

Page 88



 

Narrative report   
 

Comparative information pertaining to 2019/20 has been re-stated to reflect this in the following: 
 

 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CEIS) 

 Expenditure and Funding analysis (notes 1 & 2) 

 Segment Reporting (note 4) 
 

1.4   Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement analyses the changes in the Council’s reserves over the year and clearly shows 
the real value of cash reserves held by the council. Reserves are classed as “Usable” i.e. those 
which may be used to provide services or invested in capital, or “Unusable” which must be set 
aside to meet statutory obligations. 
 
1.4.1 The Balance Sheet 

This statement is fundamental to the understanding of the Council’s financial position at the 
year end.  It shows all the balances and reserves available to the Council, its long term and 
short term indebtedness and the current and non-current assets employed in its operation.  

 

1.5   Cash Flow Statement 

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from the 

Council’s transactions with third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. 

1.6  Collection Fund 
 
This account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council, in its capacity as a billing 
authority, to maintain a separate Collection Fund for National Non-Domestic Rates (Business 
Rates) and Council Tax. It illustrates how these have been distributed to the various preceptors, 
namely: 

 Devon County Council (Council Tax and Business Rates)  

 Devon and Cornwall Police Commissioner (Council Tax) 

 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

 Central Government (Business Rates) 

 Torridge District Council (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

The balance sheet reflects only the Council’s share of any Collection Fund surplus or deficit. 

1.7 Accounting Policies 
 
This section describes the accounting concepts and policies adopted in the preparation of the 
accounts. The Council complied with all recommended accounting practices contained within 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, which is 
recognised by statute as representing proper Local Authority Accounting Practice. These  
principles provide the basis by which authorities present their net cost of services in the 
statement of accounts.  
  

6

Page 89



 

Narrative report   
 
1.8 Financial Performance 
 
The purpose of the narrative report is to provide commentary on the main financial highlights 

and to identify any significant events that may affect the reader’s interpretation of the Financial 

Statements. 

1.9 Revenue Income and Expenditure   
 
The Council’s 2020/21 net budget was £9.737m, funded from the following sources: 
 
Central Government Grant (including New Homes Bonus)  £1.530m 
Council Tax        £4.144m 
Business Rates (including Section 31 Grants)   £3.866m 
Use of reserves       £0.197m 

 
The 2020/21 outturn shows a favourable variance to budget of £771k for the year, arrived at 
through a combination of net savings of £3,757k and increased cost pressures of (£2,986k). 
The following tables analyse this surplus by nature and by responsibility area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7

Page 90



 

Narrative report   
 
 
 
 

The table below details the breakdown of the 2020/21 deficit/surplus across the Council’s 
reporting segments. 
 

 
  

Variance from Budget
2020-21 under / (over) 

spend - £'000

Central Government Covid-19 Support 1,974                                   

Staffing Related 614                                       

Planning & Building Control Income 514                                       

Refuse Related saving 333                                       

Contingency Budget not utilised 70                                         

Homeless Related costs 65                                         

Legal & Professional Fees 36                                         

Other Savings 151                                       

Subtotal - under spends 3,757                                   

Contribution to Capital/Maintenance Reserves (817)

Car Parkng Income (547)

Council Tax & NNDR losses (729)

Covid-19 related cost pressures (439)

Housing Benefit Subsidy (118)

Other monies set aside to reserve (87)

Interest Receivable (76)

Other costs pressures (173)

Subtotal  over spends (2,986)

2020-21 Outturn 771                                       

8

Page 91



 

Narrative report   
 
The surplus of £771k by responsibility area is as detailed below: 
 

 
 

The large budget variations in the Finance Manager area mostly pertains to setting aside 
monies to reserve to meet the deficit on the Business Rate collection fund, which is largely 
offset by additional Section 31 grant monies in the Funding service area. 
 
It is proposed that the 2020/21 surplus is utilised to meet costs associated with the Council’s 
Leisure service; for which the current contract with an external supplier ends on the 31st March 
2022, consequently £771k will be transferred to a Leisure reserve. 
 
1.10 Capital Expenditure 
 
The budget for the capital programme for the year 2020/21 was £11.105m  
 
During the year, capital expenditure amounted to £2.942m funded by a combination of capital 
receipts, external grants and utilisation of earmarked capital reserves. 
 
The key areas of expenditure are detailed below: 

 Disabled adaptations    £0.955m 

 Homeless Accommodation   £0.201m 

 Linear Defense Works Westward Ho! £0.383m 

 Visitor Centre Northam Burrows  £0.655m 

 New Vehicles     £0.238m 

1.11 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) details an overall deficit of 
£7.770m for the year; primarily due to an adverse movement on the valuation of the Council’s 
pension’s liability. 
 
A number of statutory accounting adjustments are made to the final accounts in order to reflect 
the final cash position. These entries are included in the Adjustments between Accounting 
Entries and Funding Basis under regulations captured in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
  

Service
2020-21 under (over) 

spend - £'000

Chief Executive 136

Head of Legal & Governance 318

Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) (5,182)

Head of Communities and Place 1,017

Funding 4,482

Subtotal 771

9

Page 92



 

Narrative report   
 
1.12 The Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement is the key to establishing the aggregate financial position of the Council, as it 
produces a summary of all the “cash backed” usable reserves that the Council holds. It shows 
that the Council’s usable general reserves increased by £6.810m to £16,802m during  
2020/21.  
The biggest contributing factors to the increased earmarked reserves balances being: 

 £3.928 being set aside for the 2020/21 deficit on the collection fund (Council Tax & 
NNDR), which because of collection fund accounting rules, will be realised in future 
years. 

 £0.763 being grant monies received in advance (Covid-19 Business Support) being set 
aside to reserve.  

 £0.771k being the 2020/21 surplus transferred to the Leisure reserve 
 
 
1.13 The Balance Sheet 
 
Notable items on the balance sheet are: 

 The overall Pension deficit has increased by £10.637m  

 Cash and Cash Equivalents have increased by £5.592m being due to Business 

Support grant funding received from Central Government yet to be spent. 

 Earmarked usable reserves have increased to £15.718m from £8.908, reflecting 

monies set aside to meet the 2020/21 deficit on the Collection fund, Covid-19 

grants received in advance and the Leisure Services costs. 

 

Including the above, the net assets for the period have decreased by £7.769m (Net worth 

£2.225m 2020/21 from £9.994m in 2019/20) 

1.14 Cash Flow Statement 

 
The Council had a net cash inflow of £5.592m during the financial year 2020/21, mostly 

explained by Central Government Grant funding for business support grants not spent by the 

Council as at 31st March 2021. 

1.15 The Collection Fund 

 

The financial highlights are detailed below 

 Council Tax - The Council Tax collection rate in 2020/21 was 97.3% (97.8% 

2019/20) 

 

The difference between the forecast level of council tax receivable and the actual 

outturn for 20/21 resulted in an overall deficit on the fund of £0.193m at 31st 

March 2021; of which 12% is due to Torridge Council, amounting to £0.023m. 

Collection Fund rules dictate that the Council Tax levied by Town and Parish 

Councils are included when allocating Torridge’s share of any surplus or deficit 

on the Fund.  The actual share of Council Tax collected for Torridge’s own 

purposes is circa 8.5%.  

10

Page 93



 

Narrative report   
 

 Business Rates - The Business Rates collection rate in 2020/21 was 95.9% 
(98.4% in 2019/20) 
 
The difference between the forecast level of NNDR receivable and the actual 

outturn for 2020/21, resulted in an overall deficit of £9.722m at the 31st March 

2021, of which 40% is attributable to Torridge Council, amounting to £3.889m. 

 

The deficit on the Business Rates Collection monies being due Government’s 

award of extended retail relief. The Council received grant compensation from 

Government for this lost business rate income in 2020/21. However due to the 

accounting rules pertaining to the business rate collection fund, the 2020/21 

deficit can only be realised in 2021/22. Consequently, the compensating grant  

monies received in 2020/21 have been set aside to reserve to be released in 

2021/22 to meet the aforementioned deficit. 

 

1.16 Pension Fund 
 

The highlights of the pension fund are: 

 Pension Fund assets have increased by £10.637m to £51.706m (£42.042m in 

2019/20) 

 Pension Fund liabilities have increased by £20.301m to £103.407m (£83.106m in 

2019/20) 

 The net deficit on the pension fund has increased by £10.637m to £51.706m 

(£41.064m in 2019/20) 

The latest Triennial review of the Council’s pension scheme undertaken during 2019 resulted in 
the Employer’s Pension contribution rate rising from 15.8% to 17.5% for 2020/21.  In addition, 
the Council made an annual contribution to the underlying pension deficit of £0.639m. The next 
tri-annual review of the Council’s pension scheme is scheduled for 2022/23.  
 

1.17 Treasury Activities 

The main purpose of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy is to:  

 Ensure the Council has sufficient cash to meet its day-to-day obligations. 

 Invest surplus funds in a manner that balances low risk of default by the investee 

with a fair rate of interest. 

As at the 31st March 2021, the Council held £7.001m of short term investments (per note 25) 
with Fitch 1 rated UK Banks and Building Societies. These investments generated interest 
receivable of £0.031m, which gave an average rate of interest of 0.24%. 
 
The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is reviewed annually to ensure that new 
and emerging risks are mitigated, and opportunities identified. 
  

11

Page 94



 

Narrative report   
 
1.18 Borrowing 

As at the 31st March 2021 the Council had a total borrowing of £0.673m, made up of four Public 
Works Board loans. The interest paid on these loans during 2020/21 was £0.041m, the interest 
rates on these loans being between 4.875% and 5.125%. 
 
1.19 Valuation of Property Portfolio 
 
The Council has instructed the District Valuer to undertake a full valuation of 20% of its asset 
portfolio as at 1st April 2020 and a desktop review of the remaining assets to ascertain a “true 
and fair” view for the 31st March 2021 balance sheet. The District Valuer reported no material 
changes to the 1st April valuations. 
  

12

Page 95



 

Narrative report   
 
1.20  The Council’s Strategic Plan  

 
The approved plan for the period 2020-2023 sets out the goals for the Council, under four 
themes, the four schemes adopted being: 
 
Theme 1 – Local Economy 
 

o Promote aspiration and growth to create a vibrant culture and thriving economy with 
quality jobs. 

o Develop town centres and the rural offering, recognised as great places to live, visit 
and invest into. 

o Create access to good quality jobs and employment, supporting businesses and the 
local economy. 
 

Theme 2  – Communities, Health & Housing 
 

o Increase the availability of quality homes that meet local needs. 
o Reduce health inequalities while promoting active and healthy lifestyles. 
o Maintain low levels of crime so people feel safe and secure in their communities. 

 

Theme 3  – Protecting & Enhancing our Quality Environment. 

o Reduce the eco-footprint of the district to meet the Council’s carbon neutral plan.  

o Deliver clean, well maintained, and managed streets, parks and open spaces. 

o Provide high quality planning and development services. 

o Reduce waste and increase recycling. 

o Manage coastal and flood defence to meet the challenges of the changing climate. 

 

Theme 4  – Our Council 

o Provide clear effective communication and be easily accessible. 

o Deliver quality services to business and residents, understand what matters to our 

customers. 

o Become more agile and commercial council, securing our financial future while 

support local wherever possible. 

o Be a great place to build a career. 

 
 
  

13

Page 96



 

Narrative report   

 

 

14

Page 97



 

Narrative report   

 

 

15

Page 98



 

Narrative report   
 
1.21 Meeting the Challenges – The Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
The Council’s Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved by Full 
Council on 22nd February 2021 identified funding challenges over the life of the MTFS, however, 
because of the decision made to increase both car parking and garden waste charges, the 
Council’s budget were was forecast to come back into balance by 2024/25:  
 

 
 
The MTFS recognised a series of risks and uncertainties both locally and nationally in the way 
the Council is funded, and the impact Government policy has when implemented locally. 
 
The key areas of focus brought to the attention of Full Council being: 

 The move to 75% Business Rates retention by 2022/23 

 The Fair Funding Review 

 The long term impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s income streams, such car parking, 
commercial rental income, short term treasury deposits 

 The replacement of the current New Homes Bonus Grant scheme 

 The increased reliance of the Council on Business Rates Income 
 

The MTFS report recognised that the projected funding for future years were subject to some 
key assumptions 

 Council Tax increases at the referendum level of £5 per Band D equivalent for the 
duration of the MTFS 

 Minimal growth in the underlying Business Rates base 

 Assumptions regarding future provision for business rate appeals 

 Salary increases of 0% 2021/22, 1% 2022/23, 2% for 2023/4 – 2% per annum 
thereafter. 

 No New Homes Bonus grant funding from 2023/24 

 Revenue Support Grant and Rural Sparsity Grant to continue at 2021/22 levels uplifted 
by inflation. 

 
The Council’s reserve levels are constantly reviewed in order to ensure that the Council has 
adequate financial resources to meet future uncertain financial pressures.  The Council has set 
aside funds into a Transition in Government Funding Reserve to meet in the short term the 
impact of the identified funding gap; the MTFS projected that there will be a balance on this 
reserve of £0.8m at the end of 2025/26. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16

Page 99



 

Narrative report   
 

The MTFS presented to Full Council on 22nd February 2021 approved a Capital Program for the 
period 2021/26 – 2025/26 of £26.2m, the categories of capital spend and the projected sources 
of funding are detailed below.  
 

 

 

 

Capital Program Summary 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Car Parks 351 80 80 80 80 671

Refuse Depot 7,000 - - - - 7,000

Disabled Facilties 1,308 500 - - - 1,808

Housing Related 794 150 - - - 944

Environmental Works 861 - - - - 861

Infrastructure 1,261 425 510 100 100 2,396

ICT 351 28 20 80 80 559

Regeneration 1,721 4,106 - - - 5,827

Vehicles 907 557 642 74 2,554 4,734

Culture & Sport 374 - - - - 374

Strategic Property Acquistion 994 - - - - 994

15,921 5,846 1,252 334 2,814 26,167

17

Page 100



 

Narrative report   
 
1.22 Future Uncertainty – Covid-19 Pandemic 
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on the Council, businesses and 
residents. In the immediate future as a result of the funding support provided by Central 
Government both in 2020/21 and 2021/22 the financial position of the Council is not an area of 
immediate concern. 
 
As foreign travel at the start of the financial year 2021/22 is heavily restricted, the Council’s car 
parks are busy with increased visitor numbers. However, in the longer term, the impact of the 
pandemic is less certain. 
 
Once international travel restrictions are lifted then it is to be anticipated that visitor numbers will 
return to pre-Covid levels and car parking income will reduce accordingly.  However it is not 
known what impact home working will have going forward on the Council’s income streams, 
notably:   

 Car parking income in town centre connected with commuters to work. 
 

 Income from the Council’s commercial properties, particularly office accommodation. 
 

 Business rate income, if commercial properties are empty then in the first instance the 
Council loses income by the award of empty business rate relief.  

 

 Longer term it is not known what impact business rate avoidance may have on empty 
properties; or if there will be a shift in converting office accommodation to residential 
which is financially less beneficial to the Council. 
 

 The extent to which interest rates (cut in response to pandemic) will bounce back is 
unknown. The lost revenue from short term deposits has been factored into the 
Council’s MTFS.  
 

The MTFS presented to and approved by elected members attempted to quantify the future 
impact of Covid-19 on the financial viability of the Council. Some key assumptions were made: 

 Council Tax collection rates would not return to pre Covid levels until 2025-26 

 Business Rate income growth would be flat. 

 Income from short term treasury deposits would take four years to return to pre Covid-19 
levels. 

 The additional cost of providing leisure services in a post Covid environment is 
estimated at £150k per annum. 

 Income from Fees and charges would remain as pre 2020/21 budget levels (after 
accounting for the increased car parking charges and garden waste charges).  
 

The full impact of the pandemic over the life of the MTFS is unknown, however, the Council’s 
relative financial strength should ensure that any solution that protects the whole of the sector 
will be sufficient to maintain its financial sustainability over the medium term.   
 

 

18

Page 101



 

   Governance Statement            
 
2. Annual Governance Statement  

 
 
 
 

19

Page 102



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

20

Page 103



 

   Governance Statement            
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

21

Page 104



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

22

Page 105



 

   Governance Statement            
 
 

 
 
 
 

23

Page 106



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

24

Page 107



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

25

Page 108



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

26

Page 109



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 
 
 
 
 

27

Page 110



 

   Governance Statement            
 
 

 
 

 

28

Page 111



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

29

Page 112



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

30

Page 113



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

  

31

Page 114



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

32

Page 115



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 
 
 
  

33

Page 116



 

   Governance Statement            
 
 

 

34

Page 117



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

35

Page 118



 

   Governance Statement            
 

 

 

36

Page 119



  

Statement of Responsibilities          
 

3. Statement of Responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, in line 

with statute the responsibility is held by the Section 151 Officer, who in this Council is 

the Strategic Director (Resources). 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets. 

 Certify the statement of Accounts. 

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts to present fairly the financial position of the Council in accordance with proper 

practices set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom (“the code”) at the accounting date and the income and expenditure for the year 

then ended.  In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 officer has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

 Complied with code. 

The Section 151 Officer has also  

 Kept proper, up to date accounting records and 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities. 

I certify that the statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 

of the Torridge District Council as at 31st March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the 

year end 31st March 2021. 

 

 

David Heyes 
Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer 
30th June 2021 

37

Page 120



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income Net Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income Net Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1,610 (9) 1,601 Chief Executive 1,679 (19) 1,660

20,358 (17,056) 3,302 Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer 18,136 (15,984) 2,153

2,593 (38) 2,555 Finance Manager (S151) 1,897 (13) 1,883

9,911 (4,781) 5,130 Head of Communities & Place 12,919 (8,751) 4,168

34,472 (21,885) 12,587 34,630 (24,766) 9,864

335 (330) 5 362 (384) (21)

12,592 9,842

1,241 6 1,471

728 7 851

(11,540) 8 (13,735)

3,020 (1,571)

(17) 38 11

(925) 47 9,329

(942) 9,340

2,078 7,770

Other

Subtotal

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure

Remeasurements of the net defined 

benefit liability

Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

Cost of services

Other Operating Expenditure 

Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure 

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of 

Services

 

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 

This section is a summary of our spending per our Reporting Structure on services and where we got the money from to do so.

2019/20-restated

Notes

2020/21

38

Page 121



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2019 1,084 10,870 127 12,081 (9) 12,072

Reset of balances due to roundings* 1

1,084 10,870 127 12,081 (8) 12,072

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services (3,020) (3,020) (3,020)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 942 942

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (3,020) (3,020) 942 (2,078)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations 5 1,058 1,058 (1,058)

Net Increase  /(Decrease) before Transfers to / (from) 

Earmarked Reserves 1,058 1,058 (1,058)

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 42 1,962 (1,962)
 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in 2019/20 (0) (1,962) (1,962) (116) (2,078)

Balance at 31 March 2020 1,084 8,908 127 10,119 (124) 9,994

 Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,084 8,908 9,992

 Held for Capital Purposes 127 127

General Fund Movement for the 2019/20 year 1 (1,962)

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2020 1,084 8,908 127 10,119 (124) 9,994

Reset of balances due to roundings* 1

1,084 8,908 127 10,119 (123) 9,994

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services 1,571 1,571 1,571

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (9,340) (9,340)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,571 1,571 (9,340) (7,770)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 

under regulations 5 5,239 5,239 (5,239)

Net Increase  /(Decrease) before Transfers to / (from) 

Earmarked Reserves 5,239 5,239 (5,239)

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 42 (6,810) 6,810
 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in 2020/21 0 6,810 6,810 (14,579) (7,770)

Balance at 31 March 2021 1,084 15,718 127 16,929 (14,703) 2,225

Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,084 15,718 16,802

 Held for Capital Purposes 127 127

General Fund Movement for the 2020/21 year 1 6,810

* Over time the roundings cause the MiRS to become out of sync with the balance sheet - this clarifies the impact of roundings in the interest of transparency

2020/21

Movement in Reserves Statement 

USEABLE RESERVES

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

2019/20

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to 

fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing 

the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts 

required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. The net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line 

shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

USEABLE RESERVES

39

Page 122



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Balance Sheet

2019/20 2020/21

£000 Notes £000

36,531 Property, Plant & Equipment 18 35,992 

1,219 Heritage Assets 20 1,219 

54 Intangible assets 21 481 

1,606 Investment Properties 22 1,630 

55 Long-term Debtors 23 141 

39,465 Non-Current Assets 39,463 

6,048 Short-Term Investments 25 7,001 

2,635 Assets held for sale 24 2,621 

2,933 Short-Term Debtors 26 8,986 

4,866 Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 10,458 

16,482 Current Assets 29,066 

(3,410) Short-term Creditors 31 (12,638) 

(551) Provisions 32 (1,038) 

(153) Short-term Borrowing 33 (191) 

(4,114) Current Liabilities (13,867) 

(674) Long-Term Borrowing 34 (483) 

(41,064) Pension Fund Liability 47 (51,701) 

(101) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (253) 

(41,838) Long Term Liabilities (52,437) 

9,994 Net Assets 2,225 

(41,064) Pension Fund Reserve 35 (51,701) 

(78) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (128) 

(236) Collection Fund Adjustment 36 (3,894) 

291 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 37 114 

15,084 Revaluation Reserve 38 14,679

25,879 Capital Adjustment Account 39 26,227

(124) Total Unusable Reserves (14,703) 

127 Capital Grants Unapplied 40 127

0 Capital Receipts Reserve 41 0

8,908 Earmarked Reserves 42 15,718

1,084 General Fund reserve 1,084

10,119 Total Usable Reserves 16,929

9,994 Total Reserves 2,225

This section shows our financial position at the end of the financial year.

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Interim Section 151 Officer on the 30th June, 2021

40

Page 123



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Cash Flow Statement

2019/20 2020/21

£000 Notes £000

3,020 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (1,571)

(4,070)
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements 44 (7,158)

2,096

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities (See note references)

44 2,569

1,046 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (6,160)

(2,652) Investing Activities 45 415

138 Financing Activities 46 153

(1,468)
Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash 

equivalents
(5,592)

Per balance sheet

3,398
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period
4,866

1,468 In year increase (decrease) in cash equivalents 5,592

4,866
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period
27 10,458

This section shows what cash we spent and received

41

Page 124



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 

4. Statement of Accounting Policies 

4.1 General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial 
year and its position at the year end of 31st March 2021. The Authority is required to prepare 
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to be 
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the “Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21”. 
 
For the 2020/21 the Council has made no changes to its accounting policies. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments.  
 
These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis and it has been assumed 
that the functions of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. 
 

Class of Asset Valuation Basis 

Property, Plant & Equipment – Land & 
Buildings 

Current Value, comprising existing use value.  
Where prices for comparable properties are 
available in an active market, properties are 
valued at market value considering their existing 
use.  Where no market exists or the property is 
specialised, current value is measured at 
depreciated replacement cost. 

Property, Plant & Equipment – 
Surplus Assets 

Fair Value 

Investment Properties Fair Value 

Financial Instruments – Available for 
Sale 

Fair Value 

Pensions Assets Fair Value 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measure date. 
 
Rounding 
 
Unless otherwise stated the convention used in these Financial Statements is to round 
amounts to the nearest thousand pounds. All totals are the rounded additions of unrounded 
figures, and therefore– from time-to-time – there may be small differences between parts of 
the Financial Statements and the strict sums of the figures presented in the text or tables. 
  

42

Page 125



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
4.2 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 
 
The resources available to the Council in any financial year and the expenses that are 
charged against those resources are specified by statute (the Local Government Act 2003 
and the 2003 regulations).  Where the statutory provisions differ from the accruals basis 
used in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, adjustments to the 
accounting treatment are made in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that usable 
reserves reflect the funding available at the year end. Unusable reserves are created to 
manage the timing differences between the accounting and funding basis.  The material 
adjustments are: 
 

Expense Accounting Basis in 
CIES 

Funding Basis in 
MiRS 

Adjustment 
Account 

Property, Plant & 
Equipment 

Depreciation and 
revaluation/impairment 
losses 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
cost determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 

Capital Adjustment 
Account & 
Revaluation 
account 

Intangible Assets Amortisation and 
Impairment 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
cost determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Investment 
Properties 

Movement in fair value Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
costs determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Revenue 
Expenditure funded 
from Capital under 
statue 

Expenditure incurred 
in 2020/21 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
costs determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

Grants that became 
unconditional in 
2020/21 or were 
received in 2020/21 
without conditions 

No credit Capital Grants 
unapplied Reserve 
(amounts unapplied 
at 31st March 2021)   
Capital Adjustment 
Account (other 
amounts) 

Non Current Assets 
Disposals 

Gain or loss based on 
sale proceeds less 
carrying amount of the 
asset 

No charge or credit Capital Adjustment 
Account (carrying 
amount) 
Capital Receipts 
Reserve (sale 
proceeds and costs 
of disposal) 
Deferred Capital 
Receipts (where 
sale proceeds have 
yet to be received) 

43

Page 126



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 

 

Expense Accounting Basis in 
CIES 

Funding Basis in 
MiRS 

Adjustment 
Account 

Pension Costs Movements in 
pension assets and 
liabilities  

Employer’s pension 
contributions 
payable and direct 
payments made by 
the Council to 
pensioners 2020/21.  

Pensions Reserve 

Council Tax Accrued income from 
2020/21 bills 

Demand on the 
Collection Fund for 
2020/21 plus 
recovery of 
estimated share of 
estimated surplus 
for 2019/20 

Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account 

Business Rates Accrued income from 
2020/21 bills 

Budgeted income 
receivable from the 
Collection Fund for 
2020/21 plus 
estimated share of 
estimated deficit for 
2019/20 

Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account 

Holiday Pay Projected cost of 
untaken leave 
entitlements at 31 
March 2021 

No charge Accumulated 
Absences 
Adjustment Account 

 
4.3 Accruals and Prepayments of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

 Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision 
of goods is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the 
service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed /received. 

 Expenses in relation to services provided (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than payments 
made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for 
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is impaired 
and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 A deminimus level of £5,000 is normally applied to any manual accrual adjustments. 
 

44

Page 127



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
The Council has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers in accordance 
with the Code, however this has had no material impact upon the Financial Statements. 
 
4.4 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
 
Expenditure on services and income relating to those services is classified within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK.  The 2020/21 code requires that authorities present 
expenditure and income on services based on their reportable segments.  These reportable 
segments are based upon the Authority’s internal management reporting structure. 
 
4.5 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  
 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluations, 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from 
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to at 
least 4% of the underlying amount measured by the adjusted Capital Financing 
Requirement). 
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
the Minimum Revenue Provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for 
the difference between the two. 
 
4.6 Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
and non-monetary benefits e.g. cars for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. 
 
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave e.g. time off in 
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees carry forward 
into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 
 
 
 
 
 

45

Page 128



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
4.7 Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service area within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
The cost is recognised at the earlier of: 

 the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or 

 when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring 
 
4.8 Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Authority are members of The Local Government Pension Scheme, 
administered by Peninsula Pensions on behalf of Devon County Council. The scheme 
provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as 
employees worked for the Authority. 
 
4.9 The Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Devon County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit method. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based 
on the AA corporate bond rate as required by the code.  

 The assets of the Devon County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 

 current service cost – allocated in the CIES to the service for which the employees 
worked. 

 past service cost – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the CIES as part of non-distributed costs  

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability - charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the CIES 

 
Re-measurements comprising: 

 the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions 
reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 Contributions paid to the Devon County Council Pension Scheme - cash paid as 
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense in the CIES. 
 
 
 

46

Page 129



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to  
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations  
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions 
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to 
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned 
by employees. 
 
4.10 Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
4.11 Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

 the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the CIES until the Council has 
satisfied any conditions attached to the grant or contribution that would require repayment if 
not met. 
  
The grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants 
and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. When it has been applied it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
4.12 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
 
REFCUS represents expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does 
not result in the creation of tangible assets controlled by the Council. Service revenue 
accounts have been charged on the basis of the benefit that the service received as a result 
of the expenditure, net of any capital grants received during the year.  
 
 
 
 

47

Page 130



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 

As the asset created is not owned by the Authority at the end of the accounting period, the 
expenditure, net of any capital grants received during the year, is immediately written off in 
full in the year of creation. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the 
REFCUS from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital  
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account, so there is no 
impact upon the level of Council Tax. 
 

4.13 Value Added Tax 
 
Income and expenditure exclude any amounts related to VAT as all VAT collected is payable 
to HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from it, except where the 
Council is unable to recover VAT. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
4.14 Exceptional Items 
 
When items of income and expenditure are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or  
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding 
of the Authority’s financial performance. 
 
4.15 Minimum Revenue Provision  
 
The Prudential Code requires that all capital expenditure is financed by a credit to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. If funding is not immediately available, then a Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) arises. 
 

Essentially the CFR has to be mitigated over time on a prudent basis by making a “minimum 
revenue provision”. This is a charge to the General Fund made from the “Adjustments 
between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations” and the Capital 
Adjustment account.\ 
 

The basis of estimation adopted by the Authority comprises three elements: 

 To make a minimum revenue provision of 4% on assets acquired prior to 1 April 
2008. 

 Finance leases have their capital financing applied on a straight line basis over the 
life of the lease contract.  

 New assets acquired after 1 April 2008 that are not finance leases, have their capital 
financing calculated on a straight line at 4%.  

 
4.16 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period the 
Statement of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category  
of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature 
of the events and their estimated financial effect. 
 

48

Page 131



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
4.17 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and 
Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively. 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or if the change provides more reliable or relevant information about 
the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or 
financial performance. When a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless 
otherwise stated) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the period as 
if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
4.18 Property Plant and Equipment  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  
 
Expenditure is treated as revenue in nature unless the expenditure exceeds £10k. However, 
where significant quantities of items are acquired at the same time e.g. personal computers 
or the expenditure is financed by capital grant, then it would be capitalised. 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost comprising: 

 the purchase price 

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset into the working condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 any costs attributable to dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located 

 
The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 
 
Certain categories of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured subsequently at current 
value (see 4.1 for details). Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued 
sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from 
current value at the year end; as a minimum a full asset revaluation is undertaken every five 
years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. 
 
 
 

49

Page 132



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the 
amount of the accumulated gains) 
 

 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, 
the date of formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that items may 
be impaired.  Where indications exist and any possible differences are material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying  
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment 
losses are identified, they are accounted for in the same way as revaluation losses. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all Property, Plant & Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community assets) 
and assets that are not yet available for use (assets under construction). 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
balance sheet (where Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES against any receipts arising from the 
disposal as a gain or loss on disposal. 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an 
Asset held for Sale. The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then 
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains or 
losses on sale are posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services.  
 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If assets no longer meet the criteria to 
be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and 
valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the 
decision not to sell. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as 
Assets Held for sale.  

50

Page 133



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
4.19 Heritage Asset 
 
A tangible heritage asset is defined as an asset with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally 
for its contribution to knowledge and culture. Where such assets are identified the asset is 
included in the accounts as a tangible heritage asset and shown separately from Vehicles, 
Property Plant and Equipment. If the asset was donated or acquired for less than fair value 
the asset is brought into the balance sheet at its fair value. The authority values heritage 
assets on the basis of insurance valuations. 
 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment 
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or 
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Authority’s general policies on impairment. Where an impairment loss 
has been determined, and a revised valuation obtained, the impairment loss is charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The charge is then reversed out and 
charged to the Capital Adjustment account. 
 
4.20 Investment Properties 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or the production of goods or is held for sale.  
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on 
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to 
market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
Rentals and expenditure in relation to investment properties are credited / debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and generally result in a gain for the General Fund 
Balance.  
 
However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory 
arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are 
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the MiRS and posted to the CAA and 
(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 
 

4.21 Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on assets that do not have a physical substance but are identified and 
controlled by the Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Authority. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they 
are therefore carried at amortised cost. 

51

Page 134



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over their estimated useful 
economic life and debited to the relevant service line within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an intangible asset is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
4.22 Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Property, plant and equipment held by the Council under finance leases is recognised on the 
balance sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s 
inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset 
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.  Premiums paid on 
entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Subsequent payments are 
apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – 
applied to write down the lease liability. 

 Financing charges and contingent rents (debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line within the CIES. 

 
Rentals paid by the Council under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense 
of the service benefitting from the use of the leased asset. Charges are made on a straight 
line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of the payments. 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is recognised in the 
CIES. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does 
not match the pattern of payments. 
 
4.23 Investments including Cash on Deposit with Banking Institutions 
 
Where investments are held at the balance sheet date they are treated as long term, if at the 
initial contract date, their term is more than twelve months. If, at the initial contract date, their 
term is more than three months but less than twelve months they are regarded as short term 
investments. All the Council’s investments are currently less than 12 months in duration and 
therefore classed as short term investments. Any cash and bank balances whose term, at 
their initial contract date is less than three months are categorised as cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52

Page 135



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
 
4.24 Collection Fund - accounting for local taxation 
 
The Council as a billing authority is statutorily required to maintain a separate agency 
Collection Fund account, into which all transactions relating to the collection of Business 
Rates, Council tax income from taxpayers and distributions to local government bodies and  
central government are made.  The Collection fund account is accounted for separately from 
the General Fund. 
 
Distributions of Council Tax Income, including Surpluses or Deficits are apportioned to the 
relevant precepting bodies in the following year, in proportion to each preceptor’s share of 
the Band D Council Tax.  
 
Business rate surpluses or deficits are distributed in accordance with the rules of the Devon 
Business Rate Pool (Devon Business Rate Pilot for 2018/19). 
 
Both Business Rates and Council Tax income will be recognised in the CIES included within 
the line on Taxation & Non-Specific Grant Income.  
 
As a billing authority, the difference between the Business Rates and Council Tax included 
in the CIES and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall 
be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserve Statement.  
 
Each major preceptor’s share of the accrued Business Rates and Council Tax income is 
shown within the Collection Fund Statement.  
 
Revenue relating to items such as council tax, general rates, etc. shall be measured at the 
full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses), as they are non-contractual, non-
exchange transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment 
dates. 
 
4.25 Inventories 
 
For the 2020/21 accounts the Council did not hold any material stock inventories 
 
4.26 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
at their incept mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in 
value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash 
management. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53

Page 136



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
 
4.27 Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council becomes party 
to their contractual provisions. They are initially measured at fair value. 
 
Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised costs. For the Council’s 
borrowing this means that the amount presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding 
principal repayable plus accrued interest. Annual charges to Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the CEIS are based upon the carrying amount of the liability 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
 
Financial Assets are measured in one of two ways: 

 Amortised costs – assets whose contractual terms are basic lending arrangements 
(i.e. they give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal or interest on the principal amount outstanding, which the Council holds 
under a business model whose objective is to collect those cash flows) 

 Fair value – all other financial assets 
 
Amortised cost assets are measured in the balance sheet at the outstanding principal 
repayable plus accrued interest. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the CIES are based upon the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective interest rate for the instrument. Any gains or losses in fair value that might arise 
are not accounted for until the instrument matures or is sold. 
 
Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated for amortised assets, applying the 
expected credit losses model. Changes in loss allowances (including balances outstanding 
at the date of de-recognition of an asset) are debited/credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

 
Changes in the value of assets carried at fair value (described as Fair Value through Profit 
and Loss) are debited/credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the CIES as they arise. 
 
4.28 Provisions 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES where an 
event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably 
requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain. Provisions 
are charged as the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation, taking into relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
4.29 Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the existence of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 

54

Page 137



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.  
 
4.30 Joint Operations  
 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the 
arrangement.  The activities undertaken by the authority in conjunction with other joint 
operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators.  In relation to 
its interest in a joint operation, the authority as a joint operator recognises: 
 
 

 its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly 

 its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

 its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

 its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation 

 its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 
 
The Council has an interest in another entity, the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls 
outside the accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint 
Operation. 
 
The joint operation is with our neighbouring authority North Devon Council and has been in 
existence and operated successfully since 1974. Torridge’s share of the assets, liabilities, 
income and expenditure from the Crematorium is 40%. 
 
4.31 Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate 
service in that year to debiting the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
CIES.  The Reserve is than appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non current assets, 
financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the Council; these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
The Council has approved a policy whereby the level of the General Fund balance should 
not fall below £1m, the current General Fund balance being of £1.1m. 
 
  

55

Page 138



  

Statement of accounting policies                      

 

 
4.32 Prior Year Adjustments 
 
As a result of changes to the managerial responsibilities during 2020/21 the financial 
statements for 2019/20 have been restated for comparison purposes. The changes to 
managerial responsibilities are detailed in 1.3. 
 
 
4.33 Rounding Convention 
 
Unless otherwise stated the convention used in these Financial Statements is to round 
amounts to the nearest thousand pounds. All totals are the rounded additions of unrounded 
figures, and therefore may – from time-to-time – not be the strict sums of the figures 
presented in the text or tables. 
 
  

56

Page 139



 

                                                                                                        
Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet Adopted    

 

 
5: Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the code) 
requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting 
change that will be required by a new standard which has been issued but has yet to be 
adopted by the 2020/21 Code. 
 
The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively 
unless transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures 
spanning two financial years. 
 
Accounting changes that are introduced by the 2021/22 code are: 

 Definition of Business: Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 

 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IRFS 9, IAS 39 & IFRS 7 
 

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic CIPFA/LASAAC deferred the implementation of IFRS 
16 leases in the public sector until the 2022/23 financial year, with an effective date of 1st 
April 2022. This will require lessees to recognise assets subject to lease as right of use 
assets on their balance sheet, along with corresponding lease liabilities. 
 
These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. 

57

Page 140



 

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies     

 

 
6.  Critical Judgement in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies laid out in section 4, the Council has had to make certain 

critical judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 

events. In these accounts these are as follows: 

Provisions 
Provisions made for Business Rate appeals are estimates made for the expected loss in 
Business Rate income as a result of successful appeals based on currently outstanding 
appeals dating back to 01/04/2010 and outstanding and expected appeals dating back to 
01/04/2017. 
 

Joint Working Arrangements 
 
The Council has an interest in the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls outside the 
accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint Operation as 
defined by the Code.  The Joint arrangement is with our neighbouring North Devon Council 
and has been in existence and operated successfully since 1974. Based on Historical 
population splits Torridge Council has a 40% share in the operation. Torridge’s share of 
balances pertaining to the Crematorium is incorporated within the financial statements. The 
financial operating position is considered viable and robust, which is reported to the 
respective Councils to the arrangement. The Council does not believe that there is a need 
for an impairment of assets in light of this arrangement.  
 
The Council has a number of interests in another entity “North Devon+” which falls within the 
group boundary of the Council on the grounds of control and significant influence in line with 
the Code. However the Council’s interests in aggregate are not sufficiently material to 
warrant producing consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and 
qualitative information. For this reason, group accounts are not deemed necessary within 
these statements. 

58

Page 141



  

Assumptions and Major Sources of Estimation      

 

 
7.   Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
 
The statement of accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made 
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimations are made taking 
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, 
because balances cannot be determined with certainty actual results could be materially 
different from the estimates. 
 
The items in the Council’s’ balance sheet at 31st March 2021 which have the greatest risk of 
material adjustment in the forthcoming year are as follows: 
 
 
 

Item Uncertainty Effect if actual different from 
estimate 

Property, 
Plant & 
Equipment 

Asset values are based upon market prices and are 
periodically reviewed to ensure the Council does 
not materially miss-state its non-current & 
investment assets. 
 
The Council’s external Valuer provided valuations 
as at 1st April 2020 for 20% of its operational 
portfolio, with the remaining 80% being subject to a 
desktop revaluation, both on a fair value basis.  
The valuations returned reported a reduction in the 
value of the Council’s portfolio of properties of 
£0.269m.  
 
 
 
 

A reduction in the estimated 
valuations would result in 
reductions to the revaluation 
reserve, and / or a loss 
recorded as appropriate to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure statement.  
 
The net book value of assets 
subject to potential revaluation 
is circa £34.350m. If the 
valuations on these assets 
were to reduce/increase by 
10% there would be a 
movement on the revaluation 
reserve of £3.435m 

Pension 
Liability 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The estimation of the Councils’ net pension liability is 
dependent upon several factors 

 Future Interest Rates 

 Life expectancy 

 Salary inflation 

 Expected returns on investments 
 

Devon County Council has engaged Barnett 
Waddingham as its consulting actuary to provide 
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 
 

A full actuarial revaluation is done on a triennial basis, 
the latest revaluation being undertaken in 2019/20.  
As a result of this revaluation the employer’s pension 
contribution rates rose to 17.5% from 15.8% 
 

On 23 March 2021, the Government published the 
outcome to its Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) 
indexation consultation, concluding that all public 
service pension schemes including the LGPS will be 
directed to provide full indexation to members with a 

Variations within the key 
assumptions will have the 
following impact upon the net 
pension liability. 
 
- An increase in 1 year in life 
expectancy would result in an 
increase of £4.983m on the net 
pension liability 
 
- A 0.1% increase to the salary 
costs would result in a £0.185m 
increase to the net pension 
liability 
 
- A movement of 0.1% on future 
interest rates results in a 
movement of £1.779m on the 
net liability, an increase 
resulting in a decrease to the 
net liability, whilst a decrease to 

59

Page 142



  

Assumptions and Major Sources of Estimation      

 

GMP reaching State Pension Age (SPA) beyond 5th 
April 2021  This a permanent extension of the existing 
‘interim’ solution that has applied to members with a 
GMP reaching SPA on or after 6th April 2016. 
 
The actuary’s valuation assumption for GMP is that 
the Fund will pay limited increases for members that 
have reached SPA by 6th April 2016, with the 
Government providing the remainder of the 
inflationary increase. For members that reach SPA 
after this date, the actuary has assumed that the fund 
will be required to pay the entire inflationary increase. 
 
The actuary valuation provided includes an allowance 
to reflect the Court of Appeal judgement in respect  
the McCloud and Sargeant cases which relate to age 
discrimination.  

 
On 16 July 2020, the Government published a 
consultation on the proposed remedy to be applied to 
LGPS benefits in response to the McCloud and 
Sargeant cases. The consultation closed on 8 October 
2020 and the final remedy will only be known after the 
consultation responses have been reviewed and a 
final set of remedial Regulations are published. 
 

future interest rates would 
increase the liability by the 
£1.746m 

Business 
Rates 

Following the introduction in April 2013 of the 
Business Rates Retention scheme the Council has 
been liable for a proportion of successful rating 
appeals. A provision is calculated based upon the 
best available information, including the latest list of 
outstanding appeals lodged with the Valuation Office 
(VO), analysis of past settled appeals, age of appeals 
and knowledge of issues pertaining to specific 
business sectors.  
 

For 2020/21 the Council 
revisited its approach to the 
NNDR appeals provision. 
Previously prior years 
information regarding 
successful appeals within 
Torridge were used to calculate 
the appeals provision. The 
2020/21 approach is to use the 
Valuation Office’s national 
estimate of successful appeals 
as a basis for calculating the 
NNDR appeals provision 

 

8: Events after the accounting period 

The draft statement of accounts was authorised for issue by the Finance Manager and 
Section 151 Officer on the 30th June 2021. Events taking place after this date are not 
reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place before this date 
provided information about conditions existing at the 31st March 2021, the figures in the 
financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material aspects to reflect the 
impact of this information.  
 

60

Page 143



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ASSOCIATED NOTES INDEX 

Item Note Page No

Expenditure Funding Analysis 1a 62

Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting 1b 63

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2 63

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 3 64

Segment reporting 4 64

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 5 65-68

Other Operating expenditure 6 69

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 7 69

Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 8 69

Grant Income 9 70

Trading Operations - Disclosure no longer required included for comparatives 10 71

Officers' Remuneration 11 72

Termination Benefits 12 72

Members Allowances 13 73

Related Party Transactions 14 73

External Audit Costs 15 73

Agency Services 16 73

Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing 17 74

Property, Plant and Equipment 18 75-76

Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluations 19 77

Heritage Assets 20 78

Intangible Assets 21 78

Investment properties 22 79

Long-term Debtors 23 79

Assets held for sale 24 79

Short-term investments 25 80

Short Term Debtors 26 80

Aged Debt Analysis Local Taxpayers 26a 80

Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 80

Financial Instruments 28 81-83

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 29 83-85

Operating Leases 30 86

Short-term Creditors 31 87

Provisions 32 87

Short-term Borrowing 33 87

Long Term Borrowing 34 88

Pensions Reserve 35 88

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 36 89

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 37 90

Revaluation Reserve 38 90

Capital Adjustment Account 39 91

Capital Grants Unapplied 40 92

Capital Receipts Reserve 41 92

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 42 93

Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 43 94

Cash Flow Statement  - Non-cash Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 44 94

Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

that are investing or financing activities 44 94

Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities 45 95

Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activites 46 95

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 47 96-99

Contingent Liabilities 48 100

Contingent Assets 49 100

Trusts 50 100

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account -  Council Tax 101

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates 102

Calculation of Council Tax Base 1 103

Income collectable from Business Rates 2 103

61

Page 144



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

1a

2019/20 - restated

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund not 

incl in reporting

Net movement 

on GF reserves

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure 

in CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (10,179) 10,179

Chief Executive 1,524 77 351

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 3,184 118 2,053

Finance Manager (S151) 2,467 (863) (1,530) 2,481 6,213

Head of Communities & Place 3,005 2,125 3,971

Other 2 3 5

Net cost of services 0 9,316 792 2,484 12,592

Other Income and Expenditure 1,398 571 1,968

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,672) (405) 536 (11,540)

Total 0 (958) 958 3,020 3,020

See note 1b See note 2

Opening General fund & Earmarked reserve balances (11,954)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year 1,962

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (9,992)

2020/21

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund not 

incl in reporting

Net movement 

on GF reserves

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure 

in CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (14,613) 14,613

Chief Executive 1,421 238 1,660 1,660

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 1,903 249 2,153 2,153

Finance Manager (S151) 8,683 (1,593) 7,090 (5,207) 1,883

Head of Communities & Place 2,605 1,563 4,168 4,168

Other (22) (22)

Net cost of services 0 15,071 15,071 (5,229) 9,842

Other Income and Expenditure 2,322 2,322 2,322

Taxation and non-specific grant income (17,393) (17,393) 3,658 (13,735)

Total 0 0 0 (1,571) (1,571)

See note 1b See note 2

Opening General fund & Earmarked reserve balances (9,992)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year 6,810

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (16,802)

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the 

funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year 

has been used in providing services, in comparison with those resourced, consumed or earned by the 

Council in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices.  The Expenditure Funding Analysis 

also shows how expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Authority's responsibility 

sections for reporting.  Income and expenditure accounted for under Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

62

Page 145



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the accounts

1b Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting

2019/20 - restated Fixed assets
Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other 

operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 10,179 10,179

Chief Executive 76 0 0

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 118 1 9

Finance Manager (S151) (1,512) (976) 95 (1,461)

Head of Communities & Place 2,124 1 1,379

Other (3) 5 2

Net cost of services 803 (974) 95 10,179 5 10,108

Other Income and Expenditure 1,968 1,968

Taxation and non-specific grant income (12,076) (12,076)

Total 803 (974) 2,064 (1,897) 5

2020/21 Fixed assets
Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other 

operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 14,613 14,613

Chief Executive 237 1 238

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 246 3 249

Finance Manager (S151) (1,963) 321 50 (1,593)

Head of Communities & Place 1,556 7 1,563

Other

Net cost of services 76 332 14,613 50 15,071

Other Income and Expenditure 701 1,621 2,322

Taxation and non-specific grant income (1,160) (16,233) (17,393)

Total 76 332 (459) 1 50

2 Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Capital

Net change for 

pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund
TOTAL

Funding Monitoring (536) (536)

Chief Executive

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer

Finance Manager (S151) (554) (1,947) 20 (2,481)

Head of Communities & Place

Other (3) (3)

Total (557) (1,947) 20 (536) (3,020)

Capital

Net change for 

pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund
TOTAL

Funding Monitoring (3,658) (3,658)

Chief Executive

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer

Finance Manager (S151) 6,565 (1,308) (50) 5,207

Head of Communities & Place

Other 22 22

Total 6,586 (1,308) (50) (3,658) 1,571

2019/20 - restated

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2020/21

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

This note recognises that statutorily the Council Tax payers are not to be charged with a number of charges, so these 

are removed through entries through the Movements In Reserves statement to arrive at the net surplus or deficit 

chargeable in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

63

Page 146



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the accounts

3 Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

1,626 1,822

525 Impairment charged to service 190

9,096 8,808

7,263 9,995

13,769 Housing Benefit payments 12,909

52 41

1,493 1,612

940 944

34 Pension administration expense 32

973 Employees benefit adjustment 332

1,564 956

115 Transfer of investment asset 102

37,450 37,743

(286) (173)

(9,298) (8,966)

(1,472) (997)

(2,927) (9,989)

(13,605) Housing Benefit Subsidy (12,654)

(6,578) (6,400)

(149) (32)

(115) (102)

(34,429) (39,313)

3,020 (1,571)

4 Segment Reporting

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below

2019/20 

restated
2020/21

£000 £000

(330) Chief Executive (5)

(1,427) Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer (1,201)

(4,778) Finance Manager (S151) (13)

(38) Head of Communities & Place (4,797)

(4) (384)

(6,578) (6,400)

Expenditure and Income

Parish Precepts

Pension interest cost and expected return

Revenue expenditure financed from capital source 

Total Expenditure

Depreciation

Other

Total analysed on a segmental basis

Income per Responsibility Centre

Employees

Expenditure

External interest payable

Net Investment Properties

(Surplus) / Deficit on the provision of services

Total Income

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Collection Fund income

External contribution to deferred charge write off

Government Grants

Income - fees and charges

Interest and Investment Income

64

Page 147



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2019/20

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,582 1,582 (1,582) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 552 552 (552) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (27) (27) 27 

Amortisation of intangible assets 43 43 (43) 

Capital grants and contributions applied (1,876) (1,876) 1,876 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,564 1,564 (1,564) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement 11 11 (11) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (45) (45) 45 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
(2,912) (2,912) 2,912 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds previously credited as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement from Deferred Capital Receipts reserve

214 214 (214) 

Transfer of in year cash sale proceeds credited as part of gain 

loss on disposal (6) 6 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (220) (220) 220 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (291) (291) 291 

Balance carried forward (1,405) (1,405) 1,405 

Usable Reserves

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

65

Page 148



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued ….

2019/20
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward (1,405) (1,405) 1,405 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,667 3,667 (3,667) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year. (1,720) (1,720) 1,720 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements (14) (14) 14 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statements is different from NNDR 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements 550 550 (550) 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. (20) (20) 20 

Total Adjustments 1,058 1,058 (1,058) 

Usable Reserves

66

Page 149



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2020/21

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,627 1,627 (1,627) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 214 214 (214) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (24) (24) 24 

Amortisation of intangible assets 195 195 (195) 

Capital grants and contributions applied (2,157) (2,157) 2,157 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 956 956 (956) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement 61 61 (61) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (43) (43) 43 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
(371) (371) 371 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 

Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds previously credited as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement from Deferred Capital Receipts reserve

291 291 (291) 

Transfer of in year cash sale proceeds credited as part of gain 

loss on disposal (121) 121 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (412) (412) 412 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (114) (114) 114 

Balance carried forward 224 224 (224) 

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Usable Reserves

67

Page 150



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued ….

2020/21
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward 224 224 (224) 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,066 3,066 (3,066) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year. (1,758) (1,758) 1,758 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements 58 58 (58) 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statements is different from NNDR 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements 3,600 3,600 (3,600) 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. 50 50 (50) 

Total Adjustments 5,239 5,239 (5,239) 

Usable Reserves

68

Page 151



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

6 Other Operating Expenditure

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

1,493 1,612

34 32

(286) (173)

1,241 1,471

7 Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

52 41

940 944

(115) (102)

(149) (32)

728 851

8 Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(5,437) (5,699)

(3,862) (3,268)

(1,837) (3,609)

(405) (1,160)

(11,540) (13,735)

Income & Expenditure relating to Investment Properties and change in fair value

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

Parish Council precepts

Pension Fund Administration expense

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non current assets

Total

Interest payable and similar charges

Non-ringfenced government grants

Capital grants and contributions

Total

Further details of specific grant income are shown in note 9

Interest receivable and similar income

Total

Council tax income

Non domestic rates

69

Page 152



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

9 Grant Income

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(131) (133) 

(474) (474) 

(1,189) (924) 

(1,586) (4,433) 

(8) (8) 

(58) (71) 

(405) (1,160) 

Covid Related Support Grants (2,070) 

(35) 

(3,886) (9,272) 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 Credited to Services £000

(13,605) (12,654) 

(224) (218) 

(70) (68) 

(223) (282) 

(9) (5) 

(17) (40) 

(37) (13) 

(119) 

(1,472) (997) 

Covid-19 Related Funding (567) 

Covid-19 Support to Businesses (3,903) 

(9) 

(95) (5) 

(15,762) (18,871) 

NNDR Collection

Leisure Contract Facilities

Total

Planning, Brownfield Register & Custom Build

Other (Miscellaneous) 

Northam Burrows 

Housing Renewal Capital Grants

Rural Sparsity Grant

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement

Revenue Support Grant

New Homes Bonus

Homelessness

Council Tax Collection

Grants Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Other

Individual Registration Costs

Transparency Code Grant

Capital grants

Section 31 grant distribution

Total

Housing Benefits 

Housing Benefit Admin 

Local Support For Council Tax Admin 

70

Page 153



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

10 Trading Operations Disclosure longer required

Expend- 

iture

Income (Surplus) / 

Deficit

Expend-

iture

Income (Surplus) / 

Deficit

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Planning & Development Services

955 (555) 400 Industrial Units and Managed Offices

80 (153) (72) Livestock and Pannier Markets

169 (79) 90 Harbours and Pilotage

Highways, Roads and Transport

866 (1,304) (438) Off-street parking

2,071 (2,091) (20) Total

2019/20 2020/21

71

Page 154



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

11 Officers' Remuneration

Remuneration Band Number of 

Employees

Left During Year Number of 

Employees

Left During Year

£50,000 - £54,999 2 1

£55,000 - £59,999 1

£60,000- £64,999

£65,000 - £69,999 1 2

£80,000 - £84,999

£85,000 - £89,999 1

£100,000 - £105,000 1

Officers' Remuneration

Officers Earning in Excess of £50,000

Post Title

Salary 

(Including 

Allowances)

Compensation 

for loss of Office
Expenses

Total 

Remuneration 

excluding 

pension 

contributions

Pension 

Contributions

Total 

Remuneration 

including pension 

contributions

Chief Executive (Statutory 

Post) 101,944         332                    102,276            17,840              120,116                

Legal & Governance 

Manager/Monitoring Officer  

(Statutory post) 65,264           328                    65,592              11,421              77,013                  

Head of Finance and Section 

151 Officer (Statutory Post) 55,362           332                    55,694              9,688                65,382                  

Head of Communities and 

Place 66,550           66,550              11,447              77,997                  

12 Termination Benefits

2019/20

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

£0 - £19,999 5 5 28,825

£100,000 - £150,000 1 1 112,135

2020/21

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

NO EXIT PACKAGES WERE AGREED DURING 2020-21

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other departures 

agreed

Total number of exit packages by 

cost band

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other departures 

agreed

Total number of exit packages by 

cost band

This table includes all statutory and non-statutory posts whose overall remuneration exceeds £50k excluding pension contributions and 

non taxable allowances.

2019/20 2020/21

In completing the 2020/21 Accounts we have complied with the statutory instrument regarding officer remuneration. The statutory 

instrument requires the individual naming of any officers with an annual salary of £150,000 or more and the post title of any officers 

earning £50,000 or more who occupy statutory roles or are responsible for managing the strategic direction of services. The Council had 

no officers earning more than £150,000 in 2020/21

Note - the amounts included in the two above tables are shown gross of any related tax which would be levied.

72

Page 155



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

13 Members Allowances

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

223 232 

18 2 

241 234 

14 Related Party Transactions

15 External Audit Costs

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

39 45

16 22

55 Total 67

16 Agency Services

Allowances 

Fees payable with regard to the annual audit fee

Fees payable for the certification of claims and returns

Other services

The Council acts as agent for Devon County Council, Devon & Cornwall Police & Crime Commissioner and 

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority in the collection of Council Tax and for Central Government in the 

collection of Non-Domestic Business Rates. The council also acts as agent for various Government 

departments and agencies in the distribution and collection of grant funding and welfare payments.

Fees paid to Torridge District Council's appointed external auditor, Grant Thornton, were as follows:

Expenses

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for 

providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the 

form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. 

Housing Benefits). Details of transactions with government departments are set out in note 9 relating to all 

grant income and the NNDR Collection Fund.

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have 

the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of 

these transactions allows readers of the accounts to assess the extent to which the Council might have been 

constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability 

to bargain freely with the Council.

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. The Council's 

constitution requires members to declare their interests in related parties in a register of interests. 

Some elected members are also parish councillors, details of the parish precepts are contained within note 6.  

The Council Constitution instructs members to exclude themselves when funding decisions are made regarding 

organisations in which they have declared an interest.   Officers of the Council are bound by the Council's Code 

of Conduct. Senior Officers (which encompasses all members of Management Team) are required to declare 

any related party transactions with the Council. No transactions have required disclosure.

In 2020/21 the Council made net payments of £808k  (Expenditure £374k - Income £1,183k) to parties in which 

members had declared an interest. Transactions with these parties amounting to over £50k are highlighted 

below.

Devon County Council (Expenditure £129k - Income £1,020k) 

Income includes £985k Better Care Funding Grants.

North Devon + (Expenditure £124k - Income £3k)

ND+ is a company limited by guarantee, joint owned between Torridge and North Devon Councils to facilitate 

Economic Regeneration. Expenditure includes £79k paid in respect of administering Covid 19 Discretionary 

grant schemes.

Police & Crime Commissioner (Expenditure £1k - Income £49k) Income includes £49k of 'Safe Summer' 

Grant funding.

73

Page 156



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

17 Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

1,125 1,080

3,438 1,961

15

7 11

1,563 956

(220) (412)

(1,876) (2,159)

(2,912) (371)

(45) (43)

1,080 1,037

45 43

Decrease/(Increase) in Capital Financing 

Requirement

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Plus Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under 

Statute

From Sources of Finance

 - Capital receipts applied

Sum from capital sources

 - Government grants and contributions

Sums set aside from revenue:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

Repayment of Prudential Borrowing

Explanation of movements in year

Use of reserves

Assets Held for Sale

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets 

acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital is to be 

financed in future years by charges to revenue for assets used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase 

in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority 

that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

74

Page 157



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - continued

Movements in Balances

2019/20
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 38,199 9,191 776 915 361 200 49,642

Additions 27                   507             -              0                    2,904                 3,438

Reclassification 1,634              -              215                (1,849)                

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (552) (552)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve

161 161

Derecognition - Disposals (395) (395)

Other movements in cost or valuation

At 31 March 39,469 9,303 776 1,130 361 1,255 52,294

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April (10,242) (6,700) (365) (52) (14,566) 
Depreciation charge

(528) (668) (31) (1,227)
Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve (355) -             (355)

Derecognition - Disposals 385 385

Other adjustments

At 31 March (11,125) (6,983) (396) (52) (15,763)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2020
28,344 2,320 379 1,130 309 1,255 36,531

At 31 March 2019
29,712 3,468 472 915 309 200 35,076

75

Page 158



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - continued

Movements in Balances

2020/21
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 39,469 9,303 776 1,130 361 1,255 52,294

Additions 97                   425             -              425                1,013                 1,961

Reclassification 770                 -              -                 (1,377)                (607)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (210) (210)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve

14 (4) 10

Derecognition - Disposals (128) (128)

Other movements in cost or valuation

At 31 March 40,012 9,728 776 1,555 357 891 53,319

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April (9,370) (6,006) (335) (52) (15,763) 
Depreciation charge

(558) (693) (32) (1,283)
Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve (348) (0) -             (348)

Derecognition - Disposals 67 67

Other adjustments

At 31 March (10,209) (6,699) (367) (52) (17,327)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2021
29,803 3,029 409 1,555 305 891 35,992

At 31 March 2020
30,099 3,297 441 1,130 309 1,255 36,531

76

Page 159



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

19 Property, Plant and Equipment

Revaluations

Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at Historical Cost 9,728 776 1,555 47 891 12,997

Valued at current value as at:

31 March 2021 39,884 310 40,194

30 March 2020

31 March 2019 128 128

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Total Cost or Valuation 40,012 9,728 776 1,555 357 891 53,319

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at current value is 

revalued every five years. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out by the District Valuer and Valuation Office. Valuations were 

carried out in accordance with methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors. Asset revaluations are based on a 20% full revaluation exercise as at 1 April 2020 and an 80% desktop exercise as at 

31 March 2021.

77

Page 160



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

20

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

Valuation

1,219 Balance at start of year 1,219 

1,219 Balance at end of year 1,219

21 Intangible Assets

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

Balance at start of year:

1,679 Gross carrying amounts 1,679 

(1,582)  Accumulated amortisation (1,626) 

97 Net carrying amount at start of year 54

0 Purchases 622 

(43) Amortisation charge for the period (195) 

54 Net carrying amount at the end of year 481

Heritage Assets

The Authority's accounting policies for recognition and measurement of heritage assets are set out 

in the Authority's summary of accounting policies (see 4.19).

The majority of Heritage Assets are held by the Burton Art Gallery. Many items are on permanent display 

whilst others are included as part of shows that take place during the year.  From 1 April 2016 the operation 

of the Burton Art Gallery was transferred to a Trust however the permanent collection remains in the 

ownership of the Council. Other assets, such as statues and war memorials, are located on open display 

throughout the District. 

The Council accounts for its purchased licences for software as intangible assets. All software is given a 

finite life based on the period that the software in the purchased form is expected to be of use to the 

Council. The useful lives vary from two to four years and are amortised on a straight-line basis. Service 

specific software is charged to the relevant service but non-specific software is charged to the ICT cost 

centres.

78

Page 161



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

22

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(124) (121) 

9 19 

(115) (102)

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

1,579        1,606             

27 24 

1,606        Balance at end of year: 1,630

23 Long Term Debtors 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

55 141 

55 141 

24 Assets Held for Sale

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

2,772 2,635 

7 Additions 11 

Reclassification

(144) (25) 

2,635 Balance at year end 2,621 

Total

Balance at start of the year

Revaluation

Sale of the Brunswick Wharf development has been agreed subject to completion of the necessary due 

diligence work.

Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investing 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or 

in the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The Council has no 

contractual obligations, either to purchase, construct or develop investment property, or enhancement. 

The investment properties are leased out via operating leases and are included in Note 30.

Investment properties are revalued annually and are recorded using their fair values. Fair Value being 

defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. All revaluations carried out are assessed and categorised in 

accordance with accounting policy. The Council's investment property revaluations have been assessed 

as Level 2 for valuation purposes. There has been no change in accounting policy for revaluation of 

investment properties during the year.  All valuations were carried out in accordance with the 

methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors.

Other debtors

Balance at start of year:

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments

Rental income from investment property

Direct operating expenses arising from investment

Net gain / (loss)

79

Page 162



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

25 Short Term Investments

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

6,048 7,001 

Short Term investments are lodged with UK registered financial institutions with a Fitch F1 rating

26 Short Term Debtors 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

443 543 

203 194 

50 177 

493 4,478 

Local Authority Preceptors 1,420 

218 Prepayments 206 

2,323 2,880 

3,730 Total 9,897 

Allowance for impairment of debt:

(114) Council Tax Arrears (138) 

(74) NNDR Arrears (118) 

(609) (655) 

(797) Total (911) 

2,933 Net current debtors total 8,986 

26a Aged Debt Analysis local taxpayers

Council Tax

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

169 205 

139 172 

135 166 

443 Total 543 

Business Rates

2019/20 2020/21

£'000 £'000

77 87 

82 64 

44 43 

203 Total 194 

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

4,490 10,071 

375 386 

4,866 Net Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,458 

Other Debtors 

Total

Council Tax payers

Business Ratepayers

HM Revenue & Customs

Government Departments

Over 3 years

Cash held by the Authority

Bank current accounts

Short-term deposits with financial institutions

Other debtors

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 3 years

Over 3 years

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 3 years

80

Page 163



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments Balances

Long term Current    Long term Current

£000 £000 Financial Assets £000 £000

Investments

6,048 Short term investment 7,001

6,048 Total Investments 7,001

Debtors

55 Loans and trade receivables 141

1,528 Debtors that are financial instruments 2,063

55 1,528 Debtors subtotal 141 2,063

1,405 Debtors that are not financial instruments 6,923

55 2,933 Total Debtors 141 8,986

Cash and Cash Equivalents

4,866 Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,458

4,866 Total Cash and cash equivalents 10,458

Borrowings

673 153 Financial Loans at amortised cost 482 191

673 153 Total Borrowings 482 191

Creditors

756 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,322

756 Creditors subtotal 1,322

2,653 Creditors that are not financial instruments 11,316

3,410 Total Creditors 12,638

The Loans and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of 

financial instruments:

2020/212019/20

The increased Debtors which are not financial instructments is due to business rate reliefs awarded in 

response to the Covid-19 panademic.The rules pertainng to the business rate collection fund obilige 

Torridge as the collecting authority to pay over business rates based on budget, rather than actual business 

rates collected. The increased debtor figures reflects excess business rates paid over to preceptors over 

and above the actual business rates collected.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

The increased Creditors that are not financial instruments is a combination of Business support grants 

monies received from Government which had not been distrubuted and Section 31 Business Rate grant 

funding due back to Central Government. 

81

Page 164



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments continued…

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

Expense in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

52 Interest payable 41 

52 Interest payable and similar charges 41

Income in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

(149) Interest and investment income (32) 

(149) Interest and investment income (32)

(97) Net (gain)/loss for the year 9

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure account in relation to financial instruments 

are:

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and 

creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The Council measures some of its financial 

instruments such as loans and investments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that 

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction takes place 

in either the principal market for the asset liability or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability. The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability 

using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 

market participants act in their economic best interest.

•  The fair value of short-term financial assets and liabilities including trade receivables and payables is 

assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is 

higher than their balance sheet carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is now 

lower than that obtained when the investment was originally made.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

With the adoption of accounting standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the "Available for Sale Financial 

Asset" category is no longer available.  The new standard requires that investments in equity to be classified 

as fair value through profit and loss. As Torridge does not hold any equity investments there have been no 

entries made through the profit and loss.

Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of cash flows that take place over the 

remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

• For loans from PWLB estimated interest rates in the range from 4.875% to 5.125% have been used.                          

• No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

• Where the instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to 

approximate to fair value.

• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

82

Page 165



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

28 Financial Instruments continued…

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

£000 £000 £000 £000

PWLB Debt 2 814 907 661 750

Other Loans N/A 12 12 12 12

Finance Leases

Creditors N/A 678 678 1,195 1,195 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,504 1,597 1,868 1,957

Cash and Cash equivalents 4,866 4,866 10,458 10,458

Long Term Investments

Money market loans< 1 year N/A 6,048 6,048 7,001 7,001

Trade debtors N/A 1,528 1,528 2,063 2,063

Total Loans and Receivables 7,577 7,576 9,064 9,064

Long term debtors N/A 55 55 141 141

29 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise 

potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out under policies in the 

Annual Treasury Management Strategy, which is approved by the Council. The Council maintains written principles for overall 

risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as; interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of 

surplus cash.

2019/20-restated 2020/21

Fair value 

Level

Level 2 Fair Value Liabilities 

The fair value of long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) of £0.750 million measures the economic effect of 

the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that would be offered for market transactions 

undertaken at the Balance Sheet date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value measures the additional 

or reduced interest that the Council will pay over the remaining terms of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB against 

what would be paid if the loans were at prevailing market rates. 

However, the Council has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB rather than from the markets. A 

supplementary measure of the additional or reduced interest that the Council will pay as a result of its PWLB commitments for 

fixed rate loans is to compare the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. If a value is 

calculated on this basis, the carrying amount of £0.661 million on the long-term loans would be valued at £0.750 million. But if 

the Council were to seek to avoid either the projected loss or to realise the projected gain by repaying the loans to the PWLB 

would raise a charge for early redemption in addition to charging a premium for the additional interest that will not now be paid, 

giving a discount for the reduced interest income that will be avoided.

•   Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest 

rate movements.

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

•  Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.

•  Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.

83

Page 166



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

29 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments continued…

Credit risk

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2020

Amount at 31 

March 2021

Historical 

experience of 

default

Adjustment 

for market 

conditions at 

31 March 2021

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at   31 

March 2021

£000 £000 % % £000

Trade debtors 1,664 2,241 7.9% 178 

1,664 2,241 178

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £5million cannot 

be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to 

each individual institution. A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there is no evidence at 31 March 

2021 that this was likely to crystallise. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers.  

The risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with banks and 

financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria as assessed by Fitch Rating Services. The Strategy 

imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution.

The credit criteria in respect of financial assets by the Council are:

  Maximum investment of £3 million.

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on 

the experience of the historical default over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.  

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

  Maximum investment of £5 million with any one institution.

  Minimum short-term Fitch rating of F1.

The Council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors, such that all of the balance is past its due date for payment.

84

Page 167



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

29 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments continued…

Liquidity risk

£000 % £000 %

Local Bonds 12 1.05 12 1.05

Public Works Loans Board < 1 year 153 5.00 191 5.13

1-2 years 191 5.13

2-5 years 279 5.00 279 5.00

5-10 years 191 5.13 191 5.13
Total loan value outstanding 826 673

Interest rate risk

£000

Impact (increase) on Income and 

Expenditure Account (131) 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The absence of a need to borrow will limit the 

exposure to interest rate movements on borrowing.  The Annual Investment Strategy recognises the current low level 

of interest rates. The treasury team monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year and adjusts exposures 

appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where circumstances make it favourable, fixed 

rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better returns.  

Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall.

Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of     Services 

will rise.
Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income or Expenditure. However, changes in 

the interest receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. 

The Council manages its liquidity position through cash flow management procedures.  In the event of an unexpected 

cash requirement the Council has ready access to borrow from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 

There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

The Council currently has no need to undertake significant borrowings to finance expenditure or replenish its 

borrowings. The maturity of the Council’s financial liabilities is as follows: 

Maturity Dates and Interest Rates

According to the Strategy if all interest rates had been 1% higher at 31 March 2021, with all other variables held 

constant, the financial effect would have been:

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in 

interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following 

effects:

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.  

                                   Maturity Date Due

2019/20 2020/21

85

Page 168



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

30 Operating Leases

Authority as Lessor

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

685 678

1,450 1,595

2,166 1,819

4,301 4,091

Authority as Lessee

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

73 52

103 74

247 253

422 380

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

Total

The Council is committed to making minimum payments under leases relating to the long term liability for 

the interest in property and land acquired by the Council.  The minimum lease payments due from the 

Council are made up of the following amounts:

The Council has a number of leases with various organisations for the lease of land and buildings, over 

periods of between 1 and 99 years. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non 

cancellable lease in future years are:

Not later than one year

Later than five years

Total

Later than one year but not later than five years

86

Page 169



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

31 Short Term Creditors

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

123 129 

220 9,529 

112 147 

127 0 

2,072 Other income in advance 1,510 

756 1,322 

3,410 12,638 

32 Provisions

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

503 NNDR Appeals 497 1,000 

48 Housing Bond scheme (10) 38 

551 Total at 31 March 0 487 1,038 

33 Short-term Borrowing

Balance Balance 

Maturity
At 31st 

March 2020

At 31st March 

2021

Date £000 £000

< 1 year

153 191 

HM Revenue & Customs

Government Departments

Collection Fund Income in Advance

Other Local Authorities

Public Works Loans 

Board

Lender

Total at 31 March

Other entities and individuals

Amounts 

used in 

2020/21

Unused - 

reversed

87

Page 170



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

34 Long Term Borrowing 

Balance Balance 

Maturity 2019/20 2020/21

Date £000 Lender £000

N/A 12 Local Bonds 12 

1-2 years 191 Public Works Loans Board 0 

2-5 years 279 Public Works Loans Board 279 

5-10 years 191 Public Works Loans Board 191 

674 Total loan value outstanding 483 

35 Pensions Reserve

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(40,042) (41,064) 

925 (9,329) 

(3,667) (3,066) 

1,720 1,758 

(41,064) (51,701) 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 

accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 

The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as the benefits are earned by the employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 

recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to 

meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the authority 

makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly 

responsible. The credit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 

benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. 

The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come 

to be paid.

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments 

to pensioners payable in the year

At 1 April

At 31 March

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of net defined liability

88

Page 171



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

36 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(21) (35) 

(14) 58 

(35) 23 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(279) At 1 April 271 

550 3,600 

271 At 31 March 3,871 

At 1 April

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council Tax 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements

At 31 March 

The Council Tax Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 

recognition of the Council Tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 

across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection fund

The £23k represents TDC's share (12%) of the overall Collection Fund Deficit of £193k at 

31/03/21

£3,889k  being the Council share of the NNDR deficit (£9722k deficit x 40%) see the Collection 

Fund Statement. 

(£18k) being surplus in income from renewable energy in 2020/21 which by statute is not realised 

until 2021/22

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is different from NNDR income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

The balance on this account is made up of two elements:

The NNDR (National Non Domestic Rate) Adjustment Account manages the differences arising 

from the recognition of the NNDR income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as it falls due from NNDR payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 

across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection fund.

89

Page 172



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

37 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

214 291 

(214) (291) 

291 114 

291 114 

38 Revaluation Reserve

 - revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

 - disposed of and the gains are realised.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

15,422 15,084 

696 435 

(679) (446) 

17 (11) 

(45) 

(355) (348) 

15,084 14,679 At 31 March

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

At 1 April

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash

Transfer of deemed sale proceeds credited to gain/loss on disposal in Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure statement

At 31 March

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non current assets but for 

which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements the Council does not treat these gains 

as useable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash 

settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

 - used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserve was 

created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals in Year

Transfer historic revaluation reserve balance in respect of Investment Assets to Capital 

adjustment account

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation

At 1 April

Upward revaluation of assets

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not posted to the Surplus on 

the Provision of Services

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the Surplus on the 

Provision of Services

90

Page 173



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

39 Capital Adjustment Account 

 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

24,197 25,879 

(1,582) (1,627) 

(552) (214) 

(43) (195) 

(1,564) (956) 

(11) (61) 

(3,752) (3,053) 

355 348 

(3,397) (2,705) 

220 412 

1,875 2,158 

45 43 

2,912 371 

5,052 2,984 

27 24 

Revaluation reserve movement iro disposed assets 45 

27 Revaluation reserve movements 69 

25,879 Balance at 31 March 26,227 

Opening balance adjustment -transfer from Revaluation reserve to CAA

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss 

on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

Transfer to Capital Adjustment Reserve iro of Prudential Borrowing

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 

Capital grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement that have been applied to capital financing

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements for accounting 

for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those 

assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of the acquisition, construction or 

enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to 

a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs 

of acquisition, construction or enhancement.

The account contains revaluation gains and losses on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date 

that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Balance at 1 April

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the 

General Fund

Use of the Unapplied Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

This note provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving 

the Revaluation Reserve.

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amortisation of intangible assets

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

91

Page 174



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

40 Capital Grants Unapplied

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

127 127 

127 127 

41 Capital Receipts Reserve

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(0) (0) 

6 121

(220) (412)

214 291

(0) (0)

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which 

are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set 

aside to finance historic capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that 

have yet to be applied for these purposes.

At 1 April

Capital grants and contributions applied

At 31 March

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account  holds the grants and contributions received towards 

capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require 

repayment of the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is 

restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and /or the 

financial year in which this can take place.

At 1 April

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure

At 31 March

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Repayment of Prudential Borrowing

92

Page 175



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

42 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

General Fund - Revenue 

Earmarked Reserves

Balance at 

31/03/19

Transfers 

In

Transfers 

Out

Re- 

classified

Balance at 

31/03/20

Transfers 

In

Transfers 

Out

Re- 

classified

Balance at 

31/03/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Backlog maintenance 207 80 (132) 155 330 (94) 391

Section 215 Notices 111 111 111

Planning Appeals 113 20 (35) 98 20 118

Business Support 194 194 194

Transition in Government Funding 495 151 (34) 612 (196) 792 1,208

Project reserve 154 154

Homesslessness (104) 211 107

Leisure 771 771

Various future Commitment 

reserves (<£100k) 1,453 226 (435) 1,244 258 (165) (365) 972

Other earmarked reserves

Local Plan Inquiry 296 296 296

Collection Fund Timing 792 792 3,929 (792) 3,929

Covid-19 Grants RIA 763 763

Total 3,662 478 (637) 3,502 6,070 (560) 9,012

Capital Reserves

Crematorium 257 37 293 59 352

Capital Scheme Funding Reserve 6,536 289 (2,195) 4,629 762 5,392

General Vehicle Replacement 554 (294) 260 554 (221) 593

General Equipment Including IT 214 100 (314) 241 (80) 161

Total 7,007 980 (2,804) 5,183 1,616 (301) 6,498

Section 106 Reserves

Commuted Sums 186 44 (22) 207 (15) 192

S106 Revenue 16 (0) 16 16

Total 202 44 (22) 223 (15) 208

Total Earmarked Reserves 10,870 1,501 (3,463) 8,908 7,687 (877) 15,718

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and 

the amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund Expenditure.

Revenue reserves

  Backlog aintenance Reserve ill be used to undertake outstanding repairs to Property, Plant and Equipment. 

  Section 215 Notices Reserve to fund a Planning Act hich can enforce buildings  land to be cleaned up hen the condition adversely affects the 

area

  Planning Appeals Reserve is to meet the costs of defendingsettling planning appeals.

  Business Support Reserve - grants to support Small Business Entrepreneurs to employ additional staff and economic regeneration

  Transition in Government Funding Reserve ill be utilsied to meet funding shortfalls, until savings or additional revenue streams are identified to 

bring the budgets back into balance 

  Project Reserve is to fund various economic development project costs

  Homeless Reserve to fund additional staff as required

  Leisure Reserve to meet the costs associated ith a backlog of maintenance and mobilisation costs associated ith future delivery of leisure 

services 

  Local Plan Inquiry Reserve is to meet the costs associated ith revising the local plan. 

  NNR  Council Tax Reserve to meet 202021 deficits hich under Collection Fund Acccounting rules can only be realised in subsequent years

  Covid-19 Grants RIA reserve to cover Government grants paid ahead of spend spanning the year end here TC is acting as principal.  these 

grants are reflected in Creditors as Government Grant creditors

Capital Reserves have been generated from revenue income, but are to meet future capital expenditure.

S106 Reserves are contributions that the Council has received from developers for specific purposes and have been set aside to fund specific 

expenditure or projects in future years.

This section shos movements in these reserves

93

Page 176



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

43 Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(149) (32) 

52 41 

(97) 9 

44

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(1,582) (1,627) 

(43) (195) 

(552) (214) 

(649) (9,228) 

812 6,138 

(11) (61) 

(1,947) (1,308) 

(185) (487) 

88 (176) 

(4,070) (7,158) 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

220 412 

1,876 2,157 

2,096 2,569 

Capital grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services

Other adjustments

Depreciation 

Amortisation

Impairments & downward revaluations

(Increase) / Decrease in creditors

Increase / (Decrease) in debtors

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

Pension liability reversal

Items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are 

investing and financing activities

Interest received

Interest paid

Cash Flow statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing or financing activities

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets

Cash Flow Statement - Non Cash Adjustments to the surplus or deficit on provision 

of services

Change in provisions

94

Page 177



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

45 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

3,131 783 

7,000 22,000 

(220) (412) 

(11,000) (21,000) 

(1,564) (956) 

(2,652) 415 

46 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

138 153 

138 153 Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 

and Intangible assets

Purchase of short-term investments

Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

PWLB debt repayment

Proceeds of short-term investments 

Other receipts from investing activities

95

Page 178



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

47 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Participation in the Pension Scheme

Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by 

employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council is 

required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement 

benefits is reversed out in the note titled Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations (AABFBR). The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and 

the AABFBR:

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under 

which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension 

liabilities.

Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement .

All of the pension figures included in the 2020/21 Accounts are prepared in accordance with International 

Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19). This complies with all generic Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) and the 

Pensions TAS. The data provided by the Pension Fund's Actuary (Barnett Waddingham) also fully complies with 

their understanding of Financial Reporting Standard 17 and International Financial Reporting Standards.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council offers retirement benefits. Although 

these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the 

payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Devon County 

Council - this is a (defined benefit scheme) and is fully funded, meaning that the Council and its employees pay 

contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with the investment 

assets. Governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions committee of Devon County Council. 

Policy is determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations. 

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 

scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, 

bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain 

extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund  the amounts required by statute as 

described in the accounting policies note.

This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. 

There are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet 

actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

96

Page 179



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

47 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…

 2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21 

£000 £000 £000 £000

81,765      102,020        1,341        1,387          

(42,042)    (51,706)         

39,723      50,314          1,341        1,387          

39,723      50,314          1,341        1,387          

Pension Statement

 Scheme 

Assets 

 Pension 

Obligation 

 Net 

Pension 

Liability 

 Scheme 

Assets 

 Pension 

Obligation 

 Net 

Pension 

Liability 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

46,598 (86,640) (40,042) 42,042 (83,106) (41,064) 

(2,172) (2,172) (2,090) (2,090) 

(521) -521

(2,693) (2,693) (2,090) (2,090) 

1,111 (2,051) (940) 977 (1,921) (944) 

(34) (34) (32) (32) 

1,077 (4,744) (3,667) 945 (4,011) (3,066) 

(4,903) (4,903) 9,624 9,624 

(80) 8,780 8,700 (20,045) (20,045) 

(2,872) (2,872) 1,092 1,092 

(4,983) 5,908 925 9,624 (18,953) (9,329) 

354 (354) 373 (373) 

1,629 1,629 1,758 1,758 

91 91 87 87 

2,074 (354) 1,720 2,218 (373) 1,845 

(2,633) 2,633 (3,036) 2,949 (87) 

(91) 91 (87) 87 

(2,724) 2,724 (3,123) 3,036 (87) 

42,042 (83,106) (41,064) 51,706 (103,407) (51,701)

Interest income & expenses

2019/20

Opening Balance 1st April

Prior year adjustments to opening 

balance

Current service cost

Past service costs

CIES - Net Cost of Services

Closing Balance as at 31 March

Remeasurement of net Defined 

Liability-CIES

Employers' contributions payable to 

the scheme

Reversal of Retirement Benefit

Contributions

Re-measurements

Actuarial gains and losses arising on 

changes in demographic and financial 

assumptions

Other actuarial gains & losses

Return on plan assets

Retirement grants and pensions

  Funded Payments

  Unfunded Payments

  Net payments

2020/21

Other movements in the liability (asset)

Net liability from defined benefit 

obligation

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Present value of the defined benefit 

obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Sub-total

Admin Expenses

   Employee Contributions

   Employer (Council) Contributions

   Employer (Council) Contributions                      

unfunded

    Accrual of Pension Strain payment

97

Page 180



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

47 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

 2019/20  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21 

22.9 22.6 22.9 22.6

24.1 23.9 24.1 23.9

24.3 24.0 24.3 24.0

25.5 25.4 25.5 25.4

2.70% 3.20% 2.70% 3.20%

1.90% 2.80% 1.90% 2.80%

2.90% 3.80% 2.90% 3.80%

1.90% 2.80% 1.90% 2.80%

2.35% 2.00% 2.35% 2.00%

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

 2019/20  2020/21 

£000 £000

490 372

5,594 5,650

Private Equity

18,080 26,898

23,674 32,548

1,795 1,819

2,203 2,324

3,998 4,143

1,811 1,762

3,960 4,228

5,520 4,958

2,589 3,695

13,880 14,643

42,042 51,706Total assets

Sub-total other investment funds

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 retiring today

 - Men

 - Woman

Longevity at 65 retiring in 20 years

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

 - Men

 - Woman

Rate of inflation (RPI)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

 - Property

 - Target Return Portfolio

 - Alternative Assets

Bonds: 

 - Gilts

 - Other Bonds 

Sub-total bonds

Other investments: 

Fair value of scheme assets

 - Infrastructure

Cash and cash equivalents

Equities:

UK

Overseas

Sub-total equities 

Rate of inflation (CPI)

Both the Local Government Pension scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by Barnett 

Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Local Government Pension Scheme being based upon 

the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019 and has then been updated for estimated fund returns, asset 

statement, market returns, and income and expenditure as at the 31 March 2021.

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using their projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions 

that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

98

Page 181



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

47 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…

McCloud and Sargeant cases Court of Appeal Judgement

Estimation of Assets and Liabilities

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

The authority anticipates paying contributions of £1.771m to the scheme in 2021/22.

The actuary valuation provided includes an allowance to reflect the Court of Appeal judgement in respect of 

the McCloud and Sargeant cases which relate to age discrimination.

On 16th July 2020, the Government published a consultation on the proposed remedy to be applied to LGPS 

benefits in response to the McCloud and Sargeant cases. The consultation closed on 8 October 2020 and 

the final remedy will only be known after the consultation responses have been reviewed and a final set of 

remedial Regulations are published.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 19 years. 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions set out in the annual 

actuarial report. The sensitivity analysis shown below have been determined based on reasonably possible 

changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that 

the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in 

longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, 

this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the 

sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on the actuarial basis using the 

projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 

analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 

0.1%)

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as possible. Funding 

levels are monitored on an annual basis and the next triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 

2023, at which point the employers contributions may change. 

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows

Decrease in 

Assumption

Increase in 

Assumption

£000

4,983 (4,745)

(1,942) 1,981

5,005 (4,693)

£000

185 (183)

1,779 (1,746)

99

Page 182



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

48 Contingent Liabilities

49 Contingent Assets

50 Trusts

National Non-Domestic Rates

At 31 March 2021 there were outstanding appeals in respect of Non-Domestic Rating valuations and these have been 

included in Note 32 financial statements as a provision. The appeals provision has been calculated with reference to 

previously settled appeals. In addition there will be appeals that have yet to be submitted. An estimate has been submitted  

for appeals yet to be lodged.  These valuations will not be determined until some time after the date the appeal is submitted. 

The Council will be liable for a proportion of any refund made to the ratepayer. The size of this liability in respect of the 

refunds is likely to be material but it is not possible at this point in time to quantify precisely.

At 31 March 2021, the Council had identified the following material contingent liabilities:-

Property Warranties

The Council has provided environmental warranties to Tarka Housing (Tarka Housing has merged with Westcountry 

Housing to become Westward Housing)  as part of the Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen 

environmental impact for which the Council might be liable at a later date. The Council has insured itself against any future 

potential liability. The Council’s own Environmental Health records show a low likelihood of any liability.

The Council has provided property warranties to Tarka Housing (Tarka Housing has merged with Westcountry Housing to 

become Westward Housing) as part of the Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen property defects for 

which the Council might be liable at a later date. The warranties, which last 30 years, provide a maximum liability over this 

period of £6.000 million but the liability for any one dwelling is capped at £3,529. The disclosures and exemption clauses 

within the warranties, coupled with the various stock condition surveys, are such that the Council assesses that there is 

unlikely to be any material liability arising in respect of the warranties.

Environmental Warranties

The Trustees of Municipal Mutual Insurance had been anticipating a solvent run off when settling all claims. In 2012/13 the 

Trustees concluded that this was no longer possible and required the Council to make a contribution based on claims 

settled on behalf of the Council. A further levy contribution was requested in 2015/16. The Trustees have not ruled out the 

need to make further contributions however it is not anticipated that any further contribution to the shortfall will not be 

material. However should further claims arise in future years then the Council’s potential liability will increase.

Municipal Mutual Insurance

The Council is also participating in a joint action against the Royal Mail for recovery of VAT on postage charged as Exempt 

and estimated to be £0.423 million.  

As the receipt of these amounts is uncertain they have not been included within these accounts.

The Council holds the Thomas Burton Will Trust. Under the terms of the Trust the income is applied for the upkeep of the 

Burton Art Gallery. The assets of the Trust amount to £12,430 (£12,430 in 2019/20 ) and do not belong to the Council but 

are held by it as a deposit and are included on the Balance Sheet as a liability under Long Term Borrowing. The income to 

the Council from the Trust of £30 (£131 in 2019/20) is included within Gross Income on Strategic Manager (Services)  in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

100

Page 183



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

2019/20 2020/21

£000 Notes £000

Income

(46,245) (48,462) 

(46,245) (48,462)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

32,901 35,027 

5,045 5,393 

2,056 2,147 

3,890 Torridge District Council 4,104 

1,493 Parish Precepts 1,612 

45,385 48,283

137 106 

272 220 

409 326

247 Devon County Council 243 

35 Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner 37 

16 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue 15 

40 Torridge District Council 40 

338 Total Apportionment of previous years' surplus 335

46,132 48,944

(113) 482

(176) (289)

(289) 193

      The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Council Tax

This section summarises how the money we collected through Council Tax is distributed between  

precepting authorities.

Total Income

Balance at 1 April

Council Tax receivable

Total expenditure

Apportionment of previous years' surplus

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Devon County Council

Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner

Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue

Charges to Collection Fund

Write offs of uncollectable amounts

The £193k represents the overall loss on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund at 31/03/21 

(2019/20 £289k surplus). Of this 12% is due from Torridge, which equates to £23k (see note 36) 

(2019/20 £35k).

Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Closing Balance at 31 March

Total Charges to Collection Fund

101

Page 184



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

(11,447) Business Rates receivable (4,343) 

(437) (97) 

(11,884) (4,440)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

5,601 5,813 

1,008 1,046 

112 116 

4,481 4,651 

11,202 11,626

98 193 

453 1,241 

802 570 

133 134 

1,486 Total Charges to Collection Fund 2,138

76 (44) 

7 (3) 

343 (161) 

284 (138) 

710 Total Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit (346)

13,398 13,418

1,514 8,978

(770) 744

744 9,722

Write offs and  Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Central Government

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Torridge District Council

Charges to Collection Fund

Total Expenditure

Income

This section summarises how the money we collected through our share of Non-Domestic Rates is 

distributed between precepting authorities.

The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates

Transitional Protection Payments

Total Income

Torridge District Council

Closing Balance at 31 March

The £9,722 represents the overall deficit on the Non-Domestic Collection Fund at 31/03/21 (2019/20 

£744k deficit). Of this 40% is attributable to TDC, which equates to £3,889k (2019/20 £298k deficit).

Decrease in provision for appeals

Cost of Collection

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Balance at 1 April

Disregarded Amounts

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Central Government

Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit

102

Page 185



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Collection Fund

General

1 Calculation of Council Tax Base

Actual Band D 

A 1,322.8 3,717.2

B 1,543.3 4,476.1

C 1,763.8 5,288.3

D 1,984.2 5,079.5

E 2,425.2 3,711.2

F 2,866.1 1,453.8

G 3,307.1 576.2

H 3,968.5 33.9

Total 24,336.2

2 Income collectable from Business Rates 

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000

39,932 40,434

50.4 51.2

49.1 49.9

Rateable value at 31 March

Uniform Business Rate

Small Business Rate

These accounts represent the transactions of the Collection Fund, which is a statutory fund 

separate from the main accounts of the Council.  The accounts are, however, consolidated 

with the Council's balance sheet. The accounts have been prepared on the accruals basis.

The Council collects Non-Domestic rates for its area, which is based on local rateable values 

multiplied by either a uniform rate; there is a reduced rate levied on small business.  For the 

financial year 2020/21 the Council is a member of the Devon Business Rate Pool.  

Consequently the total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is allocated 50% to 

Central Government, 9% Devon County Council and 1% to Devon & Somerset Fire and 

Rescue Authority.  The remaining 40% is Torridge's share and is included within the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.   The Pool assigns a minimum funding 

baseline to its members, and allocates losses and gains to its members based upon their 

relative business rates tax base.

The council tax base is calculated by taking the number of chargeable dwellings in each 

valuation band  (adjusted for discounts as necessary) and converted into the number of Band 

D equivalent properties multiplied by the council tax rate per Band D properties.

Number of Dwellings

103

Page 186



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104

Page 187



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105

Page 188



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106

Page 189



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

107

Page 190



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Accounting Period 
The period of time covered by the accounts is normally a period of twelve months 
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date. 
 

Actual 
The actual, rather than budgeted, expenditure or income attributable to the accounting 
period.  Sometimes referred to as “Actuals”. 
 

Actuary 
An expert who analyses the financial consequences of risk, with the purpose of assessing 
the level of funds required in the pension fund. 
 

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses 
that arise because: 
 

 Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last 
valuation (experience gains and losses); or 

The actuarial assumptions have changed. 
 

Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account 
This account represents the value of any unused holiday, time off in lieu or flexi hours 
which have not been taken by officers at 31 March. 
 

Amortisation 
The writing down of an intangible  fixed asset over its useful life. 
 

Amortised cost 
Investments for which any gains and losses in fair value are not accounted  for until the 
investment matures or is sold. Defined as financial assets: 

 Held within a business model whose objective is to hold investments in order to 
collect their contractual cash flows, and 

 Which have the form of a basic lending arrangement (ie, contractual terms give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding). 

 

Appointed Auditors 
The Public Sector Audit Appointments department appoints external auditors to every Local 
Authority, from one of the major firms of registered auditors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

108

Page 191



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Assets 
An item having value to the Council in monetary terms, categorised as: 

 Current assets will be consumed within the next financial year (e.g. cash and 
stock). 
 

 Non-current assets provide benefits over their useful life for more that 
one year and can be tangible (e.g. buildings, vehicles and plant) or intangible (e.g. 
computer software licences). 
 

 Community assets are assets that the local authority intends to hold in 
perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and may have restrictions on 
their disposal (e.g. town squares and picnic sites). 
 

 Infrastructure assets that form part of the economic or social framework of the 
area and whose function is not transferable (e.g. highways, bridges and 
footpaths). 

 

 Surplus assets are fixed assets held by a local authority but not 
directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services.  
 

 Assets under Construction details capital expenditure to date on work in 
progress. 
 

 Available for Sale are assets actively being marketed at the Balance Sheet 
date. 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
A Committee of the Council which considers financial matters and reports from Internal 
Audit, and approves and monitors our Financial Regulations and risk management. The 
Committee is delegated to approve the Accounts following External Audit review. 
 

Audit of Accounts 
An independent examination of the Council’s financial affairs. 
 

Authorised Limit 
This represents the legislative limit on the Council’s external debt under the Local 
Government Act 2003. 
 

Balance Sheet 
A statement of all the Council’s assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year, 31 
March. 
 

Budget 
The forecast of net revenue and capital expenditure over the accounting period. 

 
 
 
 

109

Page 192



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Business model 
Arrangements for holding financial assets, whose objectives can involve making a return by 
either collecting the cash flows payable under the contracts for each investment (e.g. 
interest) or hoping to sell investments to gain from increases in their value. 
 
Capital Adjustment Account 
This records the timing difference between the costs of fixed assets used and the 
capital financing set aside to pay for them. 
 

Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on assets which have a long-term value. Includes the purchase of land, 
purchase or cost of construction of buildings and the acquisition of plant, equipment 
and vehicles. 
 

Capital Charges 
A general term used for the notional charges made to service revenue accounts for the use 
of fixed assets. The term covers the following: Depreciation, Impairment charges and 
Amortisation of Deferred Charges (included in gross expenditure) offset by the Amortisation 
of government grants deferred (included in income). 
 

Capital Financing Costs 
Costs, such as interest, which are incurred as a result of spending funds spent on non-
current assets. 
 

Capital Receipts 
Proceeds received from the sale of property and other capitalised assets. 
 

Carrying Amount 
The recorded value in the Balance Sheet, of either an asset or a liability. 
 

Cash-flow Statement 
A statement summarising the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with 
third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. 
 

Collection Fund 
A separate fund recording the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax and Business 
Rates, Torridge is responsible for the collection and distribution of Council Tax and Business 
rates for both the Council and others preceptors. 
 

Community Assets 
Fixed assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no determinable finite 
useful life and in addition, may have restrictions on their disposal. An example is a park. 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
A statement summarising the resources generated and consumed by the Council during the 
year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).   
 
 

110

Page 193



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Contingency 
Money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or 
shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in budgets. 

 
Contingent Liabilities or Assets 
Amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise in the future, 
but which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for which provision as not yet 
been made in the Council’s accounts. 
 

Contract Asset 
An asset arising from a contract for the purchase of goods and/or services from the Council, 
where the Council has met some if its performance obligations but is not yet entitled 
unconditionally to receive payment. 
 

Contract liability  
A liability arising from a contract for the purchase of goods and/or services from the Council 
where the Council has received payment but has yet to meet the performance obligations 
relating to the payment. 
 

Council Tax 
The main source of local taxation to Local Authorities. Council Tax is levied on households 
within its area by the Billing Authority and the proceeds are paid into its collection Fund for 
distribution to precepting Authorities and for use by its own General Fund. 

 
Council Tax Requirement 
The net estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services, after deducting income 
from fees and charges, certain specific grants and funding from reserves, which require 
financing from Council Tax income. 
 

Creditor 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered but 
for which payment has not been made at 31 March. 

 
Credit losses 
A measure of how much the Council would lose if the amounts owed to it by debtors and 
borrowers are not repaid. Defined as the shortfall between all the cash flows that are due 
contractually to the Council under a financial asset and those that it actually expects to 
receive. 
 
Current Assets 
Short-term assets held at the Balance Sheet date, including cash, cash equivalents and 
monies due from debtors within 12 months. 
 

Current Liabilities 
Short-term liabilities, due to be settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 
 

 

111

Page 194



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Current Service Cost 
Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension 
scheme’s liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current period i.e the 
ultimate pension benefits “earned” by employees in the current year’s employment. 
 

Curtailment 
Curtailments will show the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any employee has 
been made redundant in the previous financial year. 
 

Debtor 
Sums of money due to the Council, but unpaid at the balance sheet date. 
 

Deferred Capital Receipts 
Capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place and wholly consist of 
principal outstanding from the sale of council houses. 

 
Deferred Charges (now known as REFCUS see below) 
Expenditure which may properly be capitalised but which does not result in tangible fixed 
assets owned being by the Council. These charges are to be amortised to revenue over an 
appropriate period. 
 

Deferred Contributions 
Amounts received relating to future activities to be undertaken. 
 

Defined Benefit Scheme 
This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions 
payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The 
scheme may be funded or unfunded. 

 
Depreciation 
The  allocation of the cost of a fixed asset over its useful economic life, representing  the 
assets reduction in value over the accounting period through general wear and tear, 
consumption or obsolescence. 

 
Derecognition 
The removal from the Balance Sheet of a previously recognised financial asset or liability. 
E.g. when a building is sold 
 

Earmarked Reserves 
Those elements of the Council’s total reserves which are retained for specific purposes. 
 

Effective interest rate 
The interest rate that discounts future cash payments and receipts over the life of a financial 
instrument to the carrying amount (asset) or to the amortised cost (liability). This might be 
different from the actual interest rate where transaction costs have been accrued or because 
of interest at less than the market rates being spread over the term of the instrument. 

112

Page 195



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Effective Interest method 
The method that uses effective interest rates to calculate the amortised cost of a financial 
instrument and allocates interest revenue or payments to the particular financial years over 
which the financial instrument is held. 
 

Employee Costs 
Costs incurred employing staff including salaries, employer’s national insurance, pension 
contributions, and training. 
 

Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) 
The credit losses that the Council estimates will arise from the amounts that it is currently 
owed. ECLs are calculated by measuring the losses that would arise from different default 
scenarios and calculates a weighted average loss based on the probability of each scenario 
taking place. 
 

Exceptional Items 
Material items deriving from events or transactions that will fall within the ordinary activities 
of the Council, but which need to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size and/or 
incidence to give a fair presentation of the accounts. 
 

Expenditure 
Amounts paid by the Council for goods and services rendered of either capital or revenue 
nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment since expenditure is deemed to 
have been incurred once the goods and services have been received even if they have not 
been paid for. 

 
External Audit 
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure 
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper 
practices and to ensure the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 

 
Fair value 
The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

  
Fair value through profit or loss financial assets 
Defined as financial assets that do not qualify for measurement at amortised cost or fair 
value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Fees and Charges 
The Council’s charges for certain services e.g. car parking. 
 

Finance Lease 
A lease whereby all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset are with the lessee. 
In substance the asset belongs to the lessee. 
 

113

Page 196



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both 
financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial  
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives. 
 

Financial Regulations 
The written code of procedures, approved by the Council, intended to provide a framework 
for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, 
audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 

General Fund 
The main revenue fund of the Council, income from the council tax precept and Government 
grants are paid into the fund, from which the cost of providing services are met. 
 

Government Grants 
Payments by Central Government towards the Council’s expenditure. They are specific for a 
particular service; and are receivable in respect of both revenue and capital expenditure. 
 

Government Grants Deferred 
Grants or contributions received which have supported wholly or in part the acquisition of 
fixed assets, net of the appropriate share of depreciation on those assets for which a 
depreciation charge is made. 
 

Heritage Assets 
An asset with a historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental 
quality that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 

Housing Benefit 
An allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or in part, their rent. 
Benefit is allowed or paid by local Authorities but Central Government refunds part of the 
cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants 
as rent allowance. 

 
Impairment 
A reduction in the value of an asset to below its carrying amount on the balance sheet due 
to damage, obsolescence or a general decrease in market value. 
 

Income 
Amounts due to the Council for goods supplied or services rendered of either a capital or 
revenue nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment. Income is deemed to 
have been earned once the goods or services have been supplied even if the payment has 
not been received (in which case the recipient is a debtor to the Council). 
 
 
 

114

Page 197



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Income & Expenditure Account 
The net cost for the year for services provided by the Council for which it is responsible and 
showing how the cost has been financed from precepts, grants and other income. 
 

Intangible Assets 
Non-current assets without physical substance, but which are identifiable and controlled by 
the Council. Computer software is the most common example. 
 

Interest 
An amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it is invested or borrowed. 

 
Leasing Costs 
Sums paid for the use of an asset for a specified period of time. Two forms of lease exist: 
finance leases and operating leases. Operating leases are those where the risks of 
ownership of the leased asset rest with the owner of the asset all other leases are finance 
leases and must be recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
 

LGPS (Local Government Pension Scheme) 
The fund that manages and pays the Council’s staff pensions. Our LGPS scheme is now 
managed by Peninsula Pensions. 
 

Liabilities 
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the 
future. Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 

 
Local Development Plan 
A plan which includes documents that establishes the local policy towards the use of land 
and the vision for involving communities in the plan making process. 
 

Long Term Borrowing 
Amounts borrowed in excess of 364 days. 
 

Long-Term Contract 
A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial 
asset, or the provision of a service (or a combination of assets and services which together 
constitute a single project), where the project falls into more than one accounting period. 

 
Long Term Debtors 
Sums of money due to the Council  repayable within a period in excess of twelve months. 
 

Loss allowance 
An allowance made by setting funds aside to cover the expected credit losses calculated for 
financial instrument. 
 
 
 
 

115

Page 198



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
A financial planning document that sets out the future years financial forecasts for the 
Council. It considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the 
general fund revenue budget and capital programme. It usually covers a four year time 
frame. 
 

Member 
An elected councillor of the Council. 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The minimum amount which must be charged to the Council’s revenue account each year 
and set aside as provision for credit liabilities as required by the Prudential Code. 

 
National Non Domestic Rate (NNDR) 
The levy on business property, based upon a national rate in the pound applied to the 
‘rateable value’ of the property. The government determines a national rate poundage each 
year which is applicable to all Local Authorities. Torridge is a member of the Devon NNDR 
Pool of Local Authorities whose share of the NNDR is allocated between the members. 

 
Net Book Value 
The value of fixed assets included on the balance sheet, being the historical cost or a 
current revaluation less the cumulative amounts of depreciation. 
 

Net Debt 
Net debt is the Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. 
 

Net Realisable Value (NRV) 
NRV is the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less any costs to be incurred in 
selling the asset. 
 

Non Current Assets 
Assets that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more 
than one year. Examples include land, buildings and vehicles. 
 

Non-distributed Costs 
In the main this represents support service area charges e.g. Corporate Management, 
Finance, Legal, ICT, HR services, etc. In addition to this a number of non-service specific 
corporate fees are included as well as any extra payments made to maintain the value of the 
pension fund. 

 
Operating Lease 
A lease where the risks and rewards and therefore the ownership of the asset remains with 
the lessor. 
 

Operational Boundary 
The maximum anticipated level of external debt consistent with budgets and forecast cash 
flows. 

116

Page 199



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Payment of Principal and Interest 
The amounts that would be paid under a basic lending agreement, for accounting purposes, 
they comprise: 

 the repayment of the fair value of a financial asset when it was brought onto the 
Council’s balance sheet (principal) 

 consideration for the time value of money, compensation for credit risk, recovery of 
basic lending costs and profit margin (interest) 

 
Pension Strain 
Additional employers pension contributions as a result of an employee’s early retirement. 
 

Precept 
The amount levied by one authority which is collected by another e.g.the County Council is 
the precepting authority and the District Council is the collecting authority. 
 

Prior Period Adjustments 
Material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising from changes in 
accounting policies or for the correction of fundamental errors. 

 
Provision 
An amount which is put aside to cover future liabilities or losses which are considered to be 
certain or very likely to occur, but the amounts and timing are uncertain. 

 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
An arm of Central Government which is the major provider of loans to finance the long term 
funding requirements for Local Authorities. 
 

Rateable Value 
A value placed upon all properties subject to rating. The value is based on a national rent 
that property could be expected to yield after deducting the cost of repairs. 
 

Related Parties 
Related parties comprise Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting and 
levying bodies subsidiary and associated companies, elected Members, all senior officers 
and the Pension Fund. In respect of individuals identified as related parties the following are 
also presumed to be related parties: 
 

 Members of the close family, or the same household; and 

 Partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member 
of their close family, or the same household, has a controlling interest. 
 

Revenue Expenditure 
Spending on the day-to-day running of services – mainly wages, operating expenses of 
buildings and equipment, and debt charges. These costs are met from the Council tax, 
government grants and our own fees and charges. 
 
 

117

Page 200



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Revenue Support Grant 
The major grant received each year from Central Government, which is not ring-fenced, 
to help finance our activities. Commonly referred to as the Council’s “Formula Grant”. 

 
Reserves 
The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years. Reserves of a 
revenue nature are available and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the Council. 
Some capital reserves such as the capital adjustment account cannot be used to meet 
current expenditure. 
 

Restatement 
Changes to prior period comparative figures. Generally required due to changes in 
accounting standards and policies. 
 

Revaluation Reserve 
A record of net gains on assets from revaluations made after 1 April 2007 not yet realised 
through sales.  
 

Revenue Contributions 
The financing of capital expenditure directly from revenue rather than from loans or other 
sources. 
 

Revenue Expenditure 
The day to day expenditure of the Council on such items as employees, transport and 
equipment. 
 

Tax Base 
The number of houses (expressed in Band D Equivalents) the Council can charge Council 
Tax on. 

 
Treasury Management 
The process by which the Authority controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending 
activities. 
 

Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) 
A strategy, approved by Cabinet, prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA 
requirements setting out the framework for treasury activity for the Council. 
 

Value for Money 
The benefit obtained (not just in financial terms) for a given input of cash. 

118

Page 201



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 

Temple Quay 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL 

 
T +44 (0)117 305 7600 
F +44 (0)117 955 4934 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 
   

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton 
UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.   

grantthornton.co.uk 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

7 July 2021 

 

Dear David 

Audit Scope and additional work 2020/21 

Introduction 

As you are aware, local audit has gone through major changes in the last couple of years. More and 

more councils are getting involved in complex and innovatory financial arrangements, increased 

regulatory pressures, the expectations of stakeholders and enhancements to Codes and Standards 

have fundamentally changed the landscape in which we work. COVID - 19 and lockdown have added 

further unanticipated pressures on both auditors and audited bodies. In this letter, I set out my 

expectations of the increased audit work which will be required in 2020/21. I also set out the expected 

fee impact, the need for which has recently been acknowledged by both the Redmond Review and 

MHCLG’s subsequent response. I hope this is helpful in setting out the context in which we will work with 

you, as well as a sign of Grant Thornton’s continued commitment to the highest audit quality.  

Looking back to 2019/20 

In January 2020, we wrote to you regarding the increased regulatory focus facing all audit suppliers and 

the impact this would have on the scope of our work for 2019/20 and beyond. We referred to this as 

‘raising the bar’, reflecting the expectation from the FRC that all audit work should now be of level 2a 

(limited improvement only) or better. We set out our expectation that there would be an additional fee 

requirement for the 2019/20 audit, compared to the scale fee published by PSAA, of £7,500. This was 

reflected in our Audit Plan dated March 2020. 

The subsequent COVID 19 pandemic had a further significant impact on the cost of us as auditors 

discharging our responsibilities. As a result of the additional work a further uplift to the fee was proposed 

resulting in a final fee for 2019/20 of £45,186 (a variation to scale of 42%). 

The main reasons for the further variation are as follows: 

• The disruption caused by COVID - 19, impacting both on your closedown procedures and our ability 

to audit remotely; as well as the additional audit considerations including in respect of asset 

valuations. These meant that like you, we incurred considerable extra costs. Across all firms, only 

45% of local government audits were signed off by the target date of 30 November, which indicates 

the scale of the challenge involved.  

In the sections below, I set out the main factors which will impact on the audit fee for 2020/21. These 

include the introduction of the new NAO Code of Audit Practice, with consequent implications for Value 

David Heyes  
Section 151 Officer 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
EX39 2QG 
 

  

Page 202

Agenda Item 13



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Commercial in confidence 

for Money work; the revision to major auditing standards, including those covering estimates and fraud, 

and the update of Practice Note 10 (the adaptation of auditing standards to public sector audits). 

Following the national lockdown in January 2021, COVID - 19 will also continue to impact in a large way 

on the audit, and I have also commented on this below. We also note that the Government response to 

the Redmond Review, published on 17 December 2020 promised that MHCLG will provide relevant local 

authorities with £15 million in additional funding in 2021/22 to be used to support the additional costs of 

reporting and audit anticipated related to the 2020/21 financial year. 

New audit requirements for 2020/21 – the new NAO Code 

 

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a new Code of Audit Practice which comes into 

effect from audit year 2020/21. The most significant change in the Code is the introduction of a new 

‘Auditor’s Annual Report’, which brings together the results of all the auditor’s work across the year. The 

Code also introduced a revised approach to the audit of Value for Money. These changes are set out in 

more detailed in the NAO’s Auditor Guidance Note 03 which was published in October 2020.  

We issued our Audit Plan for 2020/21 in March 2021. I have set out below the main changes in respect 

of Value for Money, and the implications for the timing and resourcing of our work, as well as for the 

audit fee.  

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s new approach. 

• A new set of key criteria, covering governance, financial sustainability and improvements in 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

• More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the auditor to produce a commentary on 

arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ approach 

• The replacement of the binary (qualified / unqualified) approach to VfM conclusions, with far more 

sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as recommendations on any significant 

weaknesses in arrangements identified during the audit. 

Grant Thornton very much welcomes the changes, which will support auditors in undertaking and 

reporting on work which is more meaningful and makes impact with audited bodies and the public. We 

agree with the move away from a binary conclusion, and with the replacement of the Annual Audit Letter 

with the new Annual Auditor’s Report. The changes will help pave the way for a new relationship 

between auditors and audited bodies which is based around constructive challenge and a drive for 

improvement. 

The following are the main implications in terms of audit delivery: 

• We are aiming to publish our work on the Auditor’s Annual Report as soon as possible following the 

Auditor’s Report on the financial statements. The NAO has reviewed and updated AGN03 to reflect 

the exceptional circumstances arising from the pandemic in this first year of the new requirements 

and requires auditors to issue the Auditor’s Annual Report within three months of issuing the 

Auditor’s Report on the financial statements. To ensure we are able to complete the necessary work 

by the due date, we undertook our initial planning in February 2021 and shared the results of our risk 

assessment with you in our Audit Plan at the March 2021 Audit and Governance Committee. We will 

allow sufficient time for you to comment on our risk assessment and audit findings at each key stage 

before we present the results to Audit and Governance Committee.  

• Where auditors identify weaknesses in Value for Money arrangements, there will be increased 

reporting requirements on the audit team. We envisage that across the country, auditors will be 

identifying more significant weaknesses and consequently making an increased number of 

recommendations (in place of what was a qualified Value for Money conclusion). We will be working 

closely with the NAO and the other audit firms to ensure consistency of application of the new 

guidance.   

Page 203

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-government-response-to-the-redmond-review
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2020/01/Code_of_audit_practice_2020.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/agn-03-vfm-consultation/


 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

Commercial in confidence 

• The new approach will also potentially be more challenging, as well as rewarding, for audited bodies 

involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the reporting, and the planning and 

risk assessment which underpins it, will require more audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix 

than in previous years. Our estimate is that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of 

£9,000 for 2020/21. This in line with increases we are proposing at all our local audits.  

• PSAA recognise that the additional work required as a result of the new Code will continue in future 

years and have consulted on how best to reflect this in any revision to scale fees with effect from 

2021/22. For 2020/21 the fee variation will be approved  by PSAA via the fee variations process in 

the usual manner. 

• There will be increased documentation and reporting requirements on the audit team. The value for 

money work will now cover a much wider scope, as set out above. Each year we will need to assess 

the arrangements in place across these areas and explore the arrangements in more detail than 

previously. We envisage that across the country, auditors will be identifying more significant risk 

areas and will be reporting more extensively than in previous years. The financial and governance 

aspects of the COVID - 19 pandemic are likely to feature heavily in our work. 

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 540 - Estimates 

In the period December 2018 to January 2020 the Financial Reporting Council issued a number of 

updated International Auditing Standards (ISAs (UK)) which are effective for audits of financial 

statements for periods beginning on or after 15 December 2019. The single most significant of these for 

this year’s audit is ISA (UK) 540 (revised): Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures 

which includes a number of enhancements in respect of the audit risk assessment process for 

accounting estimates. 

In summary, the revised Standard reflects increasing focus from regulators and other stakeholders on all 

key estimates, especially those which are complex, require significant judgements. ISA 540 has been 

enhanced to place increasing demands on auditors to understand and assess an entity’s internal 

controls over accounting estimates. 

In practice, you will see an increased focus during our audit on key internal controls including: 

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills 

• The information system as relates to estimates 

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates 

• The role of those charged with governance: to what extent does the Audit and Governance 

Committee understand and oversee the estimation process? 

We will also look for you to articulate clearly: 

• How management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each accounting 

estimate; and  

• How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point estimate. 

The following are examples of where this could apply: 

• Valuations of land and buildings and investment properties 

• Depreciation 

• Year-end provisions and accruals 

• Credit loss and impairment allowances  

• Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities 

• Fair value estimates 

As the audit progresses, we will discuss the practical ways in which you can support us in meeting our 

obligations through the audit.  

Page 204



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

Commercial in confidence 

Enhanced auditing standards for 2020/21: ISA 240 - Risks in respect of fraud 

The auditor’s responsibilities in relation to fraud in an audit of the financial statements are set out in ISA 

240. This was most recently updated in January 2020, with effect for audit year 2020/21. Note that the 

FRC is currently consulting on further enhancements to the Standard, reflecting concerns expressed 

amongst others by Sir Donald Brydon that that auditors are not doing enough work to detect material 

fraud. 

In response to the new Standard, and to the increased expectations of regulators, we are heightening 

our focus on fraud risks. The following are examples of where this could apply: 

• Increased scope and coverage of journals testing 

• Increased cut off testing  

• Increased testing of income and expenditure 

• Automated/data interrogation techniques  

• Keeping materiality under review throughout the audit.  

• More robust reporting (including the use of Statutory Recommendations where appropriate). 

 

As with estimates, our work in this area may look and feel different to you, and you will notice an 

increased audit presence. We will discuss emerging findings with you, and ensure you have an early 

opportunity to comment on findings.  

Revised ISA (UK) 700 Forming an opinion and reporting on financial statements (Updated 

January 2020):  

This revised standard is effective for engagements relating to financial periods commencing on or after 

15 December 2019. The key change is that all auditor’s reports will be required to include an explanation 

as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud. This 

explanation may include: 

• how the engagement team obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework 

applicable to the entity and how the entity is complying with that framework   

• which laws and regulations the engagement team identified as being of significance in the context of 

the entity 

• the engagement team’s assessment of the susceptibility of the entity’s financial statements to 

material misstatement, including how fraud might occur   

• the engagement partner’s assessment of whether the engagement team collectively had the 

appropriate competence and capabilities to identify or recognize non-compliance with laws and 

regulations   

• the engagement team’s understanding of the entity’s current activities, the scope of its authorization 

and the effectiveness of its control environment where the entity is a regulated entity 

• in the case of a group audit, how the engagement team addressed these matters at both at the 

group and component levels and relevant communications with component auditors. 

 

 

 

 

Page 205

https://www.frc.org.uk/news/october-2020/consultation-on-revised-auditing-standard-for-the


 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5 

Commercial in confidence 

Practice Note 10 (PN 10): The application of auditing standards for public sector audits  

Reflecting the differences between public sector and commercial audits, Practice Note 10 provides 

guidance for auditors on the application to relevant standards in the public sector. An updated version of 

PN 10 was published in November 2020. This updated version reinforces the enhancements described 

above in respect of estimates and risk of fraud.  

In addition, there is one other major change in PN 10 and this is in respect of the auditor’s 

responsibilities in respect of going concern. As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence regarding, and conclude on:  

• whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and  

• the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements. 

The revisions to PN 10 are helpful in that they allow auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of service 

approach’ to auditing going concern where appropriate. Applying such an approach enables auditors to 

change focus somewhat. Whilst we will still undertake relevant work in respect of management’s 

disclosure around going concern, the concept of the ‘material uncertainty’ disclosure is far less likely to 

apply. The NAO’s guidance to auditors makes clear that auditor’s focus should instead be based on the 

financial resilience of the authority. As such, there is no reduction in respect of work on going concern 

and financial resilience, but rather a shift in emphasis.   

Other revised Auditing Standards 

In November 2019, the FRC issued an update to ISA 220, covering Quality Control of Financial 

Statements. This revised standard highlights the increased importance for the engagement lead auditor 

in planning, supervising and reviewing the work of the local audit team. 

Impact of COVID - 19 

As last year, we expect that our detailed work programme will need to take account of a number of risks 

arising from COVID - 19 related issues, including lockdown. These include potential uncertainties around 

the valuation of property and pension liabilities, as well as the accounting for government income 

received in respect of COVID - 19 pressures. Whilst lockdown continues, there are also complications 

arising from the remote preparation of accounts and working papers, as well as challenges for us in 

providing support for our junior team members working remotely. Please note, the proposed fees for 

2020/21 set out in the letter do not include any additional fees to reflect potential additional work 

necessary in 2020/21 due to Covid-19. We continue to monitor developments in this area and will 

update you accordingly as clarity emerges on its impact in the current year. 

Overall impact  

MHCLG have acknowledge, via their response to Redmond, that audit fees need to increase due to the 

additional work being undertaken by auditors and the pressure on the audit market. Funding of £15m is 

being provided to local government to cover these additional costs in 2020/21. 

Our estimate is that, for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £53,292. This in line with 

increases we are proposing at all our local audits. I set out below the core strategic constituents of this 

fee.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 206



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6 

Commercial in confidence 

    Total (£) 

Scale fee published by PSAA    31,792 

Plus:     

Ongoing increases to scale first 
identified in 2019/20 

    

Raising the bar/ regulatory factors     2,500 

PPE    1,750 

Pensions    1,750 

New issues for 2020/21     

Increase in respect of additional work on 
Value for Money under new NAO Code  

   9,000 

Impact of new auditing standards     6,500 

Increase to scale     21,500 

Fee proposed for 2020/21    53,292 

 

All variations to the scale fee will need to be approved by PSAA. 

Next steps 

I hope this is helpful in explaining how the audit world is changing, as well as the practical implications in 

terms of the Audit Plan, and the benefits to audited bodies from an even more rigorous and robust audit. 

I look forward to discussing this in more detail at our next meeting. If you have any questions in the 

meantime, please don’t hesitate to contact me.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Julie Masci 

Engagement Lead, Public Sector Assurance  

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page 207



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/22 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 

3 

Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 

8 

  27/7/21  21/09/21  18/01/22 29/03/22  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

   
Effectiveness of 
A&G Committee 

  
 

 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk    Corporate Risk Corporate Risk 
 

Internal Audit 

        

 Audit Report Issued  
Audit Report 

Issued 
 Audit Report Issued 

Audit Report 
Issued 

 

 Progress with agreed 
actions 

 
Progress with 
agreed actions 

 
Progress with agreed 

actions 
Progress with 
agreed actions 

 

       
Draft Audit Plan 

2021/22 

 

Accounts 

 Draft Statement of 
Accounts 

 
Presentation & 

Approval of 

Accounts & AGS 

 
Preparation for final 

account 
 

 

 Annual Governance 
Statement 

 
Report on  

Going Concern 
  

 
 

   
Letter of  

Representation 
  

 
 

   
Final Annual 

Governance 

  
 

 

External 
Audit 

 Update Report    Update Report Update Report  

   
Audit Finding 

Report 
 

Annual Certification 
Letter 

External Audit 
Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 208

A
genda Item

 14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Grant Thornton Update Report
	7 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	8 Annual Internal Audit Report
	9 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	9. Annual Governance Statement draft june 2021

	10 Waivers and Non-compliance with Procedure Rules
	11 Presentation of the Draft Financial Statement.
	13 External Audit Fees
	14 Forward Plan

